
 

 

 

Please ask for: Howard Bassett 

 
 

 
Direct Dial: 01392 265107 

Email: howard.bassett@exeter.gov.uk 

Our ref:  

 
To the Chair and Members  
of the Scrutiny Committee - Community 
 

Your ref:  

 

 
Office of Corporate Manager Democratic & Civic Support 

Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter, EX1 1JN Tel: 01392 277888 Fax: 01392 265593 www.exeter.gov.uk 

 

 
AGENDA FOR 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY 

 

 

The Scrutiny Committee - Community will meet on TUESDAY 15 JANUARY 2013, commencing at 
5.30 pm, in the Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter to consider the following business.  
If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Howard Bassett, Member 
Services Officer on Exeter 265107. 
 
Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street. 

 Pages 

Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present 

 

1 APOLOGIES  

 To receive apologies for absence from Committee members.  
 

 

2 MINUTES  

 To sign the minutes of the meeting held on 6 November 2012. 
  
 

 

3 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been 
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the 
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the 
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave 
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item.  
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer 
prior to the day of the meeting. 
  
 

 



4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 

 It is considered that the Committee would be unlikely to exclude the press and 
public during consideration of the items on this agenda, but if it should wish to do 
so, the following resolution should be passed:- 
 
RECOMMENDED that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting of the particular item(s) 
on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
  

 

5 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER STANDING ORDER 19  

 A period of up to 15 minutes will be set aside to deal with questions to the 
Committee from members of the public. 
 
Details of questions should be notified to the Corporate Manager Democratic and 
Civic Support at least three working days prior to the meeting. Further information 
and a copy of the procedure are available from Member Services (01392 265107) 
also on the Council web site. 
http://www.exeter.gov.uk/scrutinyquestions   
 

 

6 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL UNDER STANDING 
ORDER 20 

 

 To receive questions from Members of the Council to appropriate Portfolio 
Holders. 
 

 

7 PARKWOOD LEISURE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT  

 To welcome Stephen Hughes, General Manger and Darren Parrott, Assistant 
Regional Director of Parkwood Leisure who will be making a presentation on the 
delivery of the Leisure Management Contract.  
 
To consider the report of the Assistant Director Economy – report circulated 
  

1 - 12 

8 DEVON JOINT HEALTH AND WELL BEING STRATEGY  

 To welcome Ian Tearle, Head of Health Policy, Directorate of Public Health, NHS 
Devon. 
  
 

 

ESTIMATES, CAPITAL BIDS AND FEES AND CHARGES 2013/14 

 

9 COMMUNITY - GENERAL FUND - ESTIMATES/NEW CAPITAL BIDS/FEES 
AND CHARGES 

 

 To consider the report of the Strategic Director and Assistant Director Finance – 
report circulated  
 

13 - 92 



10 COMMUNITY - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT - ESTIMATES/NEW CAPITAL 
BIDS/FEES AND CHARGES 

 

 To consider the report of the Strategic Director and Assistant Director Housing 
and Contracts – report circulated 
 

93 - 112 

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE EXECUTIVE 

 

11 HOUSING RENTS 2013/14  

 To consider the joint report of the Assistant Director Finance and the Assistant 
Director Housing and Contracts – report circulated 
  

113 - 114 

12 TACKLING HOMELESSNESS.  

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director Housing and Contracts – report 
circulated   
  

115 - 120 

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY 

 

13 HOUSING RELATED COMPLAINTS  

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director Housing and Contracts – report 
circulated 
  

121 - 124 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 
 The next Scrutiny Committee - Community will be held on Tuesday 5 March 

2013 at 5.30 pm  
 
 

 

FUTURE BUSINESS  

 
 The schedule of future business proposed for this Scrutiny Committee and 

other Committees of the Council can be viewed on the following link to the 
Council’s website:http://www.exeter.gov.uk/forwardplan 
Councillors can view a hard copy of the schedule in the Members Room. 
 

 
 

 

Membership - 
Councillors Shiel (Chair), Mitchell (Deputy Chair), Branston, Bowkett, Choules, Clark, Dawson, 
Donovan, Laws, Morris, Mottram, Payne and Tippins 
 

 

Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site 
http://www.exeter.gov.uk.  This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you 
how you can ask a question at a Scrutiny Committee meeting.  Alternatively, contact the Member 
Services Officer on (01392) 265107 for further information. 

 



Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print 
on request to Member Services on 01392 265111. 

 
Please remember to recycle. If you would prefer not to receive paper copies please let us 
know. Contact Member Services 01392 265197 or email member.services@exeter.gov.uk  



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY 

15 JANUARY 2013 

 

PARKWOOD LEISURE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT  

 

 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To report to Members on the performance of the Parkwood Leisure, Management 

Contract for year two, October 2011 to September 2012. 
  

2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The new Leisure Management Contract commenced on 29 September 2010 and    

included the following sites: 

•    Clifton Hill Sports Centre 

•    Exeter Arena 

•    Northbrook Approach Golf Course 

•    Northbrook Swimming Pool 

•    Pyramids Swimming and Leisure Centre 

•    Riverside Leisure Centre 

•    Wonford Sports Centre 
 
2.2 On 1 December 2010 the Isca Bowls and Bridge Centre was included within the Leisure 

Management Contract. 
 
2.3 The current contract is a ten year agreement expiring in 2020. There is an option to award 

an extension of up to five years. 
 

3. CONTRACT PERFORMANCE REVIEW FOR YEAR TWO 
 
3.1 The Leisure Management Contract is monitored using a number of methods, including 

the provision of Key Performance Indicators (KPI), regular monitoring meetings and 
visits to facilities. 

 
3.2 The contract requires Parkwood Leisure to provide the Council with KPI’s on a weekly, 

monthly and annual basis to enable the Council to monitor performance and ensure 
contractual compliance. The KPI’s include the following that may be of particular 
interest to Members. 

 
3.3 Customer comments are a very important method in monitoring satisfaction levels of 

customers at the facilities. At the beginning of this year Members raised concerns about 
the lack of comments being received from customers. Working with Parkwood 
management an emphasis has been placed on providing a range of opportunities for 
customers to comment both negatively and positively on the facilities and service. 

  
 Each facility now hosts a designated ‘Customer Notice Board’ providing information to 

customers on how to comment on the service and relaying information back to 
customers on issues arising at the facility. Comments are gathered and recorded from 
various sources including: 
 

• Comment Cards located adjacent to the Customer Notice Boards 

• On line comment through the Parkwood Leisure website 

Agenda Item 7

Page 1



  

• Email 

• Letters 

• Verbal 
  
3.4 The implementing of the notice boards and additional focus on recording comments has 

seen a significant rise in customer comments, including a good proportion of positive 
comments about the service. Appendix A, provides a summary of the customer 
comments received during year two of the contract. The increased focus by Parkwood 
Leisure in recording all comments particularly verbal comments has seen the number of 
recorded comments raise from one 160 in year one of the contract to 368 in year two. 
This represents an overall increase of 208 recorded comments over a twelve month 
period. 

 
3.5 In relation to the nature of comments, the subject that attracts the highest proportion of 

comments is maintenance with a particular focus on broken lockers. The contract 
requires that no more than 10% of lockers within any facility are out of action at any 
time. Another frequent comment is about environmental issues and specifically relates 
to temperatures of air and water. This is always a very difficult subject as one 
customers perception of the temperature of a swimming pool can be very different to 
another  when applying factors such as their age and type of activity they are 
participating in. The swimming pool water is maintained at temperatures recommended 
by governing bodies and set at a temperature that is favourable for the majority. 

 
 The least frequent comments received are about health and safety, staff and cleaning. 
 
 In addition Parkwood Leisure have undertaken customer surveys and this will be 

reported on during their presentation to the Committee. 
 
3.6 The Council monitors the number and types of accidents and incidents recorded at the 

leisure facilities which are reported to the Council’s Health and Safety Advisor. 
There has not been a significant increase overall in accidents in year two of the contract 
compared to year one. 
 

3.7 Appendix B, provides a summary of the accidents and incidents reported during year 
two of the contract. In recording these accidents the Council ask Parkwood Leisure to 
state specifically what the nature of the injury was and what was the causative agent. 
 
The two most frequently recorded types of accidents are to the face/head and 
leg/foot/knee. This is very reflective of the type of activities at the facilities  
particularly contact sports like football. The most frequent causative agent is a person 
falling, again as a direct result of the type of sports on offer within the facilities. 
 

3.8 The Riverside Leisure Centre recorded the highest proportion of accidents, which is not 
surprising given its size, volume of customers and variety of activities on offer. The 
second is the Pyramids which has seen a significant increase probably reflective of 
improved reporting procedures with the Exeter Arena in third. Members may be 
surprised that the Exeter Arena is quite high as there are limited contact sports held 
there but athletics does incur a lot of trips and falls particular when undertaking events 
like hurdles, steeple chase and pole vaulting. 
 
The facilities recording the lowest accident rates are the Northbrook Golf Course with 
no reported accidents and the Isca Bowls and Bridge Centre which only recorded three 
accidents in twelve months. 
 

Page 2



  

Overall 355 accidents from 613,000 customers represents a very good safety record. 
 
3.9 The Council monitors customer attendances at the facilities; attendances historically 

tend to fluctuate and can be influenced by sporting, social and economic trends. 
Examples of these trends would include:  

• Sporting Trends – These could be influenced by the Olympics, Wimbledon. 
Football World Cup and new exercise crazes such as Zumba. 

• Social Trends – These could be influenced by popular culture including music, 
clothing and electronics. An example of this would be electronic games that 
are played by many children rather than playing sport. 

• Economic Trends – These will be influenced by unemployment, wages and 
prices 

 
3.10 Appendix C, provides a summary of the customer attendances during year two. There 

has been a significant increase in attendances compared to year one, with an overall 
increase of 58,000 customers. 
 

The largest increase has come at the Riverside Leisure Centre with a rise of 54,000 
customers in comparison to year one. Other significant increases have come at the 
Pyramids Swimming Centre. Despite its aging condition it still remains a popular 
destination and the Isca Bowls and Bridge Centre with again a significant rise in usage 
since Parkwood Leisure took on the management of the facility from the previous 
operators. 
 

3.11 There have been some decrease at other facilities but this can sometimes be related to 
customers migrating to other facilities with newer fitness suites. Over the first three 
years of the contract all the fitness suites will be replaced but this has been a planned 
programme. Next year Clifton Hill and Wonford Sports Centre will have their fitness 
suites replaced. The reduction in customers at Northbrook Golf Course is primarily 
down to the poor weather conditions experienced over the summer with prolonged 
flooding on the grounds around the stream that passes through the facility.  
 

3.12  The contract requires that Parkwood Leisure organise and host a minimum of two      
  Customer Forums per annum at each facility. Northbrook Golf Course has been  
  excluded from this requirement due its size and seasonal operation.  

 
During year two of the contract this requirement was met but the response from 
customers has been disappointing. The Forum is an opportunity for customers to voice 
their concerns and suggestions directly to the Manager on the service provided. 
Officers and Members have attended Forums to monitor and listen to the views of the 
customers. 
 
With the disappointing attendances consideration is being given to next years Forums 
which have already been advertised on the Customer Notice Boards. One 
consideration is to develop customer focus groups to concentrate on specific issues 
rather than just the open shop approach that has proven to be unsuccessful. 

 
3.13    As previously stated Parkwood Leisure provide the Council with a number of 

KPI’s. The list is not exhaustive and provides the Council with the opportunity to 
request additional information if it will assist in the monitoring process or to reduce 
information if it is not a useful tool. 
 
Further examples of these would include: 
 

Page 3



  

• Sports Development Plan; the Council sets annual activity targets. This 
includes identifying minority sports for Parkwood Leisure to develop at grass 
roots level. 

• Non Core prices; the Council set core prices through their fees and charges 
process. Core prices are “pay and play activities” within the leisure facilities 
such as casual swimming, casual badminton and squash.  Parkwood Leisure 
set their own non core prices which are agreed with the Council annually and 
would include Memberships, swimming lessons and fitness activities. 

• Marketing Plan; Parkwood Leisure provide the Council with their annual 
marketing plan, This is assessed along with the quality of their advertising 
literature and websites to ensure that the facilities in Exeter are being 
promoted professionally and are portraying the right image on behalf of the 
Council. 

• Staff Structures & Qualifications; the Council monitor staffing to ensure that all 
staff working within the contract possess the minimum industry standard 
qualifications. 

• Swimming Pool Water Quality, pool water test results are submitted weekly to 
the Council for monitoring and assessing of industry standards. These results 
are held centrally by the Leisure Facilities Manager and are available to other 
Council Sections such as Environmental Health. 

 
3.14  The role of the Leisure Facilities Manager is to monitor the information provided by 

Parkwood Leisure and when necessary investigate and challenge issues that are not 
or appear not to be complying with the management contract. The role is not to micro 
manage the facilities but to ensure the facilities are being managed and operated at 
least within the contractual agreement. 

 
 An example in the last year has been staff qualifications. The Leisure Facilities 

Manager identified roles within the facilities that were not complying with contractual 
standards and industry guidelines. Following an investigation and review, measures to 
ensure compliance and where necessary clearer qualification criteria have been 
agreed with Parkwood Leisure that will ensure that all staff are meeting and are 
qualified to the standards required, and that appropriate records are kept to confirm 
the position. 

 

4. PARTNERSHIP DEVELOPMENT 

 
4.1 The Council have been working with Parkwood Leisure in partnership to enhance and 

develop the service and facilities for customers to exceed the minimum requirements 
set out in the contract. Examples of these initiatives during year two of the contract are 
included below: 

 
4.2 Club Mark is a national cross sport accreditation scheme for clubs. It is built around a 

set of core criteria which ensures that accredited clubs operate to a set of consistent 
accepted and adopted minimum operating standards. The scheme was introduced this 
year within the Parkwood sites and offers all accredited clubs a 10% discount on facility 
hire for training purposes. Exeter is the only Council in the South West offering this 
incentive. 

  
4.3     Being an accredited club carries a number of benefits including: 
 

• Increased Membership - Addressing issues like equity and child 
protection gives parents confidence when choosing a club for their 
children.  

Page 4



  

• Retention of Members - Clubmark stimulates real thought about how 
clubs cater for junior and all members. The culture it promotes boosts 
the morale of players and ensures that volunteers are recognised for 
their contributions.  

• Continues Improvement - Accreditation encourages a club to adopt 
better, more organised systems and structures, thus helping them to 
run more effectively and efficiently.  

• Funding - Many funding bodies state that applicants must be Clubmark 
accredited or working towards. 

• Facilities - More and more local authorities and other leisure operators 
give priority-booking slots to Clubmark accredited clubs. Some also 
offer discounted rates for facility hire. 

• Developing Coaches - As part of Clubmark, clubs are entitled to receive 
help to develop the skills of coaches. This, in turn leads to better quality 
provision and improved player performance. Parents can be confident 
that appropriately qualified coaches are deployed. 

• Volunteers - Clubmark promotes a volunteer culture where hard work 
and dedication is recognised. Once accredited, clubs find more people 
are keen to get involved, especially parents.  

• Links with Schools - Increasingly, schools are looking for guarantees of 
quality and the presence of child- friendly systems and procedures. 
Clubmark clubs are normally the first invited to work with local schools 
and schools are being encouraged to signpost pupils to Clubmark 
clubs. 

• Raised Profile - Clubmark is a highly valued accreditation. As well as 
raising the profile with local authorities, NGBs and other sporting and 
community bodies, all accredited clubs are listed on a national 
database and in other directories, to help them to publicise what they 
do, attract new members and grow. 

• Marketing & Communication - Clubmark gives clubs the confidence to 
promote themselves. All Clubmark clubs can access the Clubmark 
member's area, utilise the Clubmark logo and take advantage of other 
brand resources as well as bespoke information to help generate more 
publicity. The universal brand, recognising quality clubs across more 
than 30 sports is a really valuable marketing tool. 

• Club Development - The foundation for any club is its youth structure. 
The Clubmark accreditation process is designed to assist clubs to 
attract and cater for young members, and build a strong future. 

 
4.4 Working in partnership has enabled the introduction of this scheme and provide 

assurance to customers joining clubs at the facilities that minimum standards such as 
child protection have been implemented. Since the introduction of the scheme by 
Parkwood Leisure there has been a very positive response from the clubs.  

 
 Within the leisure facilities there are 31 clubs who are eligible to sign up for Club Mark. 

Currently 10 of the clubs have achieved Club Mark accreditation and are already 

Page 5



  

receiving the benefits of the award, other clubs are currently working towards the 
accreditation. 

 
4.5 Combined funding through partnership working has enabled the refurbishment of the 

changing rooms at Wonford Sports Centre. This has included complete refurbishment 
of the showers, changing areas and toilets.The improvements will help to improve the 
overall service provided at the facility and is in direct response to customer comments 
received. 

 
4.6 The Council operates an X Card scheme that offers discounted use of the leisure 

facilities during off peak times. The X Card is available to residents of Exeter who have 
a limited income and is designed to remove financial barriers to participation in sport. In 
partnership with Parkwood Leisure the Council have been able to develop the scheme 
this year to offer X Cards to children in care in the City. Over 1000, X Cards are sold 
annually and during year two of the Leisure Management Contract there were 9,000 
visits to the facilities from customer holding an X Card. 

  

5. Parkwood Leisure Working Group 
 
5.1 Earlier this year following concerns from Members of the Scrutiny Committee about a 

number of complaints received from customers, a Working Group was established 
consisting of Members, Officers and representatives of Parkwood Leisure.  The 
objective of the Working Group was to enable Members to have an understanding of 
the issues associated with the contract and meet directly with representatives of 
Parkwood Leisure.  

 
5.2 The terms of reference for the Group are as follows: 
 

To work with Parkwood Leisure to develop its service and enhance its facilities 
achieving a level of service for customers well above the contractual baseline. 
To monitor contractual issues, monitoring customer comments and relevant action 
taken and agreeing improvement initiatives. 

 
5.3 The Working group is now well established and has met regularly with Parkwood 

Leisure during the year. This has provided opportunities for Members to monitor 
customer comments and seek clarification directly from the contractor on the reasons 
for the comments and gain a good level of understanding to the problems that 
contribute towards customer dissatisfaction.  

 
5.4 The Working Group has also been pursuing the development of Service Improvement 

Plans for each of the facilities. Parkwood Leisure will outline these as part of their 
presentation to the Committee. The aim of these plans is to set out how the contractor 
will develop services at the facilities to meet the growing expectations of their 
customers.  

 
 The Leisure Management Contract defines a base level of service that any contractor 

would be expected to achieve. With the ongoing partnership working between the 
Council and Parkwood Leisure the expectations of the service is to deliver a first class 
service to Exeter that not only exceeds the requirement of the contract but meets the 
expectations of the customers. 

 
5.5 As part of the contract Parkwood Leisure are required to obtain and maintain Quest 

Accreditation. All the facilities with the exception of Northbrook Golf Course have 
achieved Quest Accreditation in the last twelve months. 

 

Page 6



  

 Quest is an independent audit of the facilities customer service and operational 
standards and is nationally recognised within the industry. All the facilities have been 
awarded a status of either satisfactory or good during their first assessment since 
Parkwood Leisure took on the contract. It is envisaged with the introduction of the 
customer focused service plans the facilities will endeavour to improve their Quest 
status and strive towards excellence with an ever improving accreditation rating. 
Facilities achieving an excellent status would be in the top quartile of leisure facilities in 
the country. 

 

6 FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
6.1 The following provides a headline summary of the financial information of the contract. 

More detailed information can be provided but it has to be treated as confidential in view 
of the contractual and competitive nature of the contract. 

 
6.2 In year one of the contract, Parkwood Leisure paid the Council £180,349 to manage the 

contract. In year two following a management fee adjustment in line with RPI and the 
Council’s contractual contribution to utility price adjustments Parkwood Leisure paid the 
Council £175,701 to manage the contract. 

 
6.3 The net income Parkwood Leisure received from managing the facilities in year one 

was £2,945,000 and in year two the net income was £3,081,000. 
 
6.4 Since the Parkwood Leisure contract commenced in October 2010 the cost of operating 

leisure facilities in the city has reduced. Under the previous leisure management 
operator the cost per head for the residents of Exeter for their Leisure Services was 
£13.26p. In the current financial year the cost per head is £7.40p. This is based on the 
population listed in the 2011 census of 117,800. 

 

7 RECOMMENDED 

 
7.1 That Scrutiny Committee note the content of the report and explore with Officers or 

with the Parkwood Leisure employees present any issues or comments they may wish 
to raise. 

 
Richard Ball 
Assistant Director Economy 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 

Background papers used in compiling this report:- 
 
 
 
S:PA/LP/113SCC8 
Date: 3.1.13 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
Summary of Customer Comments Received in Year Two of the Contract 

 
 

Facility Total for Year 1 Total for Year 2 Difference 

    

Clifton Hill Sports Centre                 16                  111                   +95 

Exeter Arena                 12                    19                     +7 

Isca Bowls & Bridge Centre          18                    15                      -3 

Northbrook Golf Course *                  0                      4                     +4 

Northbrook Swimming Pool                  4                    20                   +16 

Pyramids Swimming Centre                20                    52                   +32 

Riverside Leisure Centre                76                  135                   +59 

Wonford Sports Centre                14                    12                      -2 

Total              160                  368                 +208 

 
* Open April to October only 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 9



Appendix B 
Summary of Accidents and Incidents Received in Year Two of the Contract 

 
 

Facility Total for Year 1 Total for Year 2 Difference 

    

Clifton Hill Sports Centre                56                  38                   -18 

Exeter Arena                63                  47                   -16 

Isca Bowls & Bridge Centre           2                    4                    +2 

Northbrook Golf Course *                  0                    0                      0 

Northbrook Swimming Pool                13                  13                      0 

Pyramids Swimming Centre                27                  77                  +50 

Riverside Leisure Centre              125                131                    +6 

Wonford Sports Centre                33                  45                  +12 

Total              319                355                  +36 

 
* Open April to October only 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 1

0



 
Appendix C 

Summary of Customer Attendances in Year Two of the Contract 
 
 

Facility Total for Year 1 Total for Year 2 Difference Note 

     

Clifton Hill Sports Centre             72,000                67,000         -5,000   (-6.9%)  

Exeter Arena             46,000                49,000        +3,000   (+6.5%)  

Isca Bowls & Bridge Centre      28,000                36,000        +8,000   (+28%) 10 month contract in Yr 1 

Northbrook Golf Course             10,000                  7,000         -3,000   (-30%) Open April – October only 

Northbrook Swimming Pool             61,000                56,000         -5,000   (-8.2%)  

Pyramids Swimming Centre             92,000              100,000        +8,000   (+8.7%)  

Riverside Leisure Centre           171,000              225,000      +54,000   (+31.5%)  

Wonford Sports Centre             75,000                73,000         -2,000   (-2.6%)  

Total           555,000              613,000      +58,000   (+10.4%)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

1



 
 

P
a

g
e
 1

2



 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – COMMUNITY  
15 JANUARY 2013 

 

 ESTIMATES 2013/14 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1 Attached are the draft estimates for 2013/14, which were discussed at an informal meeting 
of Scrutiny Committee - Community on 12 December 2012 
 

1.2 This report outlines the strategic framework within which the estimates have been 
prepared, changes in accounting practices, which affect all budgets and detailed reasons 
for any significant changes in the Management Unit estimates. 
 

1.3 The budget has been amended to reflect the new management structure.  However the 
savings target for services, have in many cases been included as a one line saving to 
reflect the fact that the detail has yet to be finalised. 
  

2. BUDGET FRAMEWORK 

 

2.1 With regard to inflation, an overall allowance of £300,000 has been set aside for next year. 
This includes an assumption with regard to increases in pay and increases for utility costs 
and contracts being offset by increases for fees and charges. For the following three years 
an annual inflation allowance of £300,000 has also been included for planning purposes. 
The inflationary assumptions that have been included for next year are as follows: 
 

 • Pay Award    1.0%  

• Pay – Increments   0.5% 

• Electricity              8.0% 

• Gas              20.0% 

• Oil              12.0% 

• Water     5.1% 

• Insurance    3.0% 

• Rates     2.0% 

• Fuel     6.0% 

• General Inflation   0.0% - see para 2.2 below 

• Income (excluding car parks)   2.5% 
 

2.2 As a means of finding efficiency savings many non-pay budgets will again not be fully 
increased for inflation.  There will be some exceptions to this in particular where there are 
ongoing contractual arrangements in place and where the Council has to meet the full 
price increase e.g. insurance and fuel. Recently released figures show that the rate of 
Consumer Prices Index (CPI) inflation in the UK remained unchanged at 2.7% during 
November. Retail prices index (RPI) inflation, which includes housing costs, fell to 3% 
during November, down from 3.2% in October. 
 

2.3 With regard to interest rates the Bank of England has continued to put the base rate of 
interest on hold at only 0.5% since March 2009. Most analysts are predicting that interest 
are likely to remain at their historically low levels in the short term with perhaps only a 
modest increase towards the end of the next financial year. The low levels of interest rates 
affect the City Council in different ways. On the negative side the Council has to assume 
low investment returns on cash deposits. Conversely, on the positive side, the low interest 
rates currently prevailing means that the cost of short term borrowing remains low. This is 

Agenda Item 9

Page 13



particularly important to the City Council now that it has to make use of borrowing in order 
to fund a significant part of its capital programme.  
 

2.4 The Government has now announced the provisional two-year local government finance 
settlement covering 2013/14 and 2014/15.  For Exeter the guideline figures are as 
follows: 

 

• Formula Funding 2013/14  £7,811,885 (decrease 5.4% against 2012/13 
‘adjusted’ formula funding) 

 
The provisional settlement now indicates that in overall cash terms our 2013/14 formula 
funding will decrease by £445,922 against the 2012/13 ‘adjusted’ formula funding amount 
of £8,257,807. 
 

2.5 On 8 October 2012, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a £450 million fund for 
local authorities who decide to freeze council tax next year.  If they do, councils, police and 
fire authorities will stand to receive £225 million of funding in both financial years 2013/14 
and 2014/15, equivalent to raising their 2012/13 council tax by one per cent.  In addition, in 
2013/14 the Government will propose to lower the local authority tax referendum threshold 
to two per cent.  After freezing its council tax for the last 2 years, the budget strategy for 
next year assumes that council tax will increase by 2%, which will raise an extra £96,000.  
 

2.6 The New Homes Bonus is designed to create an effective fiscal incentive to encourage 
local authorities to facilitate housing growth.  The scheme provides local authorities with a 
New Homes Bonus grant, equal to the national average for the council tax band on each 
additional property and paid for the following six years as an un-ring-fenced grant.  There 
is also an enhancement for affordable homes.  Whereas previously DCLG has allocated 
additional funding for the scheme in 2011/12 and 2012/13, this is no longer the case from 
2013/14 onwards with funding for the scheme being ‘top-sliced’ from mainstream grant 
funding.  
 

2.7 To date the Council has received New Homes Bonus of £389,165 in 2011/12, £1,322,664 
in 2012/13 and is expecting to receive a further £2.3 million in 2013/14.  The Executive has 
previously determined how the New Homes Bonus funding will be allocated, with 30% and 
50% of the funding going towards community projects and major infrastructure respectively 
after a top slice for capacity building and neighbourhood planning. 
 

2.8 The Council has previously decided not to use any of its New Homes Bonus allocation to 
fund any of its revenue budget services.  Members may however wish to consider using 
part of the New Homes Bonus funding in order to meet some of the Council’s additional 
revenue costs that have arisen as a result of more homes being built e.g. more refuse bins 
to collect, more streets to keep clean etc.  
 

2.9 
 

It is expected that the available resources for the General Fund Capital Programme (other 
than borrowing) over the next 5 years will total about £3.3 million and the capital 
programme that can be funded other than by borrowing is therefore still quite substantial.  
In terms of the General Fund, the currently approved capital programme and proposed 
new bids total almost £22.2 million over the next 4 years with a resultant borrowing 
requirement of £18.9 million.  The current extra revenue cost of borrowing are £50,000 for 
each £1 million that is borrowed which means the future borrowing costs of the Council’s 
capital programme are significant and must be met within the Council’s overall revenue 
budget.  The Capital Programme must therefore be continually reviewed with a view to 
reducing the programme wherever possible.  With regard to proposed new capital bids, 
approval must be limited to those that are only absolutely essential.  New bids should only 
be successful if they meet strict criteria such as meeting a statutory or health and safety 
requirement, or if there is a compelling business case to show that they will save costs or 
generate extra revenue in the future.  A list of the proposed new schemes for Scrutiny 
Committee Resources is attached at Appendix 1. 

Page 14



 
2.10 
 

The changes in respect of 2013/14 Fees and Charges for the budget are included at 
Appendix 2. 
 

3. REVENUE BUDGET SAVINGS 

 

3.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan currently indicates that the savings required next year 
are £890,000 with further savings required in future years.  It is anticipated that the savings 
required for next year will be met from the current programme of structural change and 
service rationalisation.  The required savings over the medium term are set out in the table 
below:- 
 

3.2  

Year Required Savings 
£000 

 
2013/14 
2014/15 
2015/16 
2016/17 

 

Total 

 
 890 
  653 
  665 
  649 
 

2,857 

  
  

4. TRADING ACCOUNTS 

 

4.1 A decision has been taken to reintegrate the Trading Account Services back into the General 
Fund.  This will enable Members to have greater transparency of the costs associated with the 
services affected (Parks and Cleansing).  Rather than the Budget showing a one line transfer of 
the net cost of the service, the full breakdown of costs and income are included within each 
Management Unit. 
 

5. 

 

KEY REVENUE BUDGET CHANGES PROPOSED FOR 2013/14 

 

5.1 
 
 

The Revenue budgets are attached at Appendix 3.  The proposed budgets reflect a 
combination of budget increases and savings and the key changes are as follows: 

81A1 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

  
The management restructure has reduced pay costs in this unit by £12,780.   
 
Senior Management recharges to this unit have increased by £35,000 to reflect the new 
structure, offset by a £32,000 reduction in pay costs charged directly to this unit.   
 
Corporate support service recharges to this unit have reduced by £18,000. 
 
Drainage works are no longer undertaken by this unit resulting in a reduction in both 
income and supplies and premises costs of £20,000. 
 
The net cost of dealing with stray dogs has been increased by £5,500 to reflect current 
experience. 
 

81A3 LICENSING, FOOD, HEALTH & SAFETY 

  
The management restructure has reduced pay costs in this unit by £13,170.   
 
Senior Management recharges to this unit have increased by £3,000 to reflect the new 
structure. 

Page 15



 
The Asbestos Officer has transferred from the Contracts Unit (81C6) into this unit, 
increasing pay costs by £40,000.    
 
Corporate support service recharges to this unit have reduced by £19,000. 
 
The benefit of cost savings in the Business Support Team as a result of the management 
restructure and reduced support services has been reflected in reduced recharges to 
other services, reducing the income in this unit by £20,000. 
 

81A4 PUBLIC SAFETY 

  
The management restructure has reduced pay costs in this unit by £15,000.   
 
Senior Management recharges to this unit have increased by £12,000 to reflect the new 
structure, offset by an £18,000 reduction in pay costs charged directly to this unit.   
 
A reduction in the number of Community Patrollers has reduced pay costs by £77,000 
and transport costs by £7,000 
 
Corporate support service recharges to this unit have reduced by £27,000. 
 
Supplies and services costs will increase by £10,000 as a result of the additional 
cameras in the John Lewis car park. 
 
A reduction in Asset Improvement and Maintenance (AIMS) recharges has reduced 
premises costs by £4,000. 
 
The estimate for income from the Home Call Alarm service has been increased by 
£5,500 to reflect current levels.  
 

81A6 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 

  
As explained at 4.1 above, the trading accounts have now been incorporated into the 
estimates.  
 
The management restructure has reduced pay costs in this unit by £2,000.   
 
Senior Management recharges to this unit have increased by £23,000 to reflect the new 
structure, offset by a £3,000 reduction in pay costs charged directly to this unit.   
 
Corporate support service recharges to this unit have reduced by £40,000. 
 
The estimate for water costs has been increased by £4,000 to reflect the additional costs 
anticipated as a result of the new water feature in St Thomas park. 
 
Reduced pay (£5,000) and premises (£5,000) costs will arise as a result of transferring 
some responsibilities for sports pitches to clubs. 
 
A reduction in AIMS recharges has reduced premises costs by £15,000. 
 
Cleansing Services recharges have been reduced as described for Street Cleaning 
(81D4 below) by £63,000. 
 
Increased charges for allotments have increased the estimated income by £5,000 and 
income from electricity generated by the solar panels at the Belle Isle depot have 
increased the estimated income by a further £4,000 
 

Page 16



 

81A7 MUSEUMS 

  
The 2012-13 budget monitoring reports presented to this committee identified that the budget 
for the year in respect of utilities at the Museum is too low.  Therefore an additional amount of 
£100,000 has been included in the 2013-14 estimates to fund the shortfall.   
 
The additional amounts included are £35,000 for Electricity, £23,000 for Gas and £42,000 for 
National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR).  An appeal against the rateable value for the Museum 
has been lodged with the Valuation Office; the result of this appeal is expected in the near 
future.  
 
The AIMS estimates have decreased from the current year figure due to the departmental 
recharge estimate reducing (£16,800).  There has been a reduction in the premises 
maintenance estimate for the RAMM (£10,000) 
 
Estimates in respect of Rougemont House have been reduced significantly (£41,630) due to 
the expected sale of the property.  The estimates remaining relate to the ongoing 
maintenance costs and the support service recharges. 
 
Pay estimates are also less than the current year with Superannuation and National 
Insurance estimates being reduced. 
 
There has been a reduction in the income estimates due to less external grant income being 
received.  This has also meant the supplies and services estimates are lower.  However, 
additional income estimates have been included for the RAMM which will partially offset the 
reduced grant income. 
 
The support service recharge estimates have reduced with various estimates being less than 
the current year figure.  The significant estimates changes are reduced recharges to the 
service from Human Resources and Directorate Administration. 
 

81A8 LEISURE & SPORTS FACILITIES 

  
The estimate in respect of NNDR for the contracted facilities has been removed (£59,510) 
and transferred to the Resources Committee.  This estimate related to the discretionary rate 
relief awarded by the council for the contracted facilities. 
 
The AIMS estimate has been reduced with the departmental recharge and reactive repairs 
elements of this estimate reducing. 
 
A estimate has been funded for the Climate Reduction Contribution which is included as part 
of Leisure Facilities contract (£30,000). 
 
The annual contractual increase in respect of the leisure facilities contract has been reflected 
in the estimates.  
 
Support Service recharges to this management unit in respect of Directorate Administration, 
Information Technology and Legal Services have reduced resulting in a reduction in the 
estimated figure.  
 
The estimates in respect of the Scrapstore have been moved to 81B3 Properties below.  
 

Page 17



 

81B2 BEREAVEMENT SERVICES 

  
The management restructure has reduced pay costs in this unit by £18,400.   
 
Senior Management recharges to this unit have increased by £5,000 to reflect the new 
structure, offset by a £2,000 reduction in pay costs charged directly to this unit.   
 
Corporate support service recharges to this unit have reduced by £11,000. 
 
A reduction in AIMS recharges has reduced premises costs by £13,000. 
 
 NNDR costs are estimated to increase by £3,000. 
 
The estimates for materials, skips and other supplies have been reduced by £8,000, and 
Cleansing Services recharges have been reduced as described for Public Conveniences 
(81D5 below) by £10,000.  Transport cost estimates have increased by £1,000. 
. 
While increased fees are expected to increase income in some areas, recent experience 
suggests that other sources of income are reducing.  The net estimated impact is £5,000 
increased income. 
 

81B3 PROPERTIES 

  
This unit includes income and expenditure budgets in respect of various miscellaneous 
properties.  The estimate changes relate to a £7,000 reduction in the estimated utilities for the 
properties which has been offset by a £9,000 increase in the support services recharges. 
 
There has been a small increase in the rental income budgets for the properties.  
 
The budget in respect of the Scrapstore has been moved to this management unit from 81A8 
Leisure Facilities above.   
 

81B9 ADMINISTRATION SERVICE 

  
This service has been merged with other administrative and support services and is now 
included in the services within the Resources Scrutiny estimates. 
 

  
81C2 ADVISORY SERVICES 

 

  
Overall there is an additional budget requirement for 2013/14; however savings have been 
made on various elements of the budget within the management unit.  
 
A saving has been made on the employment estimates as a result of voluntary redundancy 
requests being accepted. This saving has been offset by the inclusion of an estimate for two 
grant funded posts being included in the employment costs estimate, however this cost will be 
funded by the grant income received.   
 
Staff allocations have been reviewed to better reflect the work that individuals carry out 
leading to additional costs on Housing Advice. 
 

The PSL Properties estimate for reactive repairs to properties has been increased in-line with 
the costs experienced in 2012/13.  The rental expenditure has been increased to reflect the 
annual RPI increase included in the lease agreements; however the income has remained at 
the current year estimate. 

 

Page 18



The Shaul’s Court estimate for security control and reactive repairs to the property have 
increased in line with historical expenditure.  A estimate has been included in respect of 
repairs works which is rechargeable to tenants, this additional estimate has been offset by the 
inclusion of the income estimate to account of the recovery of the expenditure from the 
tenant.  The income is not expected to increase in-line with the inflation assumption due to the 
high proportion of one bed units which attract a lower subsidy rate. 
 
Figures to date indicate that the 2012/13 Housing Benefit income estimate in respect of Bed 
and Breakfast accommodation is too low. Therefore this estimate has been amended to 
reflect the current and previous years actual income received.    
 
The Serviced Accommodation expenditure has increased due to the agreed annual CPI 
increase applicable to each property and an additional property being added to the portfolio.  
The income has increased due to number of properties leased increasing but the income 
receivable does not increase in-line with CPI.  The estimate for Supporting People funding 
from DCC reduced in 2012/13, the 2013/14 estimate has been amended to reflect the actual 
funding received. 
 
Rental income for all temporary accommodation is linked to DWP subsidy which within the 
current financial year is based on the January 2011 Local Housing Allowance; from April 2013 
it will be based on the Local Housing Allowance for that month, which will be some 10-15% 
lower. It is therefore of no financial benefit to increase rents beyond this point as the cost 
would only be met from cost centres from within the Housing Benefit service. 
 
A new cost centre has been included for 2 additional leased properties; the estimates show a 
net surplus for these properties.  
 
Shared House PSLs was a new cost centre for 2012/13 with estimates set assuming 2 
properties on the scheme.  The 2013/14 cost centre estimate has been revised to take 
account of the additional property on the scheme. 
 

81C3 HOUSING ENABLING 

  
The estimate for pay has reduced to reflect the post removed due to the voluntary 
redundancy application that was approved. 
 
Savings have been made on various supplies and services budgets with the estimates for 
advertising, publications/leaflets, consultants fees and solicitors and legal fees all reducing. 
 
The support services recharge estimates have reduced with recharges for Directorate 
Administration and Human Resources being the main reductions. 
 

Page 19



 

81C4 PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING 

  
The management restructure has reduced pay costs in this unit by £16,330.   
 
Senior Management recharges to this unit have increased by £22,000 to reflect the new 
structure, offset by a £22,000 reduction in pay costs charged directly to this unit.   
 
Other staff reductions have reduced the estimate for pay by £28,000. 
 
The £15,000 estimate for the Housing Condition Survey will not be required in 2013/14 
and has therefore been removed. 
 
Changes in the arrangements for car allowances have resulted in a £3,500 reduction in 
transport costs. 
 
Corporate support service recharges to this unit have reduced by £2,000. 
 
Income from licences for Houses in Multiple Occupation is expected to increase by 
£6,000. 
 

81C5 SUNDRY LANDS MAINTENANCE 

  
There are no material changes in this unit. 
 

81C6 CONTRACTS AND DIRECT SERVICES 

  
The estimates have reduced following the transfer of the Safety and Asbestos Officer to 
Environmental Health and the transfer of the Senior Architectural Surveyor to Engineering 
and Construction Services.  This has resulted in reduced salary estimates and reductions to 
their associated budgets for supplies and services, transport and support services. 
 
The salary estimates also reflect the effects of the senior management review, the deletion of 
a post within the Building Team following the redundancy of an operative, and the 
appointment of a surveyor and an administrator to assist with the increased kitchen and 
bathroom replacement programme. 
 
A £50,000 saving is also expected to be made within the unit during 2013/14 as part of the 
Council’s overall savings target. 
 
The full cost of this unit is recharged to other services. 
 

81C7 SENIOR MANAGEMENT - COMMUNITY 

  
The estimates relating to the former Director for Community and Environment and the 
secretarial support service have been removed, and replaced by the estimates for the 
Assistant Directors for Environment and Public Realm.  These costs are fully recharged 
to other units within this and the Economy Committees. 
 

Page 20



 

 CLEANSING SERVICES 

  
As explained at 4.1 above, the trading accounts have now been incorporated into the 
estimates.  In the case of Cleansing Services, this has necessitated a complete change 
in the structure of the accounts so that sufficient information can be shown for each part 
of the service.  The former management units 81A2 and 81B6 have therefore been 
replaced by six new management units, as shown below.   
 
Wherever possible, management and supervision salaries, running costs and 
administrative costs have been charged to the individual services rather than the 
overhead account, as was done in the past.  Overhead costs which cannot be attributed 
to any service are now shown separately in unit 81D7 below rather than being 
apportioned to the services.  This has led to an increase in direct costs in the units and a 
reduction in overhead recharges. 
 
The cost of providing cleansing services to other services - including Bereavement 
Services, Grounds Maintenance, Waterways and Engineers – has not been recharged to 
those services in the 2013/14 estimates so that the true cost of Cleansing Services can 
more easily be identified.  This has increased the net cost of Cleansing Services while 
decreasing the costs of those services not recharged.   
 

81D2 DOMESTIC REFUSE COLLECTION 

 

  
The impact of charging pay costs for supervisors and managers direct to the unit rather 
than to the overhead account has increased pay costs in this service. 
 
The cost of water and trade effluent charges relating to the vehicle washdown has been 
charged direct to this unit rather than to the overhead account increasing premises costs. 
 
The cost of some supplies and services have been moved to other units within Cleansing 
Services resulting in a reduction in the estimate for this service. 
 
The estimates for fuel and fleet maintenance and insurance costs have been reduced. 
 
Support service recharges have reduced as a result of the change in the way we have 
accounted for overheads in 2013/14. 
 
Income from charges for Domestic Refuse bins is estimated at £25,000.   
 

81D4 STREET CLEANSING 

  
The impact of charging pay costs for supervisors and managers direct to the unit rather 
than to the overhead account has increased pay costs in this service. 
 
The estimates for fuel and fleet maintenance and insurance costs have been increased. 
 
Support service recharges have reduced as a result of the change in the way we have 
accounted for overheads in 2013/14. 
 
Recharges to other services have been reduced as explained above. 
 

Page 21



 

81D5 PUBLIC CONVENIENCES 

  
The impact of charging pay costs for supervisors and managers direct to the unit rather 
than to the overhead account has increased pay costs in this service. 
 
The estimates for water and electricity in Public Conveniences has been reduced by 
£36,500 reflecting reductions in these costs being experienced following improvements 
to the facilities.  In addition, AIMS recharges to this service have reduced by £3,000. 
 
Support service recharges have reduced as a result of the change in the way we have 
accounted for overheads in 2013/14. 
 
Recharges to other services have been reduced as explained above. 
 

81D6 CHARGEABLE SERVICES 

  
This unit incorporates all Cleansing Services which recharge their costs either to other 
services within the Council or to the public.  Associated overheads are recharged to this 
unit from the Overhead and Fleet unit (81D7 below) so that the performance of these 
services can be more accurately calculated.  The costs of providing the internal services 
is recharged in full to the relevant services. 
 
The net cost of the Special Collection service has increased as a result of a £10,000 
reduction in income from the service. 
 
The cost of waste disposal for the Trade Refuse collection service is expected to 
increase by £58,000 as a result of the increased weights being collected and the 
increase in landfill tax.   Income is expected to increase by a similar amount as these 
costs are passed on to customers. Decreased running costs and overheads are 
expected to increase the net surplus in this unit. 
 
The income from Trade Recycling collection customers is expected to increase, but the 
falling prices being experienced for the materials collected is expected to result in a net 
£5,000 reduction in income for this service.  However, some cost reductions have been 
made which are expected to enable the service to generate net income only slightly less 
than the current year target. 
 
The estimate for pay costs in the Garden Waste service has been increased by £58,000 
as the growth of the service has made it necessary to increase staffing.  This is partially 
offset by £35,000 additional income.  These factors are expected to reduce the surplus 
generated by this service. 
 
 

81D7 EXTON ROAD OVERHEADS AND FLEET 

  
As explained above, all overhead costs which cannot be directly attributed to any service 
are now included here.  A proportion of these costs is allocated to the Rechargeable 
Services unit (81D6 above) and the residual costs are reflected in this unit. 
 

Page 22



 

81D8 RECYCLING 

  
The management restructure has reduced pay costs in this unit by £11,380.   
 
A voluntary redundancy has resulted in reduced pay costs in this unit. 
 
Utility costs for the vehicle washdown are now charged direct to the services using it 
resulting in reduced premises costs and income for this unit.   
 
A reduction in goods purchased an resold has resulted in reduced estimates for both 
supplies and services and corresponding income. 
 
Increased haulage costs will arise as a result of some materials having to be sent to a 
more distant location.  However, this is partially offset by a reduction in the cost of 
maintaining plant and vehicles used in the service. 
 
Support service recharges have reduced as a result of the change in the way we have 
accounted for overheads in 2013/14. 
 
The estimate for income from the sale of recyclates has been reduced to reflect the lower 
prices being achieved in the current economic climate. 
 
 

 
 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR  ASSISTANT DIRECTOR FINANCE 
 
 
S:PA/LP/Cttee/113SCC7 
3.1.13 

 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report  
 
None 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

1

F
u

tu
re

S
C

H
E

M
E

S
L

IS
T

E
D

W
IT

H
IN

C
O

U
N

C
IL

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
S

2
0
1
3
/1

4
2
0
1
4
/1

5
2
0
1
5
/1

6
Y

e
a
rs

F
u

n
d

in
g

£
£

£
£

H
E

L
P

M
E

F
IN

D
S

O
M

E
W

H
E

R
E

S
U

IT
A

B
L

E
T

O
L

IV
E

1
D

is
a
b
le

d
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

G
ra

n
ts

2
9
0
,0

0
0

2
9
0
,0

0
0

2
9
0
,0

0
0

2
9
0
,0

0
0

E
xt

e
rn

a
l
G

ra
n
t

2
W

a
rm

U
p

E
xe

te
r/

P
L
E

A
s
c
h
e
m

e
1
0
0
,0

0
0

#
1
0
0
,0

0
0

#
1
0
0
,0

0
0

#
1
0
0
,0

0
0

#
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

3
R

e
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

G
ra

n
ts

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

#
5
0
,0

0
0

#
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

4
P

ri
v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
R

e
n
e
w

a
l
S

c
h
e
m

e
1
4
3
,8

3
0

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

5
W

e
s
s
e
x

L
o
a
n

S
c
h
e
m

e
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

#
1
0
0
,0

0
0

#
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

S
u

b
T

o
ta

l
-

H
e
lp

m
e

fi
n

d
s
o

m
e
w

h
e
re

s
u

it
a
b

le
to

li
v
e

5
8
3
,8

3
0

5
4
0
,0

0
0

5
4
0
,0

0
0

4
4
0
,0

0
0

P
R

O
V

ID
E

G
R

E
A

T
T

H
IN

G
S

F
O

R
M

E
T

O
S

E
E

D
O

A
N

D
V

IS
IT

1
P

la
y

A
re

a
R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
ts

8
0
,0

0
0

#
1
2
0
,0

0
0

#
S

e
c
ti
o
n

1
0
6

£
1
8
1
,6

5
0

a
n
d

b
o
rr

o
w

in
g

2
S

p
o
rt

s
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

5
0
,0

0
0

#
5
0
,0

0
0

#
5
0
,0

0
0

#
1
0
0
,0

0
0

#
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

3
R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

o
f

R
u
n
n
in

g
T

ra
c
k

a
t

E
xe

te
r

A
re

n
a

7
5
0
,0

0
0

#
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

4
N

e
w

S
w

im
m

in
g

P
o
o
l
a
n
d

L
e
is

u
re

C
e
n
tr

e
tb

c
#

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

a
n
d

N
e
w

H
o
m

e
s

B
o
n
u
s

S
u

b
T

o
ta

l
-

P
ro

v
id

e
g

re
a
t

th
in

g
s

fo
r

m
e

to
s
e
e

d
o

a
n

d
v
is

it
8
8
0
,0

0
0

1
7
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

O
T

H
E

R

1
V

e
h
ic

le
R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
4
5
0
,0

0
0

#
4
0
0
,0

0
0

#
4
0
0
,0

0
0

#
4
0
0
,0

0
0

#
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

S
u

b
T

o
ta

l
-

O
th

e
r

4
5
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
C

A
P

IT
A

L
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

1
,9

1
3
,8

3
0

1
,1

1
0
,0

0
0

9
9
0
,0

0
0

9
4
0
,0

0
0

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
F

U
N

D
-

C
A

P
IT

A
L

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
2
0
1
3
/1

4
A

N
D

F
U

T
U

R
E

Y
E

A
R

S

1

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

A
M

U
S

E
U

M

(1
)

R
A

M
M

-
A

d
m

is
s
io

n
to

M
u
s
e
u
m

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
d
o
n
a
ti
o
n

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
d
o
n
a
ti
o
n

-
F

re
e

A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
,
ta

lk
s
,
to

u
rs

,
s
p
e
c
ia

l
e
v
e
n
ts

,

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

e
tc

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
d
o
n
a
ti
o
n

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
d
o
n
a
ti
o
n

-
C

h
a
rg

in
g

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
,
ta

lk
s
,
to

u
rs

,
s
p
e
c
ia

l
e
v
e
n
ts

,

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

e
tc

-
F

a
m

ily
F

u
n

D
a
ys

(2
)

R
A

M
M

B
o

o
k
e
d

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

a
l
S

e
s
s
io

n
s

-
A

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
yi

n
g

T
e
a
c
h
e
rs

-
C

h
ild

(5
-1

7
ye

a
rs

)

-
O

ff
s
it
e

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
C

h
a
rg

e

(3
)

S
t.

N
ic

h
o

la
s

P
ri

o
ry

-
A

d
u
lt

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
4
.0

0
-

4
.0

0
3
.5

0
-

3
.5

0

-
P

re
s
c
h
o
o
l
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
d
o
n
a
ti
o
n

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
d
o
n
a
ti
o
n

-
C

h
ild

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
(5

-
1
7

ye
a
rs

)
1
.5

0
-

1
.5

0
1
.5

0
-

1
.5

0

-
F

a
m

ily
ra

te
(2

x
a
d
u
lt
s

a
n
d

u
p

to
3

c
h
ild

re
n
)

1
0
.0

0
-

1
0
.0

0
9
.0

0
9
.0

0

-
S

tu
d
e
n
ts

(p
ro

o
f

o
f

s
ta

tu
s

re
q
u
ir
e
d
)

2
.0

0
-

2
.0

0
1
.7

5
-

1
.7

5

-
E

C
C

X
C

a
rd

h
o
ld

e
r,

A
d
u
lt

2
.0

0
-

2
.0

0
1
.7

5
-

1
.7

5

-
E

C
C

X
C

a
rd

h
o
ld

e
r,

C
h
ild

0
.7

5
-

0
.7

5
0
.7

5
-

0
.7

5

-
S

e
n
io

r
C

o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
(o

v
e
r

6
0

ye
a
rs

)
3
.0

0
-

3
.0

0
2
.5

0
-

2
.5

0

(4
)

S
t

N
ic

h
o

la
s

P
ri

o
ry

B
o

o
k
e
d

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

a
l
S

e
s
s
io

n
s

(a
)

-
B

o
o
k
e
d

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
s
e
s
s
io

n
s

(s
c
h
o
o
ls

,
c
o
lle

g
e
s

e
tc

)

(b
)

-
A

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
yi

n
g

T
e
a
c
h
e
rs

(c
)

-
C

h
ild

(5
-1

7
ye

a
rs

),
b
o
o
k
e
d

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
s
e
s
s
io

n

(d
)

-
A

d
u
lt
,
E

a
rl
y

Y
e
a
rs

b
o
o
k
e
d

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
s
e
s
s
io

n

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

2
0
1
3
-1

4
A

g
re

e
d

2
0
1
2
-1

3

N
o
w

c
o
v
e
re

d
in

(1
)

a
b
o
v
e
,
u
n
d
e
r

th
e

C
h
a
rg

in
g

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
,
ta

lk
s
,
to

u
rs

,
s
p
e
c
ia

l
e
v
e
n
ts

,
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

e
tc

D
e
le

te
d

it
e
m

s
c
o
v
e
re

d
b
y

n
e
w

e
n
tr

y
'B

o
o
k
e
d

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
s
e
s
s
io

n
s

-
C

o
s
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
'

N
o
w

c
o
v
e
re

d
in

(1
)

a
b
o
v
e
,
u
n
d
e
r

th
e

C
h
a
rg

in
g

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
,
ta

lk
s
,
to

u
rs

,
s
p
e
c
ia

l
e
v
e
n
ts

,
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

e
tc

P
ri
c
e
s

v
a
ry

-
a
ll

a
re

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

e
a
c
h

q
u
a
rt

e
r

in

R
A

M
M

's
e
v
e
n
ts

b
o
o
k
le

t
a
n
d

o
n

R
A

M
M

's
w

e
b
s
it
e

w
w

w
.r

a
m

m
u
s
e
u
m

.o
rg

.u
k

N
o
w

c
o
v
e
re

d
b
y

c
h
a
rg

in
g

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
a
b
o
v
e

P
ri
c
e
s

v
a
ry

-
a
ll

a
re

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

e
a
c
h

q
u
a
rt

e
r

in

R
A

M
M

's
e
v
e
n
ts

b
o
o
k
le

t
a
n
d

o
n

R
A

M
M

's
w

e
b
s
it
e

w
w

w
.r

a
m

m
u
s
e
u
m

.o
rg

.u
k

N
o
w

c
o
v
e
re

d
b
y

c
h
a
rg

in
g

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
a
b
o
v
e

C
o
s
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

C
o
s
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

C
h
a
rg

e
d
e
le

te
d

in
2
0
1
2
-1

3

Page 27



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(e
)

-
C

h
ild

(0
-5

ye
a
rs

),
E

a
rl
y

Y
e
a
rs

b
o
o
k
e
d

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l

s
e
s
s
io

n

(f
)

-
A

d
u
lt
,
d
a
yt

im
e

g
u
id

e
d

to
u
r

5
.0

0
-

5
.0

0

(g
)

-
A

d
u
lt
,
e
v
e
n
in

g
g
u
id

e
d

to
u
r

7
.0

0
-

7
.0

0

(h
)

-
S

tu
d
e
n
ts

(p
ro

o
f

o
f

s
ta

tu
s

re
q
u
ir
e
d
)

3
.5

0
-

3
.5

0

(i
)

-
E

C
C

X
C

a
rd

h
o
ld

e
r,

A
d
u
lt

2
.5

0
-

2
.5

0

(j
)

-
A

d
u
lt
,
d
a
yt

im
e

to
u
r

fo
r

u
p

to
1
5

p
e
o
p
le

,

p
e
r

h
o
u
r.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
p
e
o
p
le

a
t
£
3
.0

0
e
a
c
h
.
N

o
te

th
a
t
S

t
N

ic
h
o
la

s
P

ri
o
ry

H
ir
e

C
h
a
rg

e
a
ls

o
a
p
p
lie

s

if
a
rr

a
n
g
e
d

o
n

a
d
a
y

th
e

m
u
s
e
u
m

is
n
o
t
u
s
u
a
lly

o
p
e
n
,
s
e
e

s
e
c
ti
o
n

(5
)

4
5
.0

0
-

4
5
.0

0

(k
)

-
A

d
u
lt
,
e
v
e
n
in

g
to

u
r

fo
r

u
p

to
1
5

p
e
o
p
le

,

p
e
r

h
o
u
r.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
p
e
o
p
le

a
t
£
3
.0

0
e
a
c
h
.
N

o
te

th
a
t
S

t
N

ic
h
o
la

s
P

ri
o
ry

H
ir
e

C
h
a
rg

e
a
ls

o
a
p
p
lie

s

if
a
rr

a
n
g
e
d

o
n

a
d
a
y

th
e

m
u
s
e
u
m

is
n
o
t
u
s
u
a
lly

o
p
e
n
,
s
e
e

s
e
c
ti
o
n

(5
)

4
5
.0

0
-

4
5
.0

0

(5
)

H
ir

e
C

h
a
rg

e
s

N
O

T
E

:
C

a
te

ri
n
g

-
c
o
s
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
.

O
th

e
r

c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
s

o
f

ro
o
m

,
g
a
lle

ry
h
ir
e

a
re

a
v
a
ila

b
le

o
n

re
q
u
e
s
t
-

c
o
n
ta

c
t
J
a
c
q
u
i
C

h
a
n
n
o
n

o
n

0
1
3
9
2

2
6
5
3
8
4

(a
)

E
v
e
n
in

g
P

ri
v
a
te

R
o
o
m

H
ir
e

(S
t.

N
ic

h
o
la

s
P

ri
o
ry

,
R

o
u
g
e
m

o
n
t)

-
M

in
im

u
m

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

7
5
.0

0
1
5
.0

0
9
0
.0

0

-
C

h
a
ri
ty

ra
te

a
n
d

n
o
t-

fo
r-

p
ro

fi
t
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

(b
)

M
e
e
ti
n
g

R
o
o
m

H
ir
e

-
M

in
im

u
m

d
a
yt

im
e

h
o
u
rl
y

ra
te

3
3
.3

3
6
.6

7
4
0
.0

0

-
M

in
im

u
m

e
v
e
n
in

g
h
o
u
rl
y

ra
te

5
0
.0

0
1
0
.0

0
6
0
.0

0

-
C

h
a
ri
ty

ra
te

a
n
d

n
o
t-

fo
r-

p
ro

fi
t
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

-
C

a
te

ri
n
g

C
o
s
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

C
o
s
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

(c
)

M
e
e
ti
n
g
/S

e
m

in
a
r

R
o
o
m

H
ir
e

(R
A

M
M

-o
p
e
n
in

g
D

e
c

2
0
1
1
)

-
M

in
im

u
m

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

(d
a
y

ra
te

)

-
M

in
im

u
m

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

(e
v
e
n
in

g
ra

te
)

-
C

h
a
ri
ty

ra
te

o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

3
0
%

d
is

c
o
u
n
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

N
o
w

c
o
v
e
re

d
b
y

n
e
w

ro
o
m

/g
a
lle

ry
h
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
s
,

s
e
e

(k
)

to
(r

)
b
e
lo

w
fo

r
d
e
ta

ils

N
o
w

c
o
v
e
re

d
b
y

n
e
w

ro
o
m

/g
a
lle

ry
h
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
s
,

s
e
e

(k
)

to
(r

)
b
e
lo

w
fo

r
d
e
ta

ils
3
0
%

d
is

c
o
u
n
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

N
o
w

c
h
a
rg

e
d

a
s

p
e
r

(6
)

(b
)

a
b
o
v
e

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
s
e
s
s
io

n
s

-
C

o
s
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
'

C
h
a
n
g
e
d

fr
o
m

p
e
r

h
e
a
d

to
p
e
r

h
o
u
r,

s
e
e

(j
)

b
e
lo

w

N
o
w

c
o
v
e
re

d
b
y

n
e
w

ro
o
m

/g
a
lle

ry
h
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
s

b
e
lo

w

C
h
a
n
g
e
d

fr
o
m

p
e
r

h
e
a
d

to
p
e
r

h
o
u
r,

s
e
e

(k
)

b
e
lo

w

C
o
v
e
re

d
b
y

'b
o
o
k
e
d

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
s
e
s
s
io

n
s

-
c
o
s
t

o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
'

C
h
a
rg

e
d
e
le

te
d

P
re

v
io

u
s

c
h
a
rg

e
d

in
(f

)
a
b
o
v
e

P
re

v
io

u
s

c
h
a
rg

e
d

in
(g

)
a
b
o
v
e

Page 28



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(d
)

G
a
lle

ry
H

ir
e

-
M

in
im

u
m

d
a
yt

im
e

h
o
u
rl
y

ra
te

8
3
.3

3
1
6
.6

7
1
0
0
.0

0

-
M

in
im

u
m

e
v
e
n
in

g
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

ra
te

1
0
0
.0

0
2
0

1
2
0
.0

0

-
C

h
a
ri
ty

ra
te

a
n
d

n
o
t-

fo
r-

p
ro

fi
t
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

-
C

a
te

ri
n
g

C
o
s
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

C
o
s
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

(e
)

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
o
n

s
a
le

s
in

g
a
lle

ri
e
s

3
0
%

+
V

A
T

3
0
%

+
V

A
T

(f
)

B
o
o
k
e
d

le
c
tu

re
s
,
to

u
rs

a
n
d

c
u
ra

to
ri
a
l
a
d
v
ic

e

-
L
e
c
tu

re
b
y

c
u
ra

to
r,

m
in

im
u
m

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

5
0
.0

0
-

5
0
.0

0
4
0
.0

0
-

4
0
.0

0

-
R

A
M

M
to

u
r

b
y

c
u
ra

to
r

fo
r

u
p

to
1
2

p
e
o
p
le

,

m
in

im
u
m

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

4
1
.0

0
-

4
1
.0

0

-
C

u
ra

to
ri
a
l
a
d
v
ic

e
,
m

in
im

u
m

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

4
1
.0

0
-

4
1
.0

0

-
L
e
c
tu

re
/t
o
u
r

b
y

R
A

M
M

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r

fo
r

u
p

to
1
2

p
e
o
p
le

,
m

in
im

u
m

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

3
0
.0

0
-

3
0
.0

0

-
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

S
tu

d
y

to
u
r

b
y

R
A

M
M

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r

fo
r

u
p

to
8

p
e
o
p
le

,
m

in
im

u
m

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

3
0
.0

0
-

3
0
.0

0

(g
)

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

-
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

la
b
o
ra

to
ry

s
p
a
c
e

h
ir
e

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

4
.0

8
0
.8

2
4
.9

0
4
.0

0
0
.8

0
4
.8

0

-
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p

s
p
a
c
e

h
ir
e

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

3
.0

8
0
.6

2
3
.7

0
3
.0

0
0
.6

0
3
.6

0

-
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

w
o
rk

,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

4
1
.0

0
8
.2

0
4
9
.2

0
4
0
.0

0
8
.0

0
4
8
.0

0

-
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

w
o
rk

,
(3

5
h
o
u
rs

p
lu

s
)

p
e
r

d
a
y

2
5
0
.0

0
5
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0

-
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

m
o
u
n
tm

a
k
in

g
,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

3
0
.7

5
6
.1

5
3
6
.9

0
3
0
.0

0
6
.0

0
3
6
.0

0

-
M

in
im

u
m

x
-r

a
y

c
h
a
rg

e
1
5
0
.0

0
3
0
.0

0
1
8
0
.0

0

(h
)

A
rc

h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l
a
rc

h
iv

e
s

-
P

e
r

b
o
x

O
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

O
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

(i
)

O
b
je

c
t
L
o
a
n

M
in

£
1
5
.0

0
+

V
A

T
p
e
r

m
o
n
th

M
in

£
1
0
.0

0
+

V
A

T
p
e
r

m
o
n
th

(j
)

P
o
rt

a
b
le

m
e
d
ia

p
la

ye
rs

,
h
ir
e

a
n
d

d
e
p
o
s
it

re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

H
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
n
o
t
a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

to
c
e
rt

a
in

s
p
e
c
ia

l

n
e
e
d
s

v
is

it
o
rs

(k
)

S
t.

N
ic

h
o
la

s
P

ri
o
ry

-
D

a
yt

im
e
,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

(m
in

im
u
m

o
f

3
h
o
u
r

h
ir
e
)

6
0
.0

0
1
2
.0

0
7
2
.0

0

-
E

v
e
n
in

g
,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

(m
in

im
u
m

o
f

3
h
o
u
r

h
ir
e
)

9
0
.0

0
1
8
.0

0
1
0
8
.0

0
N

o
c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

3
0
%

d
is

c
o
u
n
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

N
o
w

c
o
v
e
re

d
b
y

n
e
w

ro
o
m

/g
a
lle

ry
h
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
s
,

s
e
e

(k
)

to
(r

)
b
e
lo

w
fo

r
d
e
ta

ils

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

C
o
n
ta

c
t
R

A
M

M
re

c
e
p
ti
o
n

fo
r

d
e
ta

ils
0
1
3
9
2

2
6
5
8
5
8

C
o
n
ta

c
t
R

A
M

M
re

c
e
p
ti
o
n

fo
r

d
e
ta

ils
0
1
3
9
2

2
6
5
8
5
8

Page 29



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(l
)

G
a
rd

e
n

M
e
e
ti
n
g

R
o
o
m

-
D

a
yt

im
e
,
m

in
im

u
m

o
f

3
h
o
u
r

h
ir
e

1
5
0
.0

0
3
0
.0

0
1
8
0
.0

0

-
D

a
yt

im
e
,
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
h
o
u
rs

,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

5
0
.0

0
1
0
.0

0
6
0
.0

0

-
E

v
e
n
in

g
,
m

in
im

u
m

o
f

3
h
o
u
r

h
ir
e

3
5
0
.0

0
7
0
.0

0
4
2
0
.0

0

-
E

v
e
n
in

g
,
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
h
o
u
rs

,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

7
0
.0

0
1
4
.0

0
8
4
.0

0

(m
)

M
e
e
ti
n
g

R
o
o
m

A

-
D

a
yt

im
e
,
m

in
im

u
m

o
f

3
h
o
u
r

h
ir
e

1
5
0
.0

0
3
0
.0

0
1
8
0
.0

0

-
D

a
yt

im
e
,
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
h
o
u
rs

,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

5
0
.0

0
1
0
.0

0
6
0
.0

0

-
E

v
e
n
in

g
,
m

in
im

u
m

o
f

3
h
o
u
r

h
ir
e

3
5
0
.0

0
7
0
.0

0
4
2
0
.0

0

-
E

v
e
n
in

g
,
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
h
o
u
rs

,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

7
0
.0

0
1
4
.0

0
8
4
.0

0

(n
)

M
e
e
ti
n
g

R
o
o
m

B

-
D

a
yt

im
e
,
m

in
im

u
m

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

9
0
.0

0
1
8
.0

0
1
0
8
.0

0

(o
)

M
e
e
ti
n
g

R
o
o
m

s
A

&
B

-
D

a
yt

im
e
,
m

in
im

u
m

o
f

3
h
o
u
r

h
ir
e

2
0
0
.0

0
4
0
.0

0
2
4
0
.0

0

-
D

a
yt

im
e
,
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
h
o
u
rs

,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

7
0
.0

0
1
4
.0

0
8
4
.0

0

-
E

v
e
n
in

g
,
m

in
im

u
m

o
f

3
h
o
u
r

h
ir
e

4
0
0
.0

0
8
0
.0

0
4
8
0
.0

0

-
E

v
e
n
in

g
,
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
h
o
u
rs

,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

7
0
.0

0
1
4
.0

0
8
4
.0

0

(p
)

G
a
lle

ry
2
0

-
D

a
yt

im
e
,
m

in
im

u
m

o
f

3
h
o
u
rs

h
ir
e

3
6
0
.0

0
7
2
.0

0
4
3
2
.0

0

-
D

a
yt

im
e
,
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
h
o
u
rs

,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

1
0
0
.0

0
2
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0

-
E

a
rl
y

e
v
e
n
in

g
7
5
0
.0

0
1
5
0
.0

0
9
0
0
.0

0

-
F

u
ll

e
v
e
n
in

g
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0

-
C

h
a
ri
ty

,
n
o
n
-p

ro
fi
t
m

a
k
in

g
,
s
c
h
o
o
l
d
is

c
o
u
n
t

C
o
s
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

C
o
s
t
o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

(q
)

C
o
u
rt

ya
rd

G
a
lle

ry

-
D

a
yt

im
e
,
m

in
im

u
m

o
f

3
h
o
u
r

h
ir
e

3
6
0
.0

0
7
2
.0

0
4
3
2
.0

0

-
D

a
yt

im
e
,
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
h
o
u
rs

,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

1
0
0
.0

0
2
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

Page 30



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

-
E

a
rl
y

e
v
e
n
in

g
7
5
0
.0

0
1
5
0
.0

0
9
0
0
.0

0

-
F

u
ll

e
v
e
n
in

g
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0

(r
)

R
A

M
M

-
E

v
e
n
in

g
,
p
e
r

h
o
u
r

(m
in

im
u
m

o
f

3
h
o
u
rs

h
ir
e
)

3
5
0
.0

0
7
0
.0

0
4
2
0
.0

0

(6
)

P
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

ic
C

h
a
rg

e
s
-

P
ro

fi
t

M
a
k
in

g
P

ro
je

c
ts

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
y

is
a
v
a
ila

b
le

o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

w
ill

b
e

c
h
a
rg

e
d

o
n

a
n

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l
b
a
s
is

.

(a
)

D
ig

it
a
l
Im

a
g
e
s

(i
)

N
e
w

Im
a
g
e
s

-
H

ig
h

q
u
a
lit

y
re

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

ti
ff

1
0
0
.0

0
2
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0
6
7
.0

8
1
3
.4

2
8
0
.5

0

(i
i)

E
x
is

ti
n
g

Im
a
g
e
s

(d
ig

it
a
l
o
r

s
c
a
n
n
e
d
)

-
W

e
b

q
u
a
lit

y
jp

e
g

1
1
.2

5
2
.2

5
1
3
.5

0
1
1
.0

0
2
.2

0
1
3
.2

0

-
H

ig
h

q
u
a
lit

y
jp

e
g

1
4
.8

3
2
.9

7
1
7
.8

0
1
4
.5

0
2
.9

0
1
7
.4

0

-
H

ig
h

q
u
a
lit

y
re

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

ti
ff

2
2
.0

0
4
.4

0
2
6
.4

0
2
1
.5

0
4
.3

0
2
5
.8

0

-
Im

a
g
e

s
e
n
t
v
ia

e
m

a
il

(i
f

p
o
s
s
ib

le
)

N
o

C
h
a
rg

e
N

o
C

h
a
rg

e

-
P

o
s
t
to

U
K

1
.5

4
0
.3

1
1
.8

5
1
.5

0
0
.3

0
1
.8

0

-
P

o
s
t
to

E
u
ro

p
e

2
.0

8
0
.4

2
2
.5

0
2
.0

0
0
.4

0
2
.4

0

-
P

o
s
t
to

o
u
ts

id
e

E
u
ro

p
e

3
.5

8
0
.7

2
4
.3

0
3
.5

0
0
.7

0
4
.2

0

(7
)

R
e
p

ro
d

u
c
ti

o
n

C
h

a
rg

e
s
-P

ro
fi

t
M

a
k
in

g
P

ro
je

c
ts

N
O

T
E

:
F

o
r

P
ri
n
t
ru

n
s

o
v
e
r

1
0
,0

0
0

a
d
d

5
0
%

o
f

re
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

fe
e
.

A
ll

fe
e
s

c
o
v
e
r

o
n
e

e
d
it
io

n
,
o
n
e

IS
B

N
o
n
ly

.

F
o
r

p
ri
n
t
ru

n
s

u
n
d
e
r

5
0
0

re
d
u
c
e

re
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

fe
e

b
y

2
5
%

(a
)

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
b
o
o
k
,
jo

u
rn

a
l
e
tc

.

(i
)

O
n
e

C
o
u
n
tr

y,
O

n
e

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e

-
In

s
id

e
-

B
la

c
k

a
n
d

W
h
it
e

4
5
.5

0
9
.1

0
5
4
.6

0
4
5
.5

0
9
.1

0
5
4
.6

0

-
C

o
lo

u
r

9
0
.5

0
1
8
.1

0
1
0
8
.6

0
9
0
.5

0
1
8
.1

0
1
0
8
.6

0

-
C

o
v
e
r

-
B

la
c
k

a
n
d

W
h
it
e

7
9
.0

0
1
5
.8

0
9
4
.8

0
7
9
.0

0
1
5
.8

0
9
4
.8

0

-
C

o
lo

u
r

1
4
6
.0

0
2
9
.2

0
1
7
5
.2

0
1
4
6
.0

0
2
9
.2

0
1
7
5
.2

0

(i
i)

W
o
rl
d

R
ig

h
ts

,
O

n
e

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e

-
In

s
id

e
-

B
la

c
k

a
n
d

W
h
it
e

5
1
.5

0
1
0
.3

0
6
1
.8

0
5
1
.5

0
1
0
.3

0
6
1
.8

0

-
C

o
lo

u
r

1
1
3
.5

0
2
2
.7

0
1
3
6
.2

0
1
1
3
.5

0
2
2
.7

0
1
3
6
.2

0

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

N
o

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
rg

e

N
O

T
E

:
B

y
v
is

it
in

g
p

ri
n

ts
.r

a
m

m
u

s
e
u

m
.o

rg
.u

k
yo

u
c
a
n

c
re

a
te

p
ri
n
ts

,
c
a
n
v
a
s

p
ri
n
ts

,
m

u
g
s
,
g
re

e
ti
n
g
s

c
a
rd

s
a
n
d

p
o
s
tc

a
rd

s
fr

o
m

a
s
e
le

c
ti
o
n

o
f

R
A

M
M

im
a
g
e
s
.

W
e

h
a
v
e

s
e
le

c
ti
o
n

o
f

R
A

M
M

im
a
g
e
s

a
v
a
ila

b
le

o
n

w
w

w
.b

ri
d
g
e
m

a
n
.c

o
.u

k
a
v
a
ila

b
le

fo
r

u
s
e

in
p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

a
n
d

a
s

p
ri
n
ts

.

Page 31



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

-
C

o
v
e
r

-
B

la
c
k

a
n
d

W
h
it
e

1
1
8
.0

0
2
3
.6

0
1
4
1
.6

0
1
1
8
.0

0
2
3
.6

0
1
4
1
.6

0

-
C

o
lo

u
r

2
0
4
.0

0
4
0
.8

0
2
4
4
.8

0
2
0
4
.0

0
4
0
.8

0
2
4
4
.8

0

(i
ii)

W
o
rl
d

R
ig

h
ts

,
M

u
lt
i
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e

-
In

s
id

e
-

B
la

c
k

a
n
d

W
h
it
e

5
8
.0

0
1
1
.6

0
6
9
.6

0
5
8
.0

0
1
1
.6

0
6
9
.6

0

-
C

o
lo

u
r

1
3
7
.0

0
2
7
.4

0
1
6
4
.4

0
1
3
7
.0

0
2
7
.4

0
1
6
4
.4

0

-
C

o
v
e
r

-
B

la
c
k

a
n
d

W
h
it
e

1
5
6
.0

0
3
1
.2

0
1
8
7
.2

0
1
5
6
.0

0
3
1
.2

0
1
8
7
.2

0

-
C

o
lo

u
r

2
6
2
.5

0
5
2
.5

0
3
1
5
.0

0
2
6
2
.5

0
5
2
.5

0
3
1
5
.0

0

(b
)

A
u
d
io

/V
id

e
o

C
o
v
e
r

-
O

n
e

C
o
u
n
tr

y,
O

n
e

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e

1
2
9
.6

7
2
5
.9

3
1
5
5
.6

0
1
2
6
.5

0
2
5
.3

0
1
5
1
.8

0

-
W

o
rl
d

R
ig

h
ts

,
O

n
e

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e

2
0
6
.0

0
4
1
.2

0
2
4
7
.2

0
2
0
1
.0

0
4
0
.2

0
2
4
1
.2

0

-
W

o
rl
d

R
ig

h
ts

,
M

u
lt
i
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e

2
5
7
.2

5
5
1
.4

5
3
0
8
.7

0
2
5
1
.0

0
5
0
.2

0
3
0
1
.2

0

(c
)

W
e
b
s
it
e
s

(i
)

N
e
w

s
p
a
p
e
rs

&
M

a
g
a
z
in

e
s

-
H

o
m

e
P

a
g
e
,
fo

r
c
o
v
e
r

p
e
ri
o
d

7
4
.8

3
1
4
.9

7
8
9
.8

0
7
3
.0

0
1
4
.6

0
8
7
.6

0

-
H

o
m

e
P

a
g
e
,
fo

r
u
p

to
5

ye
a
rs

9
6
.8

3
1
9
.3

7
1
1
6
.2

0
9
4
.5

0
1
8
.9

0
1
1
3
.4

0

-
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

P
a
g
e
,
fo

r
c
o
v
e
r

p
e
ri
o
d

4
6
.6

7
9
.3

3
5
6
.0

0
4
5
.5

0
9
.1

0
5
4
.6

0

-
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

P
a
g
e
,
fo

r
u
p

to
5

ye
a
rs

6
4
.5

8
1
2
.9

2
7
7
.5

0
6
3
.0

0
1
2
.6

0
7
5
.6

0

(i
i)

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
,
A

d
v
e
rt

o
ri
a
l

-
H

o
m

e
P

a
g
e
,
u
p

to
1

ye
a
r

1
6
6
.0

8
3
3
.2

2
1
9
9
.3

0
1
6
2
.0

0
3
2
.4

0
1
9
4
.4

0

-
H

o
m

e
P

a
g
e
,
u
p

to
5

Y
e
a
rs

3
4
9
.0

0
6
9
.8

0
4
1
8
.8

0
3
4
0
.5

0
6
8
.1

0
4
0
8
.6

0

-
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

P
a
g
e
,
u
p

to
1

ye
a
r

9
6
.8

3
1
9
.3

7
1
1
6
.2

0
9
4
.5

0
1
8
.9

0
1
1
3
.4

0

-
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

P
a
g
e
,
u
p

to
5

Y
e
a
rs

2
1
0
.9

2
4
2
.1

8
2
5
3
.1

0
2
0
5
.8

0
4
1
.1

6
2
4
6
.9

6

(i
ii)

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic

-
H

o
m

e
P

a
g
e
,
u
p

to
1

ye
a
r

3
7
.9

2
7
.5

8
4
5
.5

0
3
7
.0

0
7
.4

0
4
4
.4

0

-
H

o
m

e
P

a
g
e
,
u
p

to
5

ye
a
rs

9
2
.7

5
1
8
.5

5
1
1
1
.3

0
9
0
.5

0
1
8
.1

0
1
0
8
.6

0

-
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

P
a
g
e
,
u
p

to
1

ye
a
r

2
4
.0

8
4
.8

2
2
8
.9

0
2
3
.5

0
4
.7

0
2
8
.2

0

-
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

P
a
g
e
,
u
p

to
5

ye
a
rs

6
4
.5

8
1
2
.9

2
7
7
.5

0
6
3
.0

0
1
2
.6

0
7
5
.6

0

(i
v
)

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l

-
H

o
m

e
/S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

P
a
g
e
,
u
p

to
5

Y
e
a
rs

1
7
.4

2
3
.4

8
2
0
.9

0
1
7
.0

0
3
.4

0
2
0
.4

0

(v
)

C
D

/D
V

D
(p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n

ru
n

o
f

1
0
,0

0
0
)

-
In

s
id

e
p
ro

d
u
c
t,

o
n
e

la
n
g
u
a
g
e

2
8
.1

7
5
.6

3
3
3
.8

0
2
7
.5

0
5
.5

0
3
3
.0

0

-
In

s
id

e
p
ro

d
u
c
t,

w
o
rl
d

ri
g
h
ts

,
m

u
lt
i
la

n
g
u
a
g
e

1
8
4
.5

0
3
6
.9

0
2
2
1
.4

0
1
8
0
.0

0
3
6
.0

0
2
1
6
.0

0

-
P

ro
d
u
c
t
p
a
c
k
a
g
in

g
,
o
n
e

c
o
u
n
tr

y,
o
n
e

la
n
g
u
a
g
e

5
0
.7

5
1
0
.1

5
6
0
.9

0
4
9
.5

0
9
.9

0
5
9
.4

0

-
P

ro
d
u
c
t
p
a
c
k
a
g
in

g
,
w

o
rl
d

ri
g
h
ts

,
m

u
lt
i
la

n
g
u
a
g
e

2
7
5
.7

5
5
5
.1

5
3
3
0
.9

0
2
6
9
.0

0
5
3
.8

0
3
2
2
.8

0

Page 32



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(d
)

T
e
le

v
is

io
n
/V

id
e
o
/F

ilm

R
e
p
e
a
ts

c
h
a
rg

e
d

a
t
5
0
%

o
f

o
ri
g
in

a
l
c
o
s
t.

(i
)

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

fe
e
,
m

in
im

u
m

p
e
r

h
a
lf

d
a
y

3
0
7
.5

0
6
1
.5

0
3
6
9
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0
6
0
.0

0
3
6
0
.0

0

(i
i)

O
n
e

C
o
u
n
tr

y

-
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l

5
1
.2

5
1
0
.2

5
6
1
.5

0
5
0
.0

0
1
0
.0

0
6
0
.0

0

-
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l

1
0
2
.5

0
2
0
.5

0
1
2
3
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
2
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0

(i
ii)

W
o
rl
d

R
ig

h
ts

-
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l

1
2
8
.1

7
2
5
.6

3
1
5
3
.8

0
1
2
5
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
1
5
0
.0

0

-
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l

2
5
6
.2

5
5
1
.2

5
3
0
7
.5

0
2
5
0
.0

0
5
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0

(i
v
)

U
n
lim

it
e
d

T
ra

n
s
m

is
s
io

n
fo

r
5

ye
a
rs

5
1
2
.5

0
1
0
2
.5

0
6
1
5
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
6
0
0
.0

0

R
e
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

p
ro

je
c
ts

n
o
t
m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d

c
a
n

b
e

re
q
u
e
s
te

d
a
n
d

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
o
n

a
n

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l
b
a
s
is

.

(8
)

P
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

ic
C

h
a
rg

e
s

-
N

o
n

P
ro

fi
t

M
a
k
in

g
P

ro
je

c
ts

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
y

is
a
v
a
ila

b
le

o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

w
ill

b
e

c
h
a
rg

e
d

o
n

a
n

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l
b
a
s
is

.

(a
)

D
ig

it
a
l
Im

a
g
e
s

(i
)

N
e
w

Im
a
g
e
s

-
H

ig
h

q
u
a
lit

y
re

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

ti
ff

7
5
.0

0
1
5
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
5
0
.4

2
1
0
.0

8
6
0
.5

0

(i
i)

E
x
is

ti
n
g

im
a
g
e
s

(d
ig

it
a
l
o
r

s
c
a
n
n
e
d
)

-
W

e
b

q
u
a
lit

y
jp

e
g

8
.1

7
1
.6

3
9
.8

0
8
.0

0
1
.6

0
9
.6

0

-
H

ig
h

q
u
a
lit

y
jp

e
g

1
0
.9

2
2
.1

8
1
3
.1

0
1
0
.6

7
2
.1

3
1
2
.8

0

-
H

ig
h

q
u
a
lit

y
re

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

ti
ff

1
6
.5

8
3
.3

2
1
9
.9

0
1
6
.1

7
3
.2

3
1
9
.4

0

-
Im

a
g
e

s
e
n
t
v
ia

e
m

a
il

(i
f

p
o
s
s
ib

le
)

N
o

C
h
a
rg

e
N

o
C

h
a
rg

e

-
P

o
s
t
to

U
K

1
.5

4
0
.3

1
1
.8

5
1
.5

0
0
.3

0
1
.8

0

-
P

o
s
t
to

E
u
ro

p
e

2
.0

8
0
.4

2
2
.5

0
2
.0

0
0
.4

0
2
.4

0

-
P

o
s
t
to

o
u
ts

id
e

E
u
ro

p
e

3
.5

8
0
.7

2
4
.3

0
3
.5

0
0
.7

0
4
.2

0

N
O

T
E

:
T

h
e

ra
te

s
a
re

fo
r

e
a
c
h

s
ti
ll

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h

re
p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

w
it
h
in

a
s
in

g
le

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
T

V
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,
v
id

e
o

o
r

fi
lm

a
n
d

fo
r

b
ro

a
d
c
a
s
t
w

it
h
in

th
a
t
T

V
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,
v
id

e
o

o
r

c
o
v
e
rs

a
fi
rs

t
fl
a
s
h

o
f

a
m

a
x
im

u
m

o
f

6
s
e
c
o
n
d
s
.

N
O

T
E

:
B

y
v
is

it
in

g
p

ri
n

ts
.r

a
m

m
u

s
e
u

m
.o

rg
.u

k
yo

u
c
a
n

c
re

a
te

p
ri
n
ts

,
c
a
n
v
a
s

p
ri
n
ts

,
m

u
g
s
,
g
re

e
ti
n
g
s

c
a
rd

s
a
n
d

p
o
s
tc

a
rd

s
fr

o
m

a
s
e
le

c
ti
o
n

o
f

R
A

M
M

im
a
g
e
s
.

W
e

h
a
v
e

s
e
le

c
ti
o
n

o
f

R
A

M
M

im
a
g
e
s

a
v
a
ila

b
le

o
n

w
w

w
.b

ri
d
g
e
m

a
n
.c

o
.u

k
a
v
a
ila

b
le

fo
r

u
s
e

in
p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

a
n
d

a
s

p
ri
n
ts

.

Page 33



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(9
)

R
e
p

ro
d

u
c
ti

o
n

C
h

a
rg

e
s

-
N

o
n

P
ro

fi
t

M
a
k
in

g
P

ro
je

c
ts

(f
ro

z
e
n

a
t

2
0
1
2
-1

3
ra

te
s
)

N
O

T
E

:
F

o
r

P
ri
n
t
ru

n
s

o
v
e
r

1
0
,0

0
0

a
d
d

5
0
%

o
f

re
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

fe
e
.

A
ll

fe
e
s

c
o
v
e
r

o
n
e

e
d
it
io

n
,
o
n
e

IS
B

N
o
n
ly

.

F
o
r

p
ri
n
t
ru

n
s

u
n
d
e
r

5
0
0

re
d
u
c
e

re
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

fe
e

b
y

2
5
%

(a
)

N
o
n

p
ro

fi
t
m

a
k
in

g
b
o
o
k
,
jo

u
rn

a
l.

(i
)

O
n
e

C
o
u
n
tr

y,
O

n
e

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e

-
In

s
id

e
-

B
la

c
k

a
n
d

W
h
it
e

3
4
.0

4
6
.8

1
4
0
.8

5
3
4
.0

4
6
.8

1
4
0
.8

5

-
C

o
lo

u
r

6
8
.0

8
1
3
.6

2
8
1
.7

0
6
8
.0

8
1
3
.6

2
8
1
.7

0

-
C

o
v
e
r

-
B

la
c
k

a
n
d

W
h
it
e

4
7
.2

9
9
.4

6
5
6
.7

5
4
7
.2

9
9
.4

6
5
6
.7

5

-
C

o
lo

u
r

8
7
.5

8
1
7
.5

2
1
0
5
.1

0
8
7
.5

8
1
7
.5

2
1
0
5
.1

0

(i
i)

W
o
rl
d

R
ig

h
ts

,
O

n
e

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e

-
In

s
id

e
-

B
la

c
k

a
n
d

W
h
it
e

3
8
.7

1
7
.7

4
4
6
.4

5
3
8
.7

1
7
.7

4
4
6
.4

5

-
C

o
lo

u
r

8
5
.1

7
1
7
.0

3
1
0
2
.2

0
8
5
.1

7
1
7
.0

3
1
0
2
.2

0

-
C

o
v
e
r

-
B

la
c
k

a
n
d

W
h
it
e

7
0
.5

8
1
4
.1

2
8
4
.7

0
7
0
.5

8
1
4
.1

2
8
4
.7

0

-
C

o
lo

u
r

1
2
2
.2

1
2
4
.4

4
1
4
6
.6

5
1
2
2
.2

1
2
4
.4

4
1
4
6
.6

5

(i
ii)

W
o
rl
d

R
ig

h
ts

,
M

u
lt
i
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e

-
In

s
id

e
-

B
la

c
k

a
n
d

W
h
it
e

4
3
.4

2
8
.6

8
5
2
.1

0
4
3
.4

2
8
.6

8
5
2
.1

0

-
C

o
lo

u
r

1
0
2
.5

8
2
0
.5

2
1
2
3
.1

0
1
0
2
.5

8
2
0
.5

2
1
2
3
.1

0

-
C

o
v
e
r

-
B

la
c
k

a
n
d

W
h
it
e

9
4
.5

2
1
8
.9

0
1
1
3
.4

2
9
4
.5

2
1
8
.9

0
1
1
3
.4

2

-
C

o
lo

u
r

1
0
4
.9

9
2
1
.0

0
1
2
5
.9

9
1
0
4
.9

9
2
1
.0

0
1
2
5
.9

9

Page 34



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

B
S

P
O

R
T

S
A

N
D

L
E

IS
U

R
E

C
E

N
T

R
E

S
-

A
D

M
IS

S
IO

N
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

A
X

C
a
rd

A
d
u
lt

2
.0

4
0
.4

2
2
.5

0
2
.0

4
0
.4

1
2
.4

5

U
n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

0
.8

3
0
.1

7
1
.0

0
0
.4

0
0
.0

8
0
.4

8

P
L

E
A

S
E

N
O

T
E

:

1
T

h
e

p
ri

c
e
s

q
u

o
te

d
in

B
-

L
a
re

th
e

m
a
x
im

a
to

b
e

c
h

a
rg

e
d

.
In

a
d

d
it

io
n

,
n

o
n

-L
e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

s
c
h

e
m

e
m

e
m

b
e
rs

(K
n

o
w

n
a
s

th
e

E
x
c
it

e
C

a
rd

)
a
re

s
u

b
je

c
t

to
a
d

m
is

s
io

n
c
h

a
rg

e
s

a
s

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

,
w

h
ic

h
a
p

p
ly

to
a
ll

c
u

s
to

m
e
rs

a
t

a
ll

c
e
n

tr
e
s

a
s

fo
ll
o

w
s

(e
x
c
e
p

t
w

h
e
re

m
a
rk

e
d

#
)

2
E

x
e
te

r
re

s
id

e
n

ts
m

e
e
ti

n
g

th
e

c
ri

te
ri

a
fo

r
a
n

X
C

a
rd

a
re

e
n

ti
tl

e
d

to
a

5
0
%

d
is

c
o

u
n

t
o

ff
th

e
a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

d
e
n

o
te

d
b

y
a
n

X
d

u
ri

n
g

O
ff

P
e
a
k

ti
m

e
s
.

3
C

lu
b

s
a
tt

a
in

in
g

C
lu

b
M

a
rk

A
c
c
re

d
it

a
ti

o
n

a
re

e
n

ti
tl

e
d

to
a

1
0
%

d
is

c
o

u
n

t
o

ff
th

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

d
e
n

o
te

d
b

y
C

M
.

B
A

D
M

IS
S

IO
N

C
H

A
R

G
E

-
A

d
u
lt

0
.6

7
0
.1

3
0
.8

0
2
.0

4
0
.4

1
0
.8

0

-
U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

0
.4

2
0
.0

8
0
.5

0
0
.4

0
0
.0

8
0
.4

8

-
X

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
rs

C
IS

C
A

C
E

N
T

R
E

fo
r

b
o

w
ls

a
n

d
b

ri
d

g
e

(C
a
s
u

a
l
p

u
b

li
c

u
s
e
)

B
o

w
ls

P
e
r

P
e
rs

o
n

-
1

h
o
u
r

2
.9

2
0
.5

8
3
.5

0
2
.8

7
0
.5

8
3
.4

5

-
1
½

h
o
u
rs

3
.7

5
0
.7

5
4
.5

0
3
.6

7
0
.7

3
4
.4

0

-
2

h
o
u
rs

4
.4

2
0
.8

8
5
.3

0
4
.2

9
0
.8

6
5
.1

5

-
2
½

h
o
u
rs

5
.0

0
1
.0

0
6
.0

0
4
.8

7
0
.9

8
5
.8

5

-
3

h
o
u
rs

5
.5

0
1
.1

0
6
.6

0
5
.3

7
1
.0

8
6
.4

5

D
C

L
IF

T
O

N
H

IL
L

G
O

L
F

D
R

IV
IN

G
R

A
N

G
E

(m
a
x

p
e
r

5
0

b
a
lls

)

(a
)

A
d
u
lt

3
.8

3
0
.7

7
4
.6

0
3
.7

5
0
.7

5
4
.5

0

(b
)

U
n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

2
.3

3
0
.4

7
2
.8

0
2
.2

9
0
.4

6
2
.7

5

(d
)

H
ir
e

o
f

C
lu

b
s

0
.5

8
0
.1

2
0
.7

0
0
.5

8
0
.1

2
0
.7

0

-
X

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
r

1
.5

4
0
.3

1
1
.8

5

N
o

C
h
a
rg

e
N

o
C

h
a
rg

e

N
o

C
h
a
rg

e

Page 35



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

E
E

X
E

T
E

R
A

R
E

N
A

(1
)

A
re

n
a

H
ir

e
(H

o
u

rl
y
)#

C
M

-
O

ff
P

e
a
k

-
W

e
e
k
d
a
ys

(b
e
fo

re
6
p
m

)
2
7
.0

8
5
.4

2
3
2
.5

0
2
5
.6

7
5
.1

3
3
0
.8

0

C
M

-
P

e
a
k

-
W

e
e
k
d
a
ys

(a
ft

e
r

6
p
m

)
3
7
.1

3
7
.4

3
4
4
.5

5
3
5
.1

7
7
.0

3
4
2
.2

0

C
M

-
W

e
e
k
e
n
d
s
/B

a
n
k

H
o
lid

a
ys

4
6
.2

5
9
.2

5
5
5
.5

0
4
3
.7

9
8
.7

6
5
2
.5

5

(2
)

F
lo

o
d

li
g

h
ts

(P
e
r

H
o

u
r

o
r

P
a
rt

th
e
re

o
f)

#

C
M

-
F

u
ll

1
3
.2

9
2
.6

6
1
5
.9

5
1
2
.5

8
2
.5

2
1
5
.1

0

C
M

-
T

ra
in

in
g

9
.7

9
1
.9

6
1
1
.7

5
9
.2

9
1
.8

6
1
1
.1

5

(3
)

C
a
s
u

a
l
U

s
e

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
c
h

a
n

g
in

g
/s

h
o

w
e
r

u
s
e
)

(a
)

A
d
u
lt

-
P

e
a
k

2
.2

5
0
.4

5
2
.7

0
2
.2

1
0
.4

4
2
.6

5

X
-

O
ff

P
e
a
k

1
.5

8
0
.3

2
1
.9

0
1
.5

4
0
.3

1
1
.8

5

(b
)

U
n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

-
P

e
a
k

1
.0

8
0
.2

2
1
.3

0
1
.0

4
0
.2

1
1
.2

5

X
-

O
ff

P
e
a
k

0
.6

3
0
.1

3
0
.7

5
0
.6

2
0
.1

3
0
.7

5

(4
)

A
n

n
u

a
l
T

ic
k
e
ts

#
(A

v
a
il
a
b

le
to

X
C

a
rd

h
o

ld
e
rs

/I
n

c
e
n

ti
v

e
S

c
h

e
m

e
M

e
m

b
e
rs

)

(a
)

A
d
u
lt

X
-

O
ff

P
e
a
k

o
n
ly

4
7
.1

3
9
.4

3
5
6
.5

5
4
5
.9

2
9
.1

8
5
5
.1

0

-
A

ll
O

th
e
r

T
im

e
s

7
8
.3

3
1
5
.6

7
9
4
.0

0
7
6
.5

4
1
5
.3

1
9
1
.8

5

(b
)

U
n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

X
-

O
ff

P
e
a
k

o
n
ly

2
3
.5

8
4
.7

2
2
8
.3

0
2
3
.0

0
4
.6

0
2
7
.6

0

-
A

ll
O

th
e
r

T
im

e
s

3
9
.3

3
7
.8

7
4
7
.2

0
3
8
.3

3
7
.6

7
4
6
.0

0

Page 36



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(5
)

S
o

c
c
e
r

P
it

c
h

M
a
tc

h
H

ir
e

(4
h

o
u

r
p

e
ri

o
d

)#

(a
)

O
ff

P
e
a
k

(w
e
e
k
d
a
y

b
e
fo

re
6
.0

0
p
m

)

C
M

-
A

d
u
lt

3
7
.0

4
7
.4

1
4
4
.4

5
3
5
.0

8
7
.0

2
4
2
.1

0

C
M

-
U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

1
8
.5

0
3
.7

0
2
2
.2

0
1
7
.5

0
3
.5

0
2
1
.0

0

(b
)

P
e
a
k

(w
e
e
k
e
n
d
s
,
B

a
n
k

H
o
lid

a
ys

a
n
d

e
v
e
n
in

g
s

a
ft

e
r

6
.0

0
p
m

)

C
M

-
A

d
u
lt

2
1
2
.7

9
4
2
.5

6
2
5
5
.3

5
2
0
1
.5

0
4
0
.3

0
2
4
1
.8

0

C
M

-
U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

2
5
.5

8
5
.1

2
3
0
.7

0
2
4
.2

1
4
.8

4
2
9
.0

5

(6
)

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t
H

ir
e
#

(a
)

S
m

a
ll

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

0
.5

0
0
.1

0
0
.6

0
0
.5

0
0
.1

0
0
.6

0

(7
)

G
y
m

n
a
s
iu

m
/F

it
n

e
s
s

S
tu

d
io

X
-

In
d
u
c
ti
o
n

8
.2

1
1
.6

4
9
.8

5
8
.0

0
1
.6

0
9
.6

0

X
-

A
d
u
lt

3
.3

3
0
.6

7
4
.0

0
3
.2

5
0
.6

5
3
.9

0

X
-

U
n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

1
.9

2
0
.3

8
2
.3

0
1
.8

3
0
.3

7
2
.2

0

X
(8

)
S

h
o

w
e
r

1
.7

9
0
.3

6
2
.1

5
1
.7

5
0
.3

5
2
.1

0

F
N

O
R

T
H

B
R

O
O

K
A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H
G

O
L

F
C

O
U

R
S

E

X
(a

)
P

e
r

R
o
u
n
d

-
A

d
u
lt

3
.4

6
0
.6

9
4
.1

5
3
.3

7
0
.6

8
4
.0

5

X
(b

)
P

e
r

R
o
u
n
d

-
J
u
n
io

r/
S

e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

2
.3

3
0
.4

7
2
.8

0
2
.2

9
0
.4

6
2
.7

5

(b
)

P
e
r

B
a
ll

#
1
.5

0
0
.3

0
1
.8

0
1
.4

6
0
.2

9
1
.7

5

(c
)

P
e
r

P
e
n
c
il

#
0
.0

8
0
.0

2
0
.1

0
0
.0

8
0
.0

2
0
.1

0

Page 37



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

G
P

Y
R

A
M

ID
S

S
W

IM
M

IN
G

A
N

D
L

E
IS

U
R

E
C

E
N

T
R

E

(1
)

S
w

im
m

in
g

P
o

o
ls

X
(a

)
A

d
u
lt

S
w

im
P

e
r

S
e
s
s
io

n
2
.3

3
0
.4

7
2
.8

0
2
.2

9
0
.4

6
2
.7

5

X
(b

)
U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

P
e
r

S
e
s
s
io

n
1
.7

9
0
.3

6
2
.1

5
1
.7

5
0
.3

5
2
.1

0

X
-

5
0
+

S
w

im
s

-
S

p
e
c
ia

l
S

e
s
s
io

n
s

o
n
ly

2
.0

0
0
.4

0
2
.4

0
1
.9

2
0
.3

8
2
.3

0

X
(c

)
s
h
o
w

e
r

2
.3

3
0
.4

7
2
.8

0
2
.2

9
0
.4

6
2
.7

5

(d
)

H
ir
e

o
f

P
o
o
l
(p

e
r

h
o
u
r)

#

C
M

-
O

c
c
a
s
io

n
a
l
C

lu
b
/V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
G

ro
u
p

8
0
.3

3
1
6
.0

7
9
6
.4

0
7
6
.0

8
1
5
.2

2
9
1
.3

0

C
M

-
R

e
g
u
la

r
C

lu
b
/V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
G

ro
u
p

4
9
.5

8
9
.9

2
5
9
.5

0
4
6
.9

6
9
.3

9
5
6
.3

5

-
G

a
la

re
q
u
ir
in

g
p
o
o
l
c
lo

s
u
re

d
u
ri
n
g

p
u
b
lic

s
e
s
s
io

n
1
5
0
.3

3
3
0
.0

7
1
8
0
.4

0
1
4
6
.5

0
2
9
.3

0
1
7
5
.8

0

C
M

-
E

a
rl
y

m
o
rn

in
g

c
lu

b
tr

a
in

in
g

p
e
r

la
n
e

1
0
.1

7
2
.0

3
1
2
.2

0
9
.6

2
1
.9

3
1
1
.5

5

C
M

-
L
e
a
rn

e
r

p
o
o
l

4
0
.7

1
8
.1

4
4
8
.8

5
3
8
.5

4
7
.7

1
4
6
.2

5

(e
)

S
e
a
s
o
n

T
ic

k
e
ts

-
3

m
o
n
th

s
A

d
u
lt

5
4
.4

2
1
0
.8

8
6
5
.3

0
5
3
.0

0
1
0
.6

0
6
3
.6

0

-
3

m
o
n
th

s
U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

2
7
.1

7
5
.4

3
3
2
.6

0
2
6
.5

0
5
.3

0
3
1
.8

0

-
3

m
o
n
th

s
E

a
rl
y

M
o
rn

in
g

S
w

im
C

lu
b

4
5
.8

3
9
.1

7
5
5
.0

0
4
4
.6

7
8
.9

3
5
3
.6

0

(2
)

F
it

n
e
s
s

S
tu

d
io

X
-

In
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
u
rs

e
s

8
.0

8
1
.6

2
9
.7

0
7
.8

7
1
.5

8
9
.4

5

X
-

A
d
u
lt

p
e
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
3
.4

6
0
.6

9
4
.1

5
3
.3

7
0
.6

8
4
.0

5

X
-

U
n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

p
e
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
1
.9

2
0
.3

8
2
.3

0
1
.8

3
0
.3

7
2
.2

0

(3
)

S
a
u

n
a

X
-

S
a
u
n
a

S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

(o
ff

p
e
a
k

o
n
ly

)
2
.9

2
0
.5

8
3
.5

0
2
.8

7
0
.5

8
3
.4

5

X
-

S
a
u
n
a

(p
e
r

2
h
o
u
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
)

4
.2

5
0
.8

5
5
.1

0
4
.1

2
0
.8

3
4
.9

5

Page 38



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

N
O

R
T

H
B

R
O

O
K

S
W

IM
M

IN
G

P
O

O
L

(1
)

M
a
in

P
o

o
l
H

ir
e

(p
e
r

h
o

u
r)

#

-
W

e
e
k
d
a
y

9
a
m

-4
p
m

1
6
.1

7
3
.2

3
1
9
.4

0
1
5
.7

5
3
.1

5
1
8
.9

0

C
M

-
W

e
e
k
d
a
y

O
p
e
n
in

g
-

9
a
m

,
4
p
m

-C
lo

s
e

3
5
.3

3
7
.0

7
4
2
.4

0
3
3
.4

6
6
.6

9
4
0
.1

5

(2
)

C
a
s
u

a
l
S

w
im

s

X
-

A
d
u
lt

S
w

im
P

e
r

S
e
s
s
io

n
1
.7

9
0
.3

6
2
.1

5
1
.7

5
0
.3

5
2
.1

0

X
-

U
n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

S
w

im
P

e
r

S
e
s
s
io

n
1
.5

0
0
.3

0
1
.8

0
1
.4

6
0
.2

9
1
.7

5

I
R

IV
E

R
S

ID
E

L
E

IS
U

R
E

C
E

N
T

R
E

(1
)

S
w

im
m

in
g

P
o

o
ls

X
(a

)
A

d
u
lt

S
w

im
p
e
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
2
.3

3
0
.4

7
2
.8

0
2
.2

9
0
.4

6
2
.7

5

X
(b

)
U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/
s
e
n
io

r
c
it
iz

e
n

p
e
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
1
.7

9
0
.3

6
2
.1

5
1
.7

5
0
.3

5
2
.1

0

X
(c

)
5
0
+

s
p
e
c
ia

l
s
e
s
s
io

n
s

2
.0

0
0
.4

0
2
.4

0
1
.9

2
0
.3

8
2
.3

0

X
(d

)
S

h
o
w

e
r

2
.3

3
0
.4

7
2
.8

0
2
.2

9
0
.4

6
2
.7

5

(e
)

H
ir
e

o
f

P
o
o
l
(p

e
r

h
o
u
r)

#

C
M

-
O

c
c
a
s
io

n
a
l
c
lu

b
/V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
G

ro
u
p

8
0
.3

3
1
6
.0

7
9
6
.4

0
7
6
.0

8
1
5
.2

2
9
1
.3

0

C
M

-
R

e
g
u
la

r
c
lu

b
/V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
G

ro
u
p

4
9
.5

8
9
.9

2
5
9
.5

0
4
6
.9

6
9
.3

9
5
6
.3

5

-
G

a
la

re
q
u
ir
in

g
p
o
o
l
c
lo

s
u
re

d
u
ri
n
g

p
u
b
lic

s
e
s
s
io

n
1
5
0
.3

3
3
0
.0

7
1
8
0
.4

0
1
4
6
.5

0
2
9
.3

0
1
7
5
.8

0

C
M

-
E

a
rl
y

m
o
rn

in
g

c
lu

b
tr

a
in

in
g

p
e
r

la
n
e

1
0
.1

7
2
.0

3
1
2
.2

0
9
.6

2
1
.9

3
1
1
.5

5

C
M

-
L
e
a
rn

e
r

P
o
o
l

4
0
.7

1
8
.1

4
4
8
.8

5
3
8
.5

4
7
.7

1
4
6
.2

5

(f
)

S
e
a
s
o
n

T
ic

k
e
ts

(A
v
a
ila

b
le

to
L
e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

h
o
ld

e
rs

/I
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e

S
c
h
e
m

e
M

e
m

b
e
rs

)

-
3

m
o
n
th

s
A

d
u
lt

5
4
.4

2
1
0
.8

8
6
5
.3

0
5
3
.0

0
1
0
.6

0
6
3
.6

0

-
3

m
o
n
th

s
U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

2
7
.1

7
5
.4

3
3
2
.6

0
2
6
.5

0
5
.3

0
3
1
.8

0

-
3

m
o
n
th

s
E

a
rl
y

M
o
rn

in
g

S
w

im
C

lu
b

4
5
.8

3
9
.1

7
5
5
.0

0
4
4
.6

7
8
.9

3
5
3
.6

0

Page 39



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(2
)

F
it

n
e
s
s

X
-

In
d
u
c
ti
o
n

8
.0

8
1
.6

2
9
.7

0
7
.8

7
1
.5

8
9
.4

5

X
-

A
d
u
lt

p
e
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
6
.3

3
1
.2

7
7
.6

0
6
.1

7
1
.2

3
7
.4

0

X
-

U
n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

p
e
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
3
.3

8
0
.6

8
4
.0

5
3
.2

9
0
.6

6
3
.9

5

(3
)

H
e
a
lt

h
S

u
it

e

X
-

S
a
u
n
a
/S

te
a
m

/J
a
c
u
z
z
i/
S

w
im

6
.3

3
1
.2

7
7
.6

0
6
.1

7
1
.2

3
7
.4

0

(4
)

S
q

u
a
s
h

(p
e
r

c
o

u
rt

p
e
r

4
5

m
in

s
)

-
P

e
a
k

5
.0

0
1
.0

0
6
.0

0
4
.8

7
0
.9

8
5
.8

5

X
-

O
ff

P
e
a
k

4
.0

4
0
.8

1
4
.8

5
3
.9

2
0
.7

8
4
.7

0

(5
)

M
a
in

H
a
ll

(a
)

h
a
lf

h
a
ll

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
(5

-a
-s

id
e
,
v
o
lle

yb
a
ll

e
tc

)

C
M

-
P

e
a
k

2
2
.6

7
4
.5

3
2
7
.2

0
2
1
.4

6
4
.2

9
2
5
.7

5

C
M

-
O

ff
P

e
a
k

1
6
.0

0
3
.2

0
1
9
.2

0
1
5
.1

7
3
.0

3
1
8
.2

0

(b
)

fu
ll

h
a
ll

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
(b

a
s
k
e
tb

a
ll

e
tc

)

C
M

-
P

e
a
k

4
4
.7

1
8
.9

4
5
3
.6

5
4
2
.3

3
8
.4

7
5
0
.8

0

C
M

-
O

ff
P

e
a
k

3
3
.9

6
6
.7

9
4
0
.7

5
3
2
.1

7
6
.4

3
3
8
.6

0

(6
)

B
a
d

m
in

to
n

(p
e
r

h
o

u
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
)

-
P

e
a
k

6
.9

2
1
.3

8
8
.3

0
6
.7

5
1
.3

5
8
.1

0

X
-

O
ff

P
e
a
k

4
.8

3
0
.9

7
5
.8

0
4
.7

1
0
.9

4
5
.6

5

(7
)

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t
H

ir
e
#

-
L
a
rg

e
(e

g
J
u
d
o

m
a
ts

)
5
.5

0
1
.1

0
6
.6

0
5
.3

7
1
.0

8
6
.4

5

-
R

a
c
k
e
t/
F

o
o
tb

a
ll

H
ir
e

1
.6

7
0
.3

3
2
.0

0
1
.6

2
0
.3

3
1
.9

5

-
S

m
a
ll

(e
g

T
a
b
le

T
e
n
n
is

B
a
t)

0
.5

0
0
.1

0
0
.6

0
0
.5

0
0
.1

0
0
.6

0

Page 40



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(8
)

L
o

w
e
r

D
a
n

c
e

S
tu

d
io

(p
e
r

h
o

u
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
)

C
M

-
P

e
a
k

3
6
.5

4
7
.3

1
4
3
.8

5
3
4
.6

2
6
.9

3
4
1
.5

5

C
M

-
O

ff
P

e
a
k

2
4
.9

2
4
.9

8
2
9
.9

0
2
3
.5

8
4
.7

2
2
8
.3

0

(9
)

U
p

p
e
r

A
c
ti

v
it

y
R

o
o

m
(p

e
r

h
o

u
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
)

C
M

-
P

e
a
k

2
5
.9

6
5
.1

9
3
1
.1

5
2
4
.5

8
4
.9

2
2
9
.5

0

C
M

-
O

ff
P

e
a
k

1
6
.0

0
3
.2

0
1
9
.2

0
1
5
.1

7
3
.0

3
1
8
.2

0

J
W

O
N

F
O

R
D

S
P

O
R

T
S

C
E

N
T

R
E

(1
)

M
a
in

H
a
ll

(p
e
r

h
o

u
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
)

(v
o

ll
e
y
b

a
ll
,
b

a
s
k
e
tb

a
ll
,
5
-a

-s
id

e
e
tc

)

C
M

-
P

e
a
k

3
0
.0

0
6
.0

0
3
6
.0

0
2
8
.4

2
5
.6

8
3
4
.1

0

C
M

-
O

ff
P

e
a
k

2
1
.8

8
4
.3

8
2
6
.2

5
2
0
.7

1
4
.1

4
2
4
.8

5

(2
)

B
a
d

m
in

to
n

(p
e
r

h
o

u
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
)

-
P

e
a
k

6
.9

2
1
.3

8
8
.3

0
6
.7

5
1
.3

5
8
.1

0

X
-

O
ff

P
e
a
k

4
.8

3
0
.9

7
5
.8

0
4
.7

1
0
.9

4
5
.6

5

(3
)

O
u

td
o

o
r

F
lo

o
d

li
t

A
re

a
(p

e
r

h
o

u
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
)

C
M

-
P

e
a
k

1
8
.9

6
3
.7

9
2
2
.7

5
1
7
.9

6
3
.5

9
2
1
.5

5

C
M

-
O

ff
P

e
a
k

1
4
.8

8
2
.9

8
1
7
.8

5
1
4
.0

8
2
.8

2
1
6
.9

0

C
M

-
F

lo
o
d
lig

h
ts

3
.0

0
0
.6

0
3
.6

0
2
.8

7
0
.5

8
3
.4

5

X
(4

)
S

h
o

w
e
r

1
.9

2
0
.3

8
2
.3

0
1
.8

3
0
.3

7
2
.2

0

(5
)

S
a
u

n
a

X
(a

)
S

a
u
n
a

(B
lo

c
k

B
o
o
k
in

g
)

1
1
.9

2
2
.3

8
1
4
.3

0
1
1
.6

2
2
.3

3
1
3
.9

5

X
(b

)
S

a
u
n
a

4
.2

5
0
.8

5
5
.1

0
4
.1

2
0
.8

3
4
.9

5

Page 41



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(6
)

F
it

n
e
s
s

S
tu

d
io

X
(a

)
In

d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
u
rs

e
8
.0

8
1
.6

2
9
.7

0
7
.8

7
1
.5

8
9
.4

5

X
(b

)
A

d
u
lt

p
e
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
3
.3

3
0
.6

7
4
.0

0
3
.2

5
0
.6

5
3
.9

0

X
(c

)
U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

p
e
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
1
.9

2
0
.3

8
2
.3

0
1
.8

3
0
.3

7
2
.2

0

X
(d

)
F

it
n
e
s
s

T
e
s
t

1
3
.5

0
2
.7

0
1
6
.2

0
1
3
.1

7
2
.6

3
1
5
.8

0

(7
)

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t
H

ir
e
#

(a
)

L
a
rg

e
E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t
(e

.g
.
J
u
d
o

m
a
ts

)
5
.5

0
1
.1

0
6
.6

0
5
.3

7
1
.0

8
6
.4

5

(b
)

R
a
c
k
e
t/
B

a
ll

H
ir
e

1
.6

7
0
.3

3
2
.0

0
1
.6

2
0
.3

3
1
.9

5

(c
)

T
a
b
le

T
e
n
n
is

B
a
t
H

ir
e

0
.5

0
0
.1

0
0
.6

0
0
.5

0
0
.1

0
0
.6

0

(1
2
)

A
c
ti

v
it

y
R

o
o

m
9
.5

8
1
.9

2
1
1
.5

0
9
.3

3
1
.8

7
1
1
.2

0

K
C

L
IF

T
O

N
H

IL
L

S
P

O
R

T
S

C
E

N
T

R
E

(1
)

M
a
in

H
a
ll

(p
e
r

1
h

o
u

r
s
e
s
s
io

n
)

(v
o

ll
e
y
b

a
ll
,
b

a
s
k
e
tb

a
ll
,
5
-a

-s
id

e
e
tc

)

C
M

-
P

e
a
k

3
0
.0

0
6
.0

0
3
6
.0

0
2
8
.4

2
5
.6

8
3
4
.1

0

C
M

-
O

ff
P

e
a
k

2
1
.8

8
4
.3

8
2
6
.2

5
2
0
.7

1
4
.1

4
2
4
.8

5

(2
)

B
a
d

m
in

to
n

C
o

u
rt

s
(p

e
r

h
o

u
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
)

-
P

e
a
k

6
.9

2
1
.3

8
8
.3

0
6
.7

5
1
.3

5
8
.1

0

X
-

O
ff

P
e
a
k

4
.8

3
0
.9

7
5
.8

0
4
.7

1
0
.9

4
5
.6

5

(3
)

S
q

u
a
s
h

(p
e
r

c
o

u
rt

p
e
r

4
5

m
in

u
te

s
)

-
P

e
a
k

5
.0

0
1
.0

0
6
.0

0
4
.8

7
0
.9

8
5
.8

5

X
-

O
ff

P
e
a
k

4
.0

4
0
.8

1
4
.8

5
3
.9

2
0
.7

8
4
.7

0

(4
)

S
h

o
w

e
r

1
.8

3
0
.3

7
2
.2

0
1
.8

3
0
.3

7
2
.2

0

Page 42



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(5
)

F
it

n
e
s
s

C
e
n

tr
e

X
(a

)
In

d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
u
rs

e
8
.0

8
1
.6

2
9
.7

0
7
.8

7
1
.5

8
9
.4

5

X
(b

)
A

d
u
lt

p
e
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
3
.3

3
0
.6

7
4
.0

0
3
.2

5
0
.6

5
3
.9

0

X
(c

)
U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

/S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

p
e
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
1
.9

2
0
.3

8
2
.3

0
1
.8

3
0
.3

7
2
.2

0

X
(d

)
F

it
n
e
s
s

T
e
s
t

1
3
.5

0
2
.7

0
1
6
.2

0
1
3
.1

7
2
.6

3
1
5
.8

0

(6
)

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t
H

ir
e
#

(a
)

L
a
rg

e
(e

.g
.
J
u
d
o

m
a
ts

)
5
.5

0
1
.1

0
6
.6

0
5
.3

7
1
.0

8
6
.4

5

(b
)

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

1
.6

7
0
.3

3
2
.0

0
1
.6

2
0
.3

3
1
.9

5

(c
)

S
m

a
ll

0
.5

0
0
.1

0
0
.6

0
0
.5

0
0
.1

0
0
.6

0

(7
)

D
a
n

c
e

S
tu

d
io

C
M

-
P

e
a
k

2
1
.3

8
4
.2

8
2
5
.6

5
2
0
.2

1
4
.0

4
2
4
.2

5

C
M

-
O

ff
P

e
a
k

1
4
.0

0
2
.8

0
1
6
.8

0
1
3
.2

5
2
.6

5
1
5
.9

0

L
G

P
R

E
F

E
R

R
A

L
S

C
H

E
M

E
#

(1
)

W
e
e
k
ly

P
a
ym

e
n
t

X
-

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

6
.6

7
1
.3

3
8
.0

0
6
.5

0
1
.3

0
7
.8

0

X
-

S
e
s
s
io

n
2
.2

9
0
.4

6
2
.7

5
2
.2

5
0
.4

5
2
.7

0

X
-

R
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

2
.4

2
0
.4

8
2
.9

0
2
.3

3
0
.4

7
2
.8

0

(2
)

C
o
u
rs

e

X
-

2
0

s
e
s
s
io

n
s

in
c
lu

d
in

g
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,

s
e
s
s
io

n
s

a
n
d

4
6
.3

3
9
.2

7
5
5
.6

0
4
5
.1

2
9
.0

3
5
4
.1

5

re
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

Page 43



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

M
P

A
R

K
S

A
N

D
R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

G
R

O
U

N
D

S

(Y
o
u
th

ra
te

a
p
p
le

s
to

u
n
d
e
r

1
8
's

)

H
ir
e

o
f

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

O
n
ly

N
e
g
o
ti
a
b
le

N
e
g
o
ti
a
b
le

(M
in

im
u
m

2
h
o
u
rs

)

(1
)

S
o

c
c
e
r

a
n

d
R

u
g

b
y

(H
ir
e

o
f

P
it
c
h

in
c
l.

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
)

(a
)

S
in

g
le

G
a
m

e
s

-
S

in
g
le

G
a
m

e
s

-
a
n
y

o
n
e

d
a
y

6
4
.1

7
1
2
.8

3
7
7
.0

0
6
2
.5

0
1
2
.5

0
7
5
.0

0

(b
)

S
e
a
s
o
n
a
l
L
ic

e
n
c
e

-
S

e
a
s
o
n
a
l
L
ic

e
n
c
e

-
a
n
y

n
o
m

in
a
te

d
d
a
y

8
4
0
.0

0
-

8
4
0
.0

0
8
2
0
.0

0
-

8
2
0
.0

0

(c
)

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s

-
W

it
h
o
u
t
C

h
a
n
g
in

g
A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

6
6
%

o
f

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

C
h
a
rg

e
6
6
%

o
f

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

C
h
a
rg

e

(d
)

H
a
lf

S
e
a
s
o
n

6
0
%

o
f

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

C
h
a
rg

e
6
0
%

o
f

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

C
h
a
rg

e

(e
)

U
n
d
e
r

1
8
's

(V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

o
n
ly

)

-
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

p
it
c
h

7
0
%

o
f

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

C
h
a
rg

e
7
0
%

o
f

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

C
h
a
rg

e

-
M

in
i
p
it
c
h

3
0
%

o
f

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

C
h
a
rg

e
3
0
%

o
f

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

C
h
a
rg

e

(f
)

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

A
re

a
s

-
m

a
rk

e
d

p
it
c
h

(S
e
a
s
o
n
)

8
4
0
.0

0
-

8
4
0
.0

0
8
2
0
.0

0
-

8
2
0
.0

0

-
u
n
m

a
rk

e
d

a
re

a
(S

e
a
s
o
n
)

2
0
%

o
f

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

C
h
a
rg

e
2
0
%

o
f

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

C
h
a
rg

e

-
S

in
g
le

S
e
s
s
io

n
s

(m
a
rk

e
d

p
it
c
h

o
r

u
n
m

a
rk

e
d

a
re

a
)

6
4
.1

7
1
2
.8

3
7
7
.0

0
6
2
.5

0
1
2
.5

0
7
5
.0

0

(g
)

C
a
n
c
e
lla

ti
o
n

(A
d
m

in
.
C

h
a
rg

e
)

1
0
%

o
f

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

C
h
a
rg

e
1
0
%

o
f

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

C
h
a
rg

e

(h
)

M
id

-S
e
a
s
o
n

C
h
a
n
g
e
s

o
f

U
s
e

3
1
0
.0

0
-

3
1
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0
-

3
0
0
.0

0

(2
)

T
e
n

n
is

T
e
n
n
is

is
fr

e
e

o
n

C
it
y

C
o
u
n
c
il

c
o
u
rt

s
,
o
n

th
e

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
th

a
t
p
la

ye
rs

re
s
tr

ic
t
g
a
m

e
s

to
o
n
e

h
o
u
r

in
to

ta
l

if
o
th

e
rs

a
re

w
a
it
in

g
to

p
la

y.
T

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

re
ta

in
s

th
e

ri
g
h
t
to

re
s
tr

ic
t
th

e
fr

e
e

u
s
e

o
f

th
e

c
o
u
rt

s
o
n

o
c
c
a
s
io

n
s
,

a
n
d

to
a
llo

c
a
te

c
o
u
rt

s
fo

r
u
s
e

b
y

o
th

e
rs

.
F

e
e
s

a
re

c
h
a
rg

e
d

fo
r

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d

u
s
e
.

Page 44



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(a
)

O
rg

a
n
is

e
d

u
s
e

(e
g

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

)
6
.5

4
1
.3

1
7
.8

5
6
.3

8
1
.2

8
7
.6

6

(P
e
r

C
o
u
rt

,
P

e
r

H
o
u
r)

(b
)

E
v
e
n
ts

a
n
d

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d

u
s
e

n
e
g
o
ti
a
b
le

n
e
g
o
ti
a
b
le

(3
)

B
o

w
ls

(a
)

P
e
r

P
la

ye
r,

P
e
r

H
o
u
r

-
L
e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
r

3
.0

0
0
.6

0
3
.6

0
2
.9

2
0
.5

8
3
.5

0

-
N

o
n

L
e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
r

3
.0

8
0
.6

2
3
.7

0
3
.0

0
0
.6

0
3
.6

0

(b
)

H
ir
e

o
f

w
o
o
d
s

1
.0

8
0
.2

2
1
.3

0
1
.0

4
0
.2

1
1
.2

5

(c
)

H
ir
e

o
f

S
lip

s
1
.0

8
0
.2

2
1
.3

0
1
.0

4
0
.2

1
1
.2

5

(d
)

S
e
a
s
o
n

A
d
u
lt
,
U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

,
S

e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

-
L
e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
r

4
7
.0

8
9
.4

2
5
6
.5

0
4
5
.8

3
9
.1

7
5
5
.0

0

-
N

o
n
-L

e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
r

4
8
.7

5
9
.7

5
5
8
.5

0
4
7
.5

0
9
.5

0
5
7
.0

0

(e
)

U
s
e

o
f

g
re

e
n

fo
r

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
s

e
tc

.
5
.2

1
1
.0

4
6
.2

5
5
.0

0
1
.0

0
6
.0

0

(p
e
r

ri
n
k

h
o
u
r)

(f
)

S
e
a
s
o
n

c
h
a
rg

e
p
a
ya

b
le

b
y

c
lu

b
s

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

fr
o
m

3
4
0
.0

0
-

3
4
0
.0

0
2
9
5
.0

0
-

2
9
5
.0

0

b
o
w

lin
g

g
re

e
n
s

(4
)

C
ro

q
u

e
t

(a
)

P
e
r

P
la

ye
r,

P
e
r

H
o
u
r

(I
n
c
l.

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t
H

ir
e
)

-
L
e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
r

2
.9

2
0
.5

8
3
.5

0
2
.7

7
0
.5

5
3
.3

3

-
N

o
n

L
e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
r

3
.0

4
0
.6

1
3
.6

5
2
.9

6
0
.5

9
3
.5

6

(b
)

S
e
a
s
o
n

A
d
u
lt
,
U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

,
S

e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

-
L
e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
r

4
7
.0

8
9
.4

2
5
6
.5

0
4
5
.8

3
9
.1

7
5
5
.0

0

-
N

o
n
-L

e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
r

4
8
.7

5
9
.7

5
5
8
.5

0
4
7
.5

0
9
.5

0
5
7
.0

0

Page 45



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(c
)

S
e
a
s
o
n

c
h
a
rg

e
p
a
ya

b
le

b
y

c
lu

b
s

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

fr
o
m

1
8
0
.0

0
-

1
8
0
.0

0
1
5
5
.0

0
-

1
5
5
.0

0

c
ro

q
u
e
t
la

w
n
s

(5
)

P
e
ta

n
q

u
e

A
n
n
u
a
l
c
h
a
rg

e
p
a
ya

b
le

b
y

c
lu

b
s

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

fr
o
m

5
3
.5

0
-

5
3
.5

0
5
2
.0

0
-

5
2
.0

0

p
e
ta

n
q
u
e

te
rr

a
in

(6
)

A
ll
o

tm
e
n

ts

C
h
a
rg

e
s

a
re

p
a
ya

b
le

in
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r,

o
r

o
n

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t
o
f

th
e

te
n
a
n
c
y.

T
e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
a
ft

e
r

1
A

p
ri
l
a
re

c
h
a
rg

e
d

a
t
5
0
%

A
llo

tm
e
n
t
le

tt
in

g
fe

e
-

p
a
ya

b
le

o
n

in
it
ia

l
le

tt
in

g
8
.3

3
1
.6

7
1
0
.0

0
8
.3

3
1
.6

7
1
0
.0

0

F
ro

m
1
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0
1
2

(a
)

N
o
rm

a
l
fe

e
p
e
r

2
5
s
q
.
m

e
tr

e
s

(a
p
p
ro

x
.
1

ro
d
)

5
.0

0
-

5
.0

0
5
.0

0
-

5
.0

0

(b
)

S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n
/U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

fe
e

p
e
r

2
5

s
q
.
m

e
tr

e
s

2
.5

0
-

2
.5

0
2
.5

0
-

2
.5

0

(f
ir
s
t
2
5
0

s
q
.
m

tr
s

o
n
ly

)

(c
)

L
e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
rs

D
is

c
o
u
n
t
o
f

£
2
.5

0
fo

r
o
n
e

p
lo

t
o
n
ly

(1
2
5

s
q

m
tr

s
o
r

le
s
s
),

£
5
.0

0
fo

r
o
n
e

p
lo

t
o
n
ly

(1
2
6

s
q

m
tr

s
-2

5
0

s
q

m
tr

s
)

b
u
t
n
o
t
to

b
e

u
s
e
d

in
c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

ra
te

)

(d
)

S
it
e
s

w
it
h
o
u
t
w

a
te

r
4
.0

0
-

4
.0

0
4
.0

0
-

4
.0

0

F
ro

m
1
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0
1
3

(a
)

N
o
rm

a
l
fe

e
p
e
r

2
5
s
q
.
m

e
tr

e
s

(a
p
p
ro

x
.
1

ro
d
)

5
.5

0
-

5
.5

0
5
.5

0
-

5
.5

0

(b
)

S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n
/U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

fe
e

p
e
r

2
5

s
q
.
m

e
tr

e
s

2
.7

5
-

2
.7

5
2
.7

5
-

2
.7

5

(f
ir
s
t
2
5
0

s
q
.
m

tr
s

o
n
ly

)

Page 46



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(c
)

L
e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
rs

D
is

c
o
u
n
t
o
f

£
2
.5

0
fo

r
o
n
e

p
lo

t
o
n
ly

(1
2
5

s
q

m
tr

s
o
r

le
s
s
),

£
5
.0

0
fo

r
o
n
e

p
lo

t
o
n
ly

(1
2
6

s
q

m
tr

s
-2

5
0

s
q

m
tr

s
)

b
u
t
n
o
t
to

b
e

u
s
e
d

in
c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

ra
te

)

(d
)

S
it
e
s

w
it
h
o
u
t
w

a
te

r
4
.5

0
-

4
.5

0
4
.5

0
-

4
.5

0

F
ro

m
1
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0
1
4

(a
)

N
o
rm

a
l
fe

e
p
e
r

2
5
s
q
.
m

e
tr

e
s

(a
p
p
ro

x
.
1

ro
d
)

6
.3

0
-

6
.3

0
5
.5

0
-

5
.5

0

(b
)

S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n
/U

n
d
e
r

1
8
's

fe
e

p
e
r

2
5

s
q
.
m

e
tr

e
s

3
.1

5
-

3
.1

5
2
.7

5
-

2
.7

5

(f
ir
s
t
2
5
0

s
q
.
m

tr
s

o
n
ly

)

(c
)

L
e
is

u
re

C
a
rd

H
o
ld

e
rs

D
is

c
o
u
n
t
o
f

£
2
.5

0
fo

r
o
n
e

p
lo

t
o
n
ly

(1
2
5

s
q

m
tr

s
o
r

le
s
s
),

£
5
.0

0
fo

r
o
n
e

p
lo

t
o
n
ly

(1
2
6

s
q

m
tr

s
-2

5
0

s
q

m
tr

s
)

b
u
t
n
o
t
to

b
e

u
s
e
d

in
c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

S
e
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n

ra
te

)

(d
)

S
it
e
s

w
it
h
o
u
t
w

a
te

r
5
.0

0
-

5
.0

0
4
.5

0
-

4
.5

0

(7
)

E
v

e
n

ts

F
e
e
s

a
re

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

to
c
o
v
e
r

c
o
s
ts

o
c
c
u
rr

e
d

in

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
e
v
e
n
ts

o
n

C
o
u
n
c
il

la
n
d
.
O

th
e
r

te
rm

s
a
n
d

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s

w
ill

a
p
p
ly

e
g

s
p
e
c
if
ic

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e

c
o
v
e
r.

F
e
e
s

fo
r

lo
n
g

ru
n
n
in

g
e
v
e
n
ts

b
y

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
e
v
e
n
ts

L
a
rg

e
c
ir
c
u
s
/f

u
n
fa

ir
(m

o
re

th
a
n

2
0
0

s
e
a
te

d
/5

ri
d
e
s
)

S
e
t
-u

p
2
3
0
.8

3
4
6
.1

7
2
7
7
.0

0
2
2
5
.0

0
4
5
.0

0
2
7
0
.0

0

R
a
te

p
e
r

d
a
y

3
2
9
.1

7
6
5
.8

3
3
9
5
.0

0
3
2
0
.8

3
6
4
.1

7
3
8
5
.0

0

Page 47



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

S
m

a
ll

c
ir
c
u
s
/f

u
n
fa

ir
(l
e
s
s

th
a
n

2
0
0

s
e
a
te

d
/5

ri
d
e
s
)

S
e
t
-u

p
1
6
2
.5

0
3
2
.5

0
1
9
5
.0

0
1
5
8
.3

3
3
1
.6

7
1
9
0
.0

0

R
a
te

p
e
r

d
a
y

2
1
3
.3

3
4
2
.6

7
2
5
6
.0

0
2
0
8
.3

3
4
1
.6

7
2
5
0
.0

0

M
a
jo

r
e
v
e
n
t
(i
n

e
x
c
e
s
s

o
f

1
0
0
0

p
e
rs

o
n
s

a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
)

S
e
t
-u

p
fe

e
2
6
0
.8

3
5
2
.1

7
3
1
3
.0

0
2
5
4
.1

7
5
0
.8

3
3
0
5
.0

0

R
a
te

p
e
r

d
a
y

3
8
4
.1

7
7
6
.8

3
4
6
1
.0

0
3
7
5
.0

0
7
5
.0

0
4
5
0
.0

0

M
in

o
r

e
v
e
n
t
(l
e
s
s

th
a
n

1
0
0
0

p
e
rs

o
n
s

a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
)

S
e
t
-u

p
1
1
0
.8

3
2
2
.1

7
1
3
3
.0

0
1
0
8
.3

3
2
1
.6

7
1
3
0
.0

0

R
a
te

p
e
r

d
a
y

1
5
8
.3

3
3
1
.6

7
1
9
0
.0

0
1
5
4
.1

7
3
0
.8

3
1
8
5
.0

0

E
v
e
n
ts

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d

b
y

C
h
a
ri
ti
e
s

a
n
d

"N
o
t
fo

r
p
ro

fi
t"

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

L
a
rg

e
e
v
e
n
t
(

in
e
x
c
e
s
s

o
f

1
0
0
0

p
e
rs

o
n
s

a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
)

S
e
t
-u

p
6
4
.1

7
1
2
.8

3
7
7
.0

0
6
2
.5

0
1
2
.5

0
7
5
.0

0

R
a
te

p
e
r

d
a
y

1
1
0
.8

3
2
2
.1

7
1
3
3
.0

0
1
0
8
.3

3
2
1
.6

7
1
3
0
.0

0

M
e
d
iu

m
e
v
e
n
t
(5

0
0

to
1
0
0
0

p
e
rs

o
n
s

a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
)

R
a
te

p
e
r

d
a
y

1
1
0
.8

3
2
2
.1

7
1
3
3
.0

0
1
0
8
.3

3
2
1
.6

7
1
3
0
.0

0

R
e
fu

n
d
a
b
le

d
e
p
o
s
it

1
0
6
.6

7
2
1
.3

3
1
2
8
.0

0
1
0
4
.1

7
2
0
.8

3
1
2
5
.0

0

S
m

a
ll

e
v
e
n
t

(l
e
s
s

th
a
n

5
0
0

p
e
rs

o
n
s

a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
)

R
e
fu

n
d
a
b
le

d
e
p
o
s
it

1
0
6
.6

7
2
1
.3

3
1
2
8
.0

0
1
0
4
.1

7
2
0
.8

3
1
2
5
.0

0

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

e
v
e
n
ts

L
a
rg

e
e
v
e
n
ts

(i
n

e
x
c
e
s
s

o
f

1
0
0
0

p
e
rs

o
n
s

a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
)

5
5
.8

3
1
1
.1

7
6
7
.0

0
5
4
.1

7
1
0
.8

3
6
5
.0

0

R
e
fu

n
d
a
b
le

d
e
p
o
s
it

1
0
6
.6

7
2
1
.3

3
1
2
8
.0

0
1
0
4
.1

7
2
0
.8

3
1
2
5
.0

0

S
m

a
ll

e
v
e
n
ts

(l
e
s
s

th
a
n

1
0
0
0

p
e
rs

o
n
s

a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
)

D
e
p
o
s
it

g
u
a
ra

n
te

e
1
0
6
.6

7
2
1
.3

3
1
2
8
.0

0
1
0
4
.1

7
2
0
.8

3
1
2
5
.0

0

Page 48



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

N
C

E
M

E
T

E
R

IE
S

(1
)

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

F
e
e
s

fo
r

th
e

E
x
c
lu

s
iv

e

R
ig

h
t

o
f

B
u

ri
a
l

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e

o
f

b
u
ri
a
l
ri
g
h
ts

fo
r

3
0

ye
a
rs

,
e
x
te

n
d
a
b
le

th
e
re

a
ft

e
r

-
A

d
u
lt

L
a
w

n
G

ra
v
e

(E
x
w

ic
k

B
H

/T
o
p
s
h
a
m

)
9
5
0
.0

0
-

9
5
0
.0

0
9
2
5
.0

0
-

9
2
5
.0

0

-
C

h
ild

re
n
's

S
e
c
ti
o
n

4
3
0
.0

0
-

4
3
0
.0

0
4
2
0
.0

0
-

4
2
0
.0

0

-
C

re
m

a
te

d
re

m
a
in

s
s
e
c
ti
o
n

(T
o
p
s
h
a
m

c
e
m

e
te

ry
o
n
ly

)
3
2
0
.0

0
-

3
2
0
.0

0
2
7
5
.0

0
-

2
7
5
.0

0

-
'E

d
w

a
rd

ia
n
'S

in
g
le

d
e
p
th

g
ra

v
e
s

9
5
0
.0

0
-

9
5
0
.0

0
9
2
5
.0

0
-

9
2
5
.0

0

-
'E

d
w

a
rd

ia
n
'S

in
g
le

d
e
p
th

g
ra

v
e
s

d
o
u
b
le

w
id

e
1
,4

0
0
.0

0
-

1
,4

0
0
.0

0
1
,3

5
0
.0

0
-

1
,3

5
0
.0

0

-
'H

e
ri
ta

g
e
'n

e
w

tr
ip

le
d
e
p
th

p
a
th

s
id

e
g
ra

v
e
s

(p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

re
s
e
rv

e
d
)

H
ig

h
e
r

1
,4

5
0
.0

0
-

1
,4

5
0
.0

0
1
,3

7
5
.0

0
-

1
,3

7
5
.0

0

-
T

ra
d
it
io

n
a
l
S

e
c
ti
o
n

(k
e
rb

s
e
ts

a
llo

w
e
d
)

E
x
w

ic
k

1
,4

5
0
.0

0
-

1
,4

5
0
.0

0
1
,3

7
5
.0

0
-

1
,3

7
5
.0

0

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e

o
f

b
u
ri
a
l
ri
g
h
ts

fo
r

5
0

ye
a
rs

,
e
x
te

n
d
a
b
le

th
e
re

a
ft

e
r

-
A

d
u
lt

L
a
w

n
G

ra
v
e

(E
x
w

ic
k

B
H

/T
o
p
s
h
a
m

)
1
,9

0
0
.0

0
-

1
,9

0
0
.0

0
1
,8

5
0
.0

0
-

1
,8

5
0
.0

0

-
C

h
ild

re
n
's

s
e
c
ti
o
n

7
0
0
.0

0
-

7
0
0
.0

0
6
8
0
.0

0
-

6
8
0
.0

0

-
C

re
m

a
te

d
re

m
a
in

s
s
e
c
ti
o
n

(T
o
p
s
h
a
m

c
e
m

e
te

ry
o
n
ly

)
6
0
0
.0

0
-

6
0
0
.0

0
5
5
0
.0

0
-

5
5
0
.0

0

-
'E

d
w

a
rd

ia
n
'S

in
g
le

d
e
p
th

g
ra

v
e
s

1
,9

0
0
.0

0
-

1
,9

0
0
.0

0
1
,8

5
0
.0

0
-

1
,8

5
0
.0

0

-
'E

d
w

a
rd

ia
n
'S

in
g
le

d
e
p
th

g
ra

v
e
s

d
o
u
b
le

w
id

e
2
,5

7
0
.0

0
-

2
,5

7
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
-

2
,5

0
0
.0

0

-
'H

e
ri
ta

g
e
'n

e
w

tr
ip

le
d
e
p
th

p
a
th

s
id

e
g
ra

v
e
s

(p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

r
2
,6

6
5
.0

0
-

2
,6

6
5
.0

0
2
,6

0
0
.0

0
-

2
,6

0
0
.0

0

-
T

ra
d
it
io

n
a
l
S

e
c
ti
o
n

(k
e
rb

s
e
ts

a
llo

w
e
d
)

E
x
w

ic
k

2
,6

6
5
.0

0
-

2
,6

6
5
.0

0
2
,6

0
0
.0

0
-

2
,6

0
0
.0

0

N
a
tu

ra
l
B

u
ri
a
l
S

e
le

c
ti
o
n
(s

)
1
0
0

ye
a
r

le
a
s
e

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
-

1
,0

0
0
.0

0

(2
)

In
te

rm
e
n

t
F

e
e
s

(a
)

In
te

rm
e
n
t
o
f

fo
e
ta

l
re

m
a
in

s
F

O
C

F
O

C

(b
)

S
ti
llb

o
rn

c
h
ild

o
r

c
h
ild

w
h
o
s
e

F
O

C
F

O
C

a
g
e

a
t
ti
m

e
o
f

d
e
a
th

d
id

n
o
t
e
x
c
e
e
d

o
n
e

m
o
n
th

(i
n

g
ra

v
e

fo
r

w
h
ic

h
n
o

ri
g
h
t
o
f

b
u
ri
a
l
g
ra

n
te

d
)

Page 49



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(c
)

C
h
ild

re
n

u
n
d
e
r

1
6

ye
a
rs

o
f

a
g
e
:

(i
)

In
e
x
is

ti
n
g

c
h
ild

re
n
's

s
e
c
ti
o
n

F
O

C
F

O
C

(i
i)

In
a
d
u
lt

s
e
c
ti
o
n

a
t
d
e
p
th

n
o
t

e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
2
.4

m
e
te

rs
(8

ft
a
p
p
ro

x
)

1
4
5
.0

0
-

1
4
5
.0

0
1
4
0
.0

0
-

1
4
0
.0

0

(d
)

A
n
y

p
e
rs

o
n

w
h
o
s
e

a
g
e

a
t
ti
m

e
o
f

d
e
a
th

w
a
s

1
6

ye
a
rs

o
r

m
o
re

:

D
e
p
th

n
o
t
e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
2
.4

m
e
tr

e
s

(8
ft

a
p
p
ro

x
)

7
5
0
.0

0
-

7
5
0
.0

0
6
1
0
.0

0
-

6
1
0
.0

0

(e
)

H
ir
e

o
f

C
h
a
p
e
l

1
3
0
.0

0
-

1
3
0
.0

0
1
3
0
.0

0
-

1
3
0
.0

0

fo
r

fo
e
ta

l
re

m
a
in

s
o
r

c
h
ild

u
p

to
1
6

ye
a
rs

o
ld

F
O

C
F

O
C

(f
)

C
re

m
a
te

d
re

m
a
in

s
:

In
te

rm
e
n
t
o
f

c
h
ild

's
a
s
h
e
s

F
O

C
F

O
C

B
u
ri
e
d

in
a

g
ra

v
e

o
r

s
p
e
c
ia

l
s
e
c
ti
o
n

1
5
5
.0

0
-

1
5
5
.0

0
1
5
0
.0

0
-

1
5
0
.0

0

S
c
a
tt
e
ri
n
g

a
s
h
e
s

1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0

(g
)

W
o
o
d
la

n
d

B
u
ri
a
l

6
2
5
.0

0
-

6
2
5
.0

0
7
5
0
.0

0
-

7
5
0
.0

0

(3
)

G
ra

n
t

o
f

ri
g

h
t

to
e
re

c
t

a
m

e
m

o
ri

a
l

L
a
w

n
m

e
m

o
ri
a
l

3
6
0
.0

0
-

3
6
0
.0

0
3
5
0
.0

0
-

3
5
0
.0

0

V
a
s
e
s

1
2
5
.0

0
-

1
2
5
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0

C
re

m
a
ti
o
n

T
a
b
le

ts
1
5
0
.0

0
-

1
5
0
.0

0
1
4
0
.0

0
-

1
4
0
.0

0

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
In

s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s

8
5
.0

0
-

8
5
.0

0
8
0
.0

0
-

8
0
.0

0

C
h
ild

's
h
e
a
d
s
to

n
e

6
0
.0

0
-

6
0
.0

0
6
0
.0

0
-

6
0
.0

0

N
B

B
e
fo

re
a
n
y

m
e
m

o
ri
a
l
is

e
re

c
te

d
o
n

a
g
ra

v
e
,
th

e
e
x
c
lu

s
iv

e
ri
g
h
t
o
f

b
u
ri
a
l

m
u
s
t
b
e

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d

Page 50



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(3
a
)

G
a
rd

e
n

s
o

f
re

m
e
m

b
ra

n
c
e

n
.b

.
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s

in
c
lu

d
e

a
ll

c
h
a
rg

e
s
,
s
o
m

e
o
f

w
h
ic

h
a
re

n
o
t

lia
b
le

to
V

A
T

H
ig

h
e
r

c
e
m

e
te

ry

S
c
a
tt
e
ri
n
g

&
C

e
n
tr

a
l
p
la

q
u
e

-
V

a
ta

b
le

3
3
3
.3

3
6
6
.6

7
4
0
0
.0

0
3
2
0
.8

3
6
4
.1

7
3
8
5
.0

0

S
c
a
tt
e
ri
n
g

&
C

e
n
tr

a
l
p
la

q
u
e

-
N

o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

1
2
3
.0

0
-

1
2
3
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0

S
c
a
tt
e
ri
n
g

o
n
ly

1
0
5
.0

0
-

1
0
5
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0

T
e
a

R
o
s
e
s

-
V

a
ta

b
le

2
1
6
.6

7
4
3
.3

3
2
6
0
.0

0
2
0
8
.3

3
4
1
.6

7
2
5
0
.0

0

T
e
a

R
o
s
e
s

-
N

o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

4
1
0
.0

0
-

4
1
0
.0

0
4
0
0
.0

0
-

4
0
0
.0

0

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

R
o
s
e
s

-
V

a
ta

b
le

2
8
3
.3

3
5
6
.6

7
3
4
0
.0

0
2
7
0
.8

3
5
4
.1

7
3
2
5
.0

0

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

R
o
s
e
s

-
N

o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

5
2
5
.0

0
-

5
2
5
.0

0
5
1
0
.0

0
-

5
1
0
.0

0

D
V

T
-

V
a
ta

b
le

6
0
8
.3

3
1
2
1
.6

7
7
3
0
.0

0
5
9
1
.6

7
1
1
8
.3

3
7
1
0
.0

0

D
V

T
-

N
o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

3
8
5
.0

0
-

3
8
5
.0

0
3
7
5
.0

0
-

3
7
5
.0

0

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l
G

a
rd

e
n

-
V

a
ta

b
le

8
3
3
.3

3
1
6
6
.6

7
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
8
1
6
.6

7
1
6
3
.3

3
9
8
0
.0

0

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l
G

a
rd

e
n

-
N

o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

6
9
0
.0

0
-

6
9
0
.0

0
6
7
0
.0

0
-

6
7
0
.0

0

P
in

w
h
e
e
l
-

V
a
ta

b
le

4
5
0
.0

0
9
0
.0

0
5
4
0
.0

0
4
3
3
.3

3
8
6
.6

7
5
2
0
.0

0

P
in

w
h
e
e
l
-

N
o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

5
8
5
.0

0
-

5
8
5
.0

0
5
7
0
.0

0
-

5
7
0
.0

0

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
D

e
s
k

V
a
s
e

T
a
b
le

t
a
re

a
-

N
o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

6
0
0
.0

0
-

6
0
0
.0

0

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
m

a
ll

g
a
rd

e
n

-
N

o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

9
0
0
.0

0
-

9
0
0
.0

0

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
L
a
rg

e
G

a
rd

e
n

-
N

o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

1
,2

0
0
.0

0
-

1
,2

0
0
.0

0

E
x
w

ic
k

c
e
m

e
te

ry

S
c
a
tt
e
ri
n
g

&
v
a
s
e

-
V

a
ta

b
le

1
0
8
.3

3
2
1
.6

7
1
3
0
.0

0
1
0
4
.1

7
2
0
.8

3
1
2
5
.0

0

S
c
a
tt
e
ri
n
g

&
v
a
s
e

-
N

o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

3
4
5
.0

0
-

3
4
5
.0

0
3
3
5
.0

0
-

3
3
5
.0

0

S
c
a
tt
e
ri
n
g

&
s
c
ro

ll
p
la

q
u
e

-
V

a
ta

b
le

1
5
8
.3

3
3
1
.6

7
1
9
0
.0

0
1
5
4
.1

7
3
0
.8

3
1
8
5
.0

0

S
c
a
tt
e
ri
n
g

&
s
c
ro

ll
p
la

q
u
e

-
N

o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

4
1
5
.0

0
-

4
1
5
.0

0
4
0
5
.0

0
-

4
0
5
.0

0

S
c
a
tt
e
ri
n
g

o
n
ly

1
0
5
.0

0
-

1
0
5
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0

D
V

T
-

V
a
ta

b
le

4
6
6
.6

7
9
3
.3

3
5
6
0
.0

0
4
5
4
.1

7
9
0
.8

3
5
4
5
.0

0

D
V

T
-

N
o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

6
1
5
.0

0
-

6
1
5
.0

0
6
0
0
.0

0
-

6
0
0
.0

0

R
o
s
e

g
a
rd

e
n

-
V

a
ta

b
le

2
5
0
.0

0
5
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0
2
4
1
.6

7
4
8
.3

3
2
9
0
.0

0

R
o
s
e

g
a
rd

e
n

-
N

o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

5
6
5
.0

0
-

5
6
5
.0

0
5
5
0
.0

0
-

5
5
0
.0

0

T
a
b
le

ts
-

V
a
ta

b
le

2
9
5
.8

3
5
9
.1

7
3
5
5
.0

0
2
8
7
.5

0
5
7
.5

0
3
4
5
.0

0

T
a
b
le

ts
-

N
o
n
-V

a
ta

b
le

3
2
0
.0

0
-

3
2
0
.0

0
3
1
0
.0

0
-

3
1
0
.0

0

Page 51



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(4
)

M
e
m

o
ri

a
ls

o
th

e
r

th
a
n

o
n

a
g

ra
v

e

M
e
m

o
ri
a
l
p
la

q
u
e
s

L
o
s
t
b
a
b
ie

s
m

e
m

o
ri
a
l
w

a
ll

p
la

q
u
e

5
0

yr
le

a
s
e

2
0
8
.3

3
4
1
.6

7
2
5
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
4
0
.0

0
2
4
0
.0

0

M
e
m

o
ri
a
l
b
e
n
c
h

w
it
h

p
la

q
u
e

1
0
yr

le
a
s
e

1
,0

4
1
.6

7
2
0
8
.3

3
1
,2

5
0
.0

0
1
,0

2
0
.8

3
2
0
4
.1

7
1
,2

2
5
.0

0

P
la

q
u
e

o
n

e
x
is

ti
n
g

b
e
n
c
h

-
1
0

yr
le

a
s
e

2
5
8
.3

3
5
1
.6

7
3
1
0
.0

0
2
5
0
.0

0
5
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0

M
e
m

o
ri
a
l
tr

e
e

w
it
h

g
ra

n
it
e

b
lo

c
k

-
1
0

yr
le

a
s
e

5
1
2
.5

0
1
0
2
.5

0
6
1
5
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
6
0
0
.0

0

(5
)

M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
:

p
e
r

a
n

n
u

m

S
o
ili

n
g

1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0
9
5
.0

0
-

9
5
.0

0

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
,
in

c
lu

d
in

g
p
la

n
ti
n
g

a
n
d

re
tu

rf
in

g
(w

h
e
re

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

)
1
8
0
.0

0
-

1
8
0
.0

0
1
7
5
.0

0
-

1
7
5
.0

0

(6
)

S
e
a
rc

h
o

f
b

u
ri

a
ls

re
g

is
te

rs
(e

x
c
e
p
t
in

th
e

c
a
s
e

o
f

fu
n
e
ra

l
d
ir
e
c
to

rs
a
n
d

s
o
lic

it
o
rs

m
a
k
in

g
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

in
re

s
p
e
c
t
o
f

a

re
c
e
n
t
d
e
a
th

in
c
lu

d
in

g
lo

c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

g
ra

v
e

o
n

s
it
e
.)

M
a
x
im

u
m

C
h
a
rg

e
1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0
1
1
5
.0

0
-

1
1
5
.0

0

C
e
rt

if
ie

d
c
o
p
y

o
f

a
n

e
n
tr

y
in

b
u
ri
a
l
re

g
is

te
rs

F
O

C
F

O
C

(7
)

T
ra

n
s
fe

r
o

f
E

x
c
lu

s
iv

e
R

ig
h

ts
o

f
B

u
ri

a
l

B
y

a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t

2
9
.1

7
5
.8

3
3
5
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
5
.0

0
3
0
.0

0

B
y

S
ta

tu
to

ry
D

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n

6
6
.6

7
1
3
.3

3
8
0
.0

0
6
2
.5

0
1
2
.5

0
7
5
.0

0

Page 52



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

O
P

U
B

L
IC

C
O

N
V

E
N

IE
N

C
E

S

R
a
d
a
r

K
e
ys

3
.7

3
0
.7

5
4
.4

8
3
.6

4
0
.7

3
4
.3

7

P
C

L
E

A
N

S
IN

G
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

P
le

a
s
e

c
o
n
ta

c
t
th

e
C

le
a
n
s
in

g
D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t
o
n

0
1
3
9
2

6
6
5
0
1
0

to
a
rr

a
n
g
e

th
e
s
e

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

(i
)

T
ra

d
e

R
e
fu

s
e

P
ri
c
e
s

in
c
lu

d
e

a
ll

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

c
h
a
rg

e
s

a
n
d

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

w
a
s
te

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
n
o
te

s

(a
)

F
o
r

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

m
a
d
e

in
b
a
g
s
;

P
la

s
ti
c

b
a
g
s

fo
r

tr
a
d
e
/c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
w

a
s
te

.
2
0
0

b
a
g
s

d
e
liv

e
re

d
.

2
4
5
.0

0
-

2
4
5
.0

0
2
2
5
.5

0
-

2
2
5
.5

0

P
la

s
ti
c

b
a
g
s

fo
r

tr
a
d
e
/c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
w

a
s
te

.
2
5

b
a
g
s

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d

fr
o
m

th
e

C
iv

ic
C

e
n
tr

e
.

3
0
.5

0
-

3
0
.5

0
2
8
.1

9
-

2
8
.1

9

(b
)

F
o

r
c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
m

a
d

e
fr

o
m

w
h

e
e
le

d
c
o

n
ta

in
e
rs

(n
o

b
a
g

re
q

u
ir

e
d

):

2
1
0
L

c
a
p
a
c
it
y

w
h
e
e
le

d
b
in

-
h
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

q
u
a
rt

e
r

7
.6

0
-

7
.6

0
7
.4

0
-

7
.4

0

-
c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

3
.8

0
-

3
.8

0
3
.5

0
-

3
.5

0

3
4
0
L

c
a
p
a
c
it
y

w
h
e
e
le

d
b
in

-
h
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

q
u
a
rt

e
r

1
5
.5

0
-

1
5
.5

0
1
4
.8

0
-

1
4
.8

0

-
c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

4
.5

0
-

4
.5

0
3
.9

0
-

3
.9

0

7
7
0
L

c
a
p
a
c
it
y

w
h
e
e
le

d
b
in

-
h
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

q
u
a
rt

e
r

3
0
.5

0
-

3
0
.5

0
2
9
.3

5
-

2
9
.3

5

-
c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

7
.5

0
-

7
.5

0
6
.7

5
-

6
.7

5

1
1
0
0
L

c
a
p
a
c
it
y

w
h
e
e
le

d
b
in

-
h
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

q
u
a
rt

e
r

4
8
.5

0
-

4
8
.5

0
4
7
.0

0
-

4
7
.0

0

-
c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

1
0
.0

0
-

1
0
.0

0
8
.9

3
-

8
.9

3

2
1
0
L

c
a
p
a
c
it
y

w
h
e
e
le

d
b
in

-
h
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

q
u
a
rt

e
r

7
.6

0
-

7
.6

0
7
.4

0
-

7
.4

0

-
c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

2
.0

0
-

2
.0

0
1
.8

6
-

1
.8

6

3
4
0
L

c
a
p
a
c
it
y

w
h
e
e
le

d
b
in

-
h
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

q
u
a
rt

e
r

1
5
.5

0
-

1
5
.5

0
1
4
.8

0
-

1
4
.8

0

-
c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

2
.6

0
-

2
.6

0
2
.5

4
-

2
.5

4

7
7
0
L

c
a
p
a
c
it
y

w
h
e
e
le

d
b
in

-
h
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

q
u
a
rt

e
r

3
0
.5

0
-

3
0
.5

0
2
9
.3

5
-

2
9
.3

5

-
c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

4
.7

5
-

4
.7

5
4
.6

1
-

4
.6

1

1
1
0
0
L

c
a
p
a
c
it
y

w
h
e
e
le

d
b
in

-
h
ir
e

c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

q
u
a
rt

e
r

4
8
.5

0
-

4
8
.5

0
4
7
.0

0
-

4
7
.0

0

-
c
h
a
rg

e
p
e
r

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

6
.2

5
-

6
.2

5
6
.1

0
-

6
.1

0

(c
)

C
h

a
ri

ty
T

ra
d

e
W

a
s
te

c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
(a

v
a
il
a
b

le
to

re
g

is
te

re
d

c
h

a
ri

ti
e
s

o
n

ly
-

a
c
h

a
ri

ty
re

g
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

n
u

m
b

e
r

w
il
l
b

e
re

q
u

ir
e
d

)

Page 53



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

P
la

s
ti
c

b
a
g
s

fo
r

tr
a
d
e
/c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
w

a
s
te

.
2
0
0

b
a
g
s

d
e
liv

e
re

d
.

1
6
4
.0

0
-

1
6
4
.0

0
1
6
0
.0

0
-

1
6
0
.0

0

P
la

s
ti
c

b
a
g
s

fo
r

tr
a
d
e
/c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
w

a
s
te

.
2
5

b
a
g
s

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d

fr
o
m

th
e

C
iv

ic
C

e
n
tr

e
.

2
0
.5

0
-

2
0
.5

0
2
0
.0

0
-

2
0
.0

0

(d
)

C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
o

f
h

a
z
a
rd

o
u

s
w

a
s
te

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

o
f

h
a
z
a
rd

o
u
s

w
a
s
te

(i
n
c

re
fr

ig
e
ra

ti
o
n

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t)

a
n
d

c
lin

ic
a
l
w

a
s
te

c
a
n

a
ls

o
b
e

a
rr

a
n
g
e
d
.

P
le

a
s
e

c
o
n
ta

c
t
0
1
3
9
2

6
6
5
0
1
0

fo
r

c
h
a
rg

e
s

(e
)

T
ra

d
e

R
e
c
y
c
li
n

g

U
n
lim

it
e
d

(b
u
t
re

a
s
o
n
a
b
le

)
a
m

o
u
n
ts

o
f

p
a
p
e
r

a
n
d

c
a
rd

c
o
lle

c
te

d
o
n

a
re

g
u
la

r
w

e
e
k
ly

b
a
s
is

in
b
a
g
s

o
r

ta
p
e
d

to
g
e
th

e
r

3
.5

7
-

3
.5

7
3
.4

8
-

3
.4

8

U
n
lim

it
e
d

(b
u
t
re

a
s
o
n
a
b
le

)
a
m

o
u
n
ts

o
f

p
a
p
e
r,

c
a
rd

,
c
a
n
s

&

p
la

s
ti
c

c
o
lle

c
te

d
o
n

a
re

g
u
la

r
w

e
e
k
ly

b
a
s
is

in
b
a
g
s

o
r

ta
p
e
d

to
g
e
th

e
r

4
.1

6
-

4
.1

6
4
.0

5
-

4
.0

5

(i
i)

S
a
le

o
f

C
o

m
p

o
s
te

rs
,
W

o
rm

e
ri

e
s

&
C

o
m

p
o

s
t

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d

to
b
e

s
o
ld

a
t
c
o
s
t,

c
u
rr

e
n
t
c
h
a
rg

e
s
:

C
o
m

p
o
s
te

rs

-
J
u
n
io

r
W

o
rm

e
ry

2
2
.5

0
4
.5

0
2
7
.0

0
2
1
.9

1
4
.3

8
2
6
.2

9

M
id

i
W

o
rm

e
ry

2
7
.0

8
5
.4

2
3
2
.5

0
2
6
.2

7
5
.2

5
3
1
.5

2

-
O

ri
g
in

a
l
W

o
rm

e
ry

3
2
.5

0
6
.5

0
3
9
.0

0
3
1
.7

4
6
.3

5
3
8
.0

9

W
o
rm

W
o
rk

s
4

6
5
.0

0
1
3
.0

0
7
8
.0

0
6
3
.0

4
1
2
.6

1
7
5
.6

4

C
o
m

p
o
s
t
B

in
2
2
0
L

7
.5

0
1
.5

0
9
.0

0
7
.1

5
1
.4

3
8
.5

8

C
o
m

p
o
s
t
B

in
3
3
0
L

9
.1

6
1
.8

3
1
0
.9

9
8
.9

4
1
.7

9
1
0
.7

3

C
o
m

p
o
s
t
(5

0
lt

b
a
g
)

4
.1

7
0
.8

3
5
.0

0
3
.7

5
0
.7

5
4
.5

0

Z
o
o

P
o
o

C
o
m

p
o
s
t
(5

0
lt

b
a
g
)

4
.1

7
0
.8

3
5
.0

0
3
.7

5
0
.7

5
4
.5

0

-
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l
c
h
a
rg

e
p
a
ya

b
le

if
d
e
liv

e
ry

re
q
u
ir
e
d

fo
r

a
n
y

o
f

th
e

5
.4

2
1
.0

8
6
.5

0
5
.5

0
1
.1

0
6
.6

0

B
in

s
a
re

a
v
a
ila

b
le

fr
o
m

O
a
k
w

o
o
d

H
o
u
s
e
,
E

x
to

n
R

o
a
d
,
a
n
d

a
re

p
ri
c
e
d

a
t
c
u
rr

e
n
t
m

a
rk

e
t
v
a
lu

e
s

P
ri
c
e
s

o
f

c
o
m

p
o
s
te

rs
m

a
y

b
e

s
u
b
je

c
t
to

c
h
a
n
g
e

a
t
th

e
d
is

c
re

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
H

e
a
lt
h

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Page 54



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(i
ii
)

D
is

p
o

s
a
l
o

f
m

o
to

r
c
a
r

3
7
.5

9
7
.5

2
4
5
.1

0
3
6
.6

7
7
.3

3
4
4
.0

0

(i
v

)
B

u
lk

y
it

e
m

s

W
e

c
o
lle

c
t
a

lim
it
e
d

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

b
u
lk

y
it
e
m

s
fr

o
m

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c

p
re

m
is

e
s

fo
r

a
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

c
h
a
rg

e

F
o
r

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

o
f

la
rg

e
r

q
u
a
n
ti
ti
e
s

o
f

b
u
lk

y
it
e
m

s
,
o
r

fr
o
m

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

p
re

m
is

e
s
,

a
n

h
o
u
rl
y

c
h
a
rg

e
w

ill
b
e

m
a
d
e

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

c
h
a
rg

e
fo

r
o
n
e

it
e
m

fr
o
m

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c

p
re

m
is

e
s

1
5
.5

0
-

1
5
.5

0
1
5
.0

0
-

1
5
.0

0

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

c
h
a
rg

e
fo

r
e
a
c
h

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
it
e
m

-
-

fr
o
m

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c

p
re

m
is

e
s

8
.0

0
-

8
.0

0
8
.0

0
-

8
.0

0

H
o
u
rl
y

ra
te

fo
r

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

-
-

fr
o
m

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

p
re

m
is

e
s

9
1
.5

0
-

9
1
.5

0
8
9
.3

0
-

8
9
.3

0

fr
o
m

s
c
h
o
o
ls

3
8
.0

0
-

3
8
.0

0
3
7
.3

6
-

3
7
.3

6

(v
)

G
a
rd

e
n

W
a
s
te

H
ir
e

o
f

2
4
0
l
b
ro

w
n

w
h
e
e
lie

b
in

fo
r

ye
a
r

3
6
.0

0
-

3
6
.0

0
3
5
.0

0
-

3
5
.0

0

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
2
4
0
l
b
in

s
a
t
s
a
m

e
a
d
d
re

s
s

2
6
.0

0
-

2
6
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
-

2
5
.0

0

H
ir
e

o
f

1
2
0
l
b
ro

w
n

w
h
e
e
lie

b
in

fo
r

ye
a
r

2
6
.0

0
-

2
6
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
-

2
5
.0

0

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
1
2
0
l
b
in

s
a
t
s
a
m

e
a
d
d
re

s
s

1
9
.0

0
-

1
9
.0

0
1
8
.0

0
-

1
8
.0

0

B
io

d
e
g
ra

d
a
b
le

s
a
c
k
s

-
e
a
c
h

(a
v
a
ila

b
le

fr
o
m

2
.0

0
-

2
.0

0
1
.0

0
-

1
.0

0

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
re

ta
ile

rs
a
n
d

C
o
u
n
c
il

o
ff

ic
e
s
)

(v
i)

C
le

a
r

b
a
g

s
fo

r
d

o
m

e
s
ti

c
re

c
y
li
n

g
1
.4

0
-

1
.4

0
1
.3

5
-

1
.3

5

(v
ii
)

D
o

m
e
s
ti

c
R

e
fu

s
e

b
in

s
D

e
ta

il
s

to
fo

ll
o

w

Page 55



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

Q
P

E
S

T
C

O
N

T
R

O
L

(1
)

R
a
t

C
o

n
tr

o
l

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c

p
re

m
is

e
s
,
n
o
n

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c

p
re

m
is

e
s

a
n
d

re
n
te

d
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

-
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

(P
e
r

h
o
u
r

o
r

p
a
rt

)
4
5
.0

0
9
.0

0
5
4
.0

0
4
5
.0

0
9
.0

0
5
4
.0

0

O
u
t
o
f

h
o
u
rs

(p
e
r

h
o
u
r

o
r

p
a
rt

)
6
3
.3

3
1
2
.6

7
7
6
.0

0
6
3
.3

3
1
2
.6

7
7
6
.0

0

(2
)

M
o

u
s
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c

p
re

m
is

e
s
,
n
o
n

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c

p
re

m
is

e
s

a
n
d

re
n
te

d
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

-
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

(P
e
r

h
o
u
r

o
r

p
a
rt

)
4
5
.0

0
9
.0

0
5
4
.0

0
4
5
.0

0
9
.0

0
5
4
.0

0

O
u
t
o
f

h
o
u
rs

(p
e
r

h
o
u
r

o
f

p
a
rt

)
6
3
.3

3
1
2
.6

7
7
6
.0

0
6
3
.3

3
1
2
.6

7
7
6
.0

0

(3
)

In
s
e
c
t

C
o

n
tr

o
l

W
a
s
p
s

-
d
u
ri
n
g

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

h
o
u
rs

4
1
.6

7
8
.3

3
5
0
.0

0
4
1
.6

7
8
.3

3
5
0
.0

0

-
o
u
t
o
f

h
o
u
rs

6
3
.3

3
1
2
.6

7
7
6
.0

0
6
3
.3

3
1
2
.6

7
7
6
.0

0

B
e
d

B
u
g
s

-
d
u
ri
n
g

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

h
o
u
rs

(o
n
e

ro
o
m

)
7
1
.6

7
1
4
.3

3
8
6
.0

0
7
1
.6

7
1
4
.3

3
8
6
.0

0

-
o
u
t
o
f

h
o
u
rs

(o
n
e

ro
o
m

)
1
0
8
.3

3
2
1
.6

7
1
3
0
.0

0
1
0
8
.3

3
2
1
.6

7
1
3
0
.0

0

-
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
ro

o
m

s
-

p
e
r

ro
o
m

4
5
.0

0
9
.0

0
5
4
.0

0
4
5
.0

0
9
.0

0
5
4
.0

0

F
le

a
s

-
O

n
e

ro
o
m

5
4
.1

7
1
0
.8

3
6
5
.0

0
5
4
.1

7
1
0
.8

3
6
5
.0

0

-
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
ro

o
m

s
-

p
e
r

ro
o
m

1
8
.3

3
3
.6

7
2
2
.0

0
1
8
.3

3
3
.6

7
2
2
.0

0

-
o
u
t
o
f

h
o
u
rs

(o
n
e

ro
o
m

)
1
0
8
.3

3
2
1
.6

7
1
3
0
.0

0
1
0
8
.3

3
2
1
.6

7
1
3
0
.0

0

C
o
c
k
ro

a
c
h
e
s

-
O

n
e

ro
o
m

7
1
.6

7
1
4
.3

3
8
6
.0

0
7
1
.6

7
1
4
.3

3
8
6
.0

0

-
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
ro

o
m

s
-

p
e
r

ro
o
m

4
5
.0

0
9
.0

0
5
4
.0

0
4
5
.0

0
9
.0

0
5
4
.0

0

-
o
u
t
o
f

h
o
u
rs

(o
n
e

ro
o
m

)
1
0
8
.3

3
2
1
.6

7
1
3
0
.0

0
1
0
8
.3

3
2
1
.6

7
1
3
0
.0

0

O
th

e
r

In
s
e
c
ts

-
d
u
ri
n
g

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

h
o
u
rs

-
m

in
im

u
m

c
h
a
rg

e
6
3
.3

3
1
2
.6

7
7
6
.0

0
6
3
.3

3
1
2
.6

7
7
6
.0

0

(p
ri
c
e

o
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

fo
r

e
a
c
h

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t
o
r

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t
o
u
t
o
f

h
o
u
rs

)

(4
)

S
u

rv
e
y

a
n

d
A

d
v

ic
e

V
is

it
s

S
u
rv

e
y

a
n
d

A
d
v
ic

e
V

is
it
s

to
p
re

m
is

e
s

1
2
.5

0
2
.5

0
1
5
.0

0
1
2
.5

0
2
.5

0
1
5
.0

0

(t
h
is

c
h
a
rg

e
w

ill
b
e

d
e
d
u
c
te

d
fr

o
m

th
e

fi
n
a
l
c
o
s
t
o
f

th
e

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t
if

a
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t
is

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
)

5
0
%

c
h
a
rg

e
d
u
ri
n
g

o
ff

ic
e

h
o
u
rs

fo
r

s
u
rv

e
y

a
n
d

a
d
v
ic

e
v
is

it
s

a
n
d

th
e

d
e
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

p
u
b
lic

h
e
a
lt
h

p
e
s
ts

i.
e
.
m

ic
e
,
fl
e
a
s
,
b
e
d
b
u
g
s

a
n
d

w
a
s
p
s

w
h
e
re

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r/

te
n
a
n
t
is

o
n

In
c
o
m

e
S

u
p
p
o
rt

,
In

c
o
m

e
B

a
s
e
d

J
o
b

S
e
e
k
e
r’
s

A
llo

w
a
n
c
e
,

In
c
o
m

e
R

e
la

te
d

E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t
a
n
d

S
u
p
p
o
rt

A
llo

w
a
n
c
e

a
n
d

G
u
a
ra

n
te

e
d

P
e
n
s
io

n
C

re
d
it

Page 56



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

A
n
n
u
a
l
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

fo
r

p
e
s
t
c
o
n
tr

o
l
a
t
th

e

d
is

c
re

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t
D

ir
e
c
to

r
(E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t)

*
C

h
a
rg

e
s

a
re

n
o
rm

a
lly

o
n

a
p
a
ym

e
n
t
b
e
fo

re
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t
b
a
s
is

.
W

h
e
re

a
n

a
c
c
o
u
n
t
is

re
n
d
e
re

d
,

a
n

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
c
h
a
rg

e
o
f

£
2
0
.0

0
is

le
v
ie

d
(i
n
c

V
A

T
).

C
h
a
rg

e
s

m
a
y

b
e

w
a
iv

e
d

b
y

th
e

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t
D

ir
e
c
to

r
(E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t)

fo
r

p
u
b
lic

h
e
a
lt
h

re
a
s
o
n
s
.

R
D

O
G

K
E

N
N

E
L

L
IN

G

(1
)

R
e
c
e
p

ti
o

n
(i

n
c
.
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

)

W
h
e
re

a
s
tr

a
y

d
o
g

is
ta

k
e
n

to
a

k
e
n
n
e
l
(c

h
o
s
e
n

b
y

th
e

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t

D
ir
e
c
to

r
-

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t)

,
th

e
o
w

n
e
r

o
f

th
e

d
o
g

w
ill

b
e

c
h
a
rg

e
d

fo
r

th
e

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n

c
o
s
ts

,
k
e
n
n
e
lli

n
g

a
n
d

a
s
ta

tu
to

ry

fi
n
e

o
f

£
2
5

o
n

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g

th
e

d
o
g
.

(2
)

O
th

e
r

C
h

a
rg

e
s

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

(s
h
o
u
ld

a
n

a
c
c
o
u
n
t
b
e

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

in
re

s
p
e
c
t
o
f

k
e
n
n
e
lli

n
g
)

1
6
.6

7
3
.3

3
2
0
.0

0
1
6
.6

7
3
.3

3
2
0
.0

0

S
ta

tu
to

ry
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
c
h
a
rg

e
(E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

2
5
.0

0
-

2
5
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
-

2
5
.0

0

(S
tr

a
y

D
o
g
s
)

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s

1
9
9
2
)

K
e
n
n
e
lli

n
g

a
n
d

V
e
te

ri
n
a
ry

c
a
re

c
h
a
rg

e
d

a
t
c
o
s
t

R
e
tu

rn
in

g
D

o
g

to
O

w
n
e
r

O
ff

ic
e

H
o
u
rs

2
0
.8

3
4
.1

7
2
5
.0

0
2
0
.8

3
4
.1

7
2
5
.0

0

R
e
tu

rn
in

g
D

o
g

to
O

w
n
e
r

O
u
t
o
f

O
ff

ic
e

H
o
u
rs

6
2
.5

0
1
2
.5

0
7
5
.0

0
6
2
.5

0
1
2
.5

0
7
5
.0

0

Page 57



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

S
H

O
M

E
C

A
L

L

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

(p
e
r

w
e
e
k
)

3
.5

3
0
.7

1
4
.2

4
3
.4

3
0
.6

9
4
.1

2

K
e
ys

a
fe

s
e
rv

ic
e

-
p
e
r

w
e
e
k

1
.7

9
0
.3

6
2
.1

5
1
.7

4
0
.3

5
2
.0

8

K
e
ys

a
fe

(p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
)

8
5
.7

0
1
7
.1

4
1
0
2
.8

4
8
3
.2

0
1
6
.6

4
9
9
.8

4

o
th

e
r

p
e
ri
p
h
e
ra

l
d
e
v
ic

e
s

c
h
a
rg

e
d

a
t
a

m
im

in
u
m

o
f

1
.4

%
o
f

u
n
it

c
o
s
t
p
ri
c
e

p
lu

s
V

A
T

p
e
r

w
e
e
k

in
c
lu

d
in

g
:

S
m

o
k
e

d
e
te

c
to

r
-

p
e
r

w
e
e
k

0
.8

6
0
.1

7
1
.0

3
0
.8

3
0
.1

7
1
.0

0

H
e
a
t
d
e
te

c
to

r
-

p
e
r

w
e
e
k

1
.0

8
0
.2

2
1
.2

9
1
.0

4
0
.2

1
1
.2

5

C
O

d
e
te

c
to

r
-

p
e
r

w
e
e
k

1
.3

4
0
.2

7
1
.6

1
1
.3

0
0
.2

6
1
.5

6

F
a
ll

d
e
te

c
to

r
-

p
e
r

w
e
e
k

1
.2

9
0
.2

6
1
.5

5
1
.2

5
0
.2

5
1
.5

0

C
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

/
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

o
n
ly

-
B

y
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n

L
o
n
e

W
o
rk

e
r

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

-
B

y
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n

A
d

h
o
c

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

c
h
a
rg

e
(p

e
r

h
o
u
r

o
r

p
a
rt

)
2
5
.7

5
5
.1

5
3
0
.9

0
2
5
.0

0
5
.0

0
3
0
.0

0

T
C

C
T

V

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

C
C

T
V

d
a
ta

to
th

ir
d

p
a
rt

ie
s

in
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

lit
ig

a
ti
o
n

(n
o
t
S

u
b
je

c
t
A

c
c
e
s
s

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts

)
1
4
6
.7

6
2
9
.3

5
1
7
6
.1

1
1
4
2
.4

8
2
8
.5

0
1
7
0
.9

8

U
M

IS
C

E
L

L
A

N
E

O
U

S

(1
)

S
u

rr
e
n

d
e
r

o
f

u
n

fi
t

fo
o

d
s
tu

ff
s

p
e
r

h
o
u
r

o
r

p
a
rt

8
1
.2

5
1
6
.2

5
9
7
.5

0
7
9
.1

7
1
5
.8

3
9
5
.0

0

R
e
g
u
la

r
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s

-

A
n
n
u
a
l
te

rm
s

to
b
e

a
g
re

e
d

(2
)

F
o

o
d

E
x
p

o
rt

L
ic

e
n

c
e

(P
e
r

h
o
u
r

o
r

p
a
rt

)

P
lu

s
a
n
a
ly

s
ts

fe
e

8
0
.0

0
-

8
0
.0

0
7
8
.0

0
-

7
8
.0

0

Page 58



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(3
)

W
a
te

r
S

a
m

p
li
n

g
a
n

d
P

ri
v

a
te

W
a
te

r
S

u
p

p
li
e
s

S
ta

tu
to

ry
c
h
a
rg

e
s
:

S
a
m

p
lin

g
V

is
it

F
e
e

p
lu

s
a
n
a
ly

s
is

6
6
.6

7
1
3
.3

3
8
0
.0

0
6
6
.6

7
1
3
.3

3
8
0
.0

0

P
ri
v
a
te

W
a
te

r
S

u
p
p
ly

R
is

k
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

1
6
6
.6

7
3
3
.3

3
2
0
0
.0

0
1
6
6
.6

7
3
3
.3

3
2
0
0
.0

0

P
ri
v
a
te

W
a
te

r
S

u
p
p
ly

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n

C
o
s
ts

6
6
.6

7
1
3
.3

3
8
0
.0

0
6
6
.6

7
1
3
.3

3
8
0
.0

0

P
ri
v
a
te

W
a
te

r
S

u
p
p
ly

G
ra

n
ti
n
g

a
n

A
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n

6
6
.6

7
1
3
.3

3
8
0
.0

0
6
6
.6

7
1
3
.3

3
8
0
.0

0

(4
)

F
o

o
d

H
y
g

ie
n

e
C

o
u

rs
e
s

L
e
v
e
l
2

A
w

a
rd

in
F

o
o
d

S
a
fe

ty
in

C
a
te

ri
n
g

4
2
.5

0
-

4
2
.5

0
4
0
.0

0
-

4
0
.0

0

L
e
v
e
l
3

A
w

a
rd

in
F

o
o
d

S
a
fe

ty
in

C
a
te

ri
n
g

2
4
5
.0

0
-

2
4
5
.0

0
2
4
0
.0

0
-

2
4
0
.0

0

L
e
v
e
l
4

A
w

a
rd

in
F

o
o
d

S
a
fe

ty
in

C
a
te

ri
n
g

4
5
0
.0

0
-

4
5
0
.0

0
4
4
0
.0

0
-

4
4
0
.0

0

L
e
v
e
l
3

A
w

a
rd

in
F

o
o
d

S
a
fe

ty
S

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
in

R
e
ta

il
2
4
5
.0

0
-

2
4
5
.0

0
2
4
0
.0

0
-

2
4
0
.0

0

L
e
v
e
l
2

A
w

a
rd

in
H

e
a
lt
h
ie

r
F

o
o
d
s

a
n
d

S
p
e
c
ia

l
D

ie
ts

4
2
.5

0
-

4
2
.5

0
4
0
.0

0
-

4
0
.0

0

O
th

e
r

C
o
u
rs

e
s

1
2
3
.0

0
-

1
2
3
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0

(5
)

S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

F
a
c
tu

a
l
S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

fo
r

C
iv

il
P

ro
c
e
e
d
in

g
s

1
3
3
.3

3
2
6
.6

7
1
6
0
.0

0
1
3
0
.0

0
2
6
.0

0
1
5
6
.0

0

(6
)

H
e
a
lt

h
&

S
a
fe

ty
C

o
u

rs
e
s

L
e
v
e
l
2

A
w

a
rd

in
H

e
a
lt
h

&
S

a
fe

ty
4
2
.5

0
-

4
2
.5

0
4
0
.0

0
-

4
0
.0

0

L
e
v
e
l
4

A
w

a
rd

in
H

e
a
lt
h

a
n
d

S
a
fe

ty
4
5
0
.0

0
-

4
5
0
.0

0
4
4
0
.0

0
-

4
4
0
.0

0

L
e
v
e
l
3

A
w

a
rd

in
R

is
k

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

1
6
5
.0

0
-

1
6
5
.0

0
1
6
0
.0

0
-

1
6
0
.0

0

P
ri
n
c
ip

a
ls

in
M

a
n
u
a
l
H

a
n
d
lin

g
3
2
.5

0
-

3
2
.5

0
3
0
.0

0
-

3
0
.0

0

(7
)

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l
A

w
a
re

n
e
s
s

C
o

u
rs

e
4
2
.5

0
-

4
2
.5

0
4
0
.0

0
-

4
0
.0

0

(8
)

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
u

rs
e

4
6
0
.0

0
-

4
6
0
.0

0
4
5
0
.0

0
-

4
5
0
.0

0

F
e
e
s

fo
r

o
th

e
r

c
o
u
rs

e
s

to
b
e

a
t
th

e
d
is

c
re

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t
D

ir
e
c
to

r
(E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t)

.

W
h
e
re

a
n

a
c
c
o
u
n
t
is

re
n
d
e
re

d
,
a
n

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
c
h
a
rg

e
o
f

£
2
0
.0

0
is

le
v
ie

d
(i
n
c

V
A

T
).

Page 59



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

V
L

IC
E

N
S

IN
G

F
E

E
S

-
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

A
N

O
N

R
E

T
U

R
N

A
B

L
E

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
F

E
E

O
F

£
2
5

IN
C

L
U

D
IN

G
V

A
T

A
T

T
H

E
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

R
A

T
E

IS
P

A
Y

A
B

L
E

W
IT

H
A

L
L

N
E

W
A

P
P

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
(I

N
C

L
U

D
E

S
K

N
O

W
L
E

D
G

E
T

E
S

T
)

(1
)

H
a
c
k
n

e
y

c
a
rr

ia
g

e

V
e
h
ic

le
L
ic

e
n
c
e

2
6
6
.5

0
-

2
6
6
.5

0
2
6
0
.0

0
-

2
6
0
.0

0

(I
n
c
l
P

la
te

&
S

u
rv

e
y

C
h
a
rg

e
)

(2
)

H
a
c
k
n

e
y

C
a
rr

ia
g

e

D
ri
v
e
r'
s

L
ic

e
n
c
e

a
n
d

Id
e
n
ti
ty

c
a
rd

-
1

ye
a
r

9
0
.0

0
-

9
0
.0

0
8
8
.0

0
-

8
8
.0

0

D
ri
v
e
r'
s

L
ic

e
n
c
e

a
n
d

Id
e
n
ti
ty

c
a
rd

-
3

ye
a
r

2
1
5
.0

0
-

2
1
5
.0

0
2
1
0
.0

0
-

2
1
0
.0

0

D
is

c
lo

s
u
re

a
n
d

B
a
rr

in
g

S
c
h
e
m

e
(p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

C
R

B
)

c
h
e
c
k

(i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
o
f

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

fe
e
)

4
4
.0

0
-

4
4
.0

0
4
4
.0

0
-

4
4
.0

0

(3
)

P
ri

v
a
te

H
ir

e
O

p
e
ra

to
rs

L
ic

e
n

c
e

p
e
r

a
n
n
u
m

1
0
2
.5

0
-

1
0
2
.5

0
1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0

5
ye

a
r

lic
e
n
c
e

4
5
0
.0

0
-

4
5
0
.0

0
4
3
0
.0

0
-

4
3
0
.0

0

D
is

c
lo

s
u
re

a
n
d

B
a
rr

in
g

S
c
h
e
m

e
(p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

C
R

B
)

c
h
e
c
k

(i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
o
f

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

fe
e
)

4
4
.0

0
-

4
4
.0

0
4
4
.0

0
-

4
4
.0

0

(4
)

P
ri

v
a
te

H
ir

e
V

e
h

ic
le

L
ic

e
n

c
e

(I
n
c
l.

P
la

te
)

2
4
0
.0

0
-

2
4
0
.0

0
2
3
4
.0

0
-

2
3
4
.0

0

(5
)

P
ri

v
a
te

H
ir

e
D

ri
v

e
rs

D
ri
v
e
r'
s

L
ic

e
n
c
e

a
n
d

Id
e
n
ti
ty

c
a
rd

-
1

ye
a
r

9
0
.0

0
-

9
0
.0

0
8
8
.0

0
-

8
8
.0

0

D
ri
v
e
r'
s

L
ic

e
n
c
e

a
n
d

Id
e
n
ti
ty

c
a
rd

-
3

ye
a
r

2
1
5
.0

0
-

2
1
5
.0

0
2
1
0
.0

0
-

2
1
0
.0

0

D
is

c
lo

s
u
re

a
n
d

B
a
rr

in
g

S
c
h
e
m

e
(p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

C
R

B
)

c
h
e
c
k

(i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
o
f

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

fe
e
)

4
4
.0

0
-

4
4
.0

0
4
4
.0

0
-

4
4
.0

0

(6
)

V
e
h

ic
le

L
ic

e
n

c
e
s

a
n

d
P

la
te

-
T

ra
n

s
fe

r
F

e
e
s

5
5
.0

0
-

5
5
.0

0
5
2
.0

0
-

5
2
.0

0

(7
)

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l
K

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
T

e
s
t

2
5
.8

3
5
.1

7
3
1
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
5
.0

0
3
0
.0

0

(8
)

M
is

c
e
ll
a
n

e
o

u
s

fe
e
s

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t
p
la

te
2
7
.0

0
-

2
7
.0

0
2
6
.0

0
-

2
6
.0

0

M
is

s
e
d

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

2
2
.5

0
4
.5

0
2
7
.0

0
2
1
.6

7
4
.3

3
2
6
.0

0

Page 60



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(9
)

C
o

n
s
e
n

ts
to

S
tr

e
e
t

T
ra

d
e

F
o
r

u
p

to
3

m
o
n
th

s
7
1
8
.0

0
-

7
1
8
.0

0
7
0
0
.0

0
-

7
0
0
.0

0

F
o
r

u
p

to
6

m
o
n
th

s
1
,0

2
5
.0

0
-

1
,0

2
5
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
-

1
,0

0
0
.0

0

F
o
r

u
p

to
9

m
o
n
th

s
1
,5

3
8
.0

0
-

1
,5

3
8
.0

0
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
-

1
,5

0
0
.0

0

F
o
r

u
p

to
1
2

m
o
n
th

s
1
,7

9
5
.0

0
-

1
,7

9
5
.0

0
1
,7

5
0
.0

0
-

1
,7

5
0
.0

0

A
n

im
a
l
W

e
lf

a
re

(1
0
)

A
n

im
a
l
B

o
a
rd

in
g

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h

m
e
n

t

L
ic

e
n
c
e

(a
)

N
e
w

L
ic

e
n
c
e

1
2
8
.0

0
-

1
2
8
.0

0
1
2
5
.0

0
-

1
2
5
.0

0

(b
)

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

1
2
8
.0

0
-

1
2
8
.0

0
1
2
5
.0

0
-

1
2
5
.0

0

p
lu

s
V

e
ts

fe
e

(1
1
)

P
e
t

A
n

im
a
ls

L
ic

e
n

c
e

(a
)

N
e
w

L
ic

e
n
c
e

1
2
8
.0

0
-

1
2
8
.0

0
1
2
5
.0

0
-

1
2
5
.0

0

(b
)

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

1
2
8
.0

0
-

1
2
8
.0

0
1
2
5
.0

0
-

1
2
5
.0

0

p
lu

s
V

e
ts

fe
e

(1
2
)

R
id

in
g

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h

m
e
n

ts
L

ic
e
n

c
e

M
in

im
u
m

c
h
a
rg

e
4
6
8
.0

0
-

4
6
8
.0

0
4
6
8
.0

0
-

4
6
8
.0

0

p
e
r

h
o
rs

e
in

e
x
c
e
s
s

o
f

1
0

7
.0

0
-

7
.0

0
7
.0

0
-

7
.0

0

p
lu

s
V

e
ts

fe
e

(1
3
)

D
o

g
B

re
e
d

in
g

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h

m
e
n

ts
L

ic
e
n

c
e

(a
)

N
e
w

L
ic

e
n
c
e

1
2
8
.0

0
-

1
2
8
.0

0
1
2
5
.0

0
-

1
2
5
.0

0

(b
)

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

1
2
8
.0

0
-

1
2
8
.0

0
1
2
5
.0

0
-

1
2
5
.0

0

(1
4
)

D
a
n

g
e
ro

u
s

W
il
d

A
n

im
a
ls

A
c
t*

L
ic

e
n
c
e

F
e
e

(i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
o
f

V
e
ts

fe
e
s
)

3
2
0
.0

0
-

3
2
0
.0

0
3
1
2
.0

0
-

3
1
2
.0

0

Page 61



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(1
5
)

S
e
x

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h

m
e
n

ts
L

ic
e
n

c
e

3
,7

0
0
.0

0
-

3
,7

0
0
.0

0
3
,6

2
5
.0

0
-

3
,6

2
5
.0

0

(1
6
)

S
m

a
ll

L
o

tt
e
ri

e
s

S
ta

tu
to

ry
C

h
a
rg

e
s

(a
)

R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

4
0
.0

0
-

4
0
.0

0
4
0
.0

0
-

4
0
.0

0

(b
)

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

2
0
.0

0
-

2
0
.0

0
2
0
.0

0
-

2
0
.0

0

(1
7
)

G
a
m

b
li
n

g
A

c
t

2
0
0
5

S
ta

tu
to

ry
c
h
a
rg

e
s
:

(i
)

B
in

g
o

-
P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

2
,7

4
5
.0

0
-

2
,7

4
5
.0

0
2
,7

4
5
.0

0
-

2
,7

4
5
.0

0

-
N

e
w

p
re

m
is

e
s

fo
llo

w
in

g
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

1
,0

6
0
.0

0
-

1
,0

6
0
.0

0
1
,0

6
0
.0

0
-

1
,0

6
0
.0

0

-
N

e
w

p
re

m
is

e
s

w
it
h
o
u
t
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

3
,2

1
5
.0

0
-

3
,2

1
5
.0

0
3
,2

1
5
.0

0
-

3
,2

1
5
.0

0

-
A

n
n
u
a
l
fe

e
-

F
ir
s
t
ye

a
r

o
n
ly

fo
llo

w
in

g
�

fa
5
9
0
.0

0
-

5
9
0
.0

0
5
9
0
.0

0
-

5
9
0
.0

0

-
A

n
n
u
a
l
fe

e
-

o
th

e
r

th
a
n

a
b
o
v
e

7
6
5
.0

0
-

7
6
5
.0

0
7
6
5
.0

0
-

7
6
5
.0

0

-
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n

1
,3

8
0
.0

0
-

1
,3

8
0
.0

0
1
,3

8
0
.0

0
-

1
,3

8
0
.0

0

-
T

ra
n
s
fe

r
9
4
5
.0

0
-

9
4
5
.0

0
9
4
5
.0

0
-

9
4
5
.0

0

-
R

e
in

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

9
4
5
.0

0
-

9
4
5
.0

0
9
4
5
.0

0
-

9
4
5
.0

0

(i
i)

A
d

u
lt

G
a
m

in
g

C
e
n

tr
e

-
P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

1
,5

3
0
.0

0
-

1
,5

3
0
.0

0
1
,5

3
0
.0

0
-

1
,5

3
0
.0

0

-
N

e
w

p
re

m
is

e
s

fo
llo

w
in

g
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

1
,1

7
8
.0

0
-

1
,1

7
8
.0

0
1
,1

7
8
.0

0
-

1
,1

7
8
.0

0

-
N

e
w

p
re

m
is

e
s

w
it
h
o
u
t
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

2
,0

0
0
.0

0
-

2
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
-

2
,0

0
0
.0

0

-
A

n
n
u
a
l
fe

e
-

F
ir
s
t
ye

a
r

o
n
ly

fo
llo

w
in

g
�

fa
5
9
0
.0

0
-

5
9
0
.0

0
5
9
0
.0

0
-

5
9
0
.0

0

-
A

n
n
u
a
l
fe

e
-

o
th

e
r

th
a
n

a
b
o
v
e

7
6
5
.0

0
-

7
6
5
.0

0
7
6
5
.0

0
-

7
6
5
.0

0

-
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n

7
6
5
.0

0
-

7
6
5
.0

0
7
6
5
.0

0
-

7
6
5
.0

0

-
T

ra
n
s
fe

r
9
4
5
.0

0
-

9
4
5
.0

0
9
4
5
.0

0
-

9
4
5
.0

0

-
R

e
in

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

9
4
5
.0

0
-

9
4
5
.0

0
9
4
5
.0

0
-

9
4
5
.0

0

Page 62



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(i
ii
)

F
a
m

il
y

E
n

te
rt

a
in

m
e
n

t
C

e
n

tr
e

-
P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

7
6
5
.0

0
-

7
6
5
.0

0
7
6
5
.0

0
-

7
6
5
.0

0

-
N

e
w

p
re

m
is

e
s

fo
llo

w
in

g
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

1
,1

2
0
.0

0
-

1
,1

2
0
.0

0
1
,1

2
0
.0

0
-

1
,1

2
0
.0

0

-
N

e
w

p
re

m
is

e
s

w
it
h
o
u
t
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

1
,7

6
8
.0

0
-

1
,7

6
8
.0

0
1
,7

6
8
.0

0
-

1
,7

6
8
.0

0

-
A

n
n
u
a
l
fe

e
-

F
ir
s
t
ye

a
r

o
n
ly

fo
llo

w
in

g
�

fa
4
1
5
.0

0
-

4
1
5
.0

0
4
1
5
.0

0
-

4
1
5
.0

0

-
A

n
n
u
a
l
fe

e
-

o
th

e
r

th
a
n

a
b
o
v
e

5
9
0
.0

0
-

5
9
0
.0

0
5
9
0
.0

0
-

5
9
0
.0

0

-
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n

7
9
0
.0

0
-

7
9
0
.0

0
7
9
0
.0

0
-

7
9
0
.0

0

-
T

ra
n
s
fe

r
7
6
5
.0

0
-

7
6
5
.0

0
7
6
5
.0

0
-

7
6
5
.0

0

-
R

e
in

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

7
6
5
.0

0
-

7
6
5
.0

0
7
3
0
.0

0
-

7
3
0
.0

0

(i
v

)
B

e
tt

in
g

T
ra

c
k

-
P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

7
1
0
.0

0
-

7
1
0
.0

0
7
1
0
.0

0
-

7
1
0
.0

0

-
N

e
w

p
re

m
is

e
s

fo
llo

w
in

g
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

2
,0

6
0
.0

0
-

2
,0

6
0
.0

0
2
,0

6
0
.0

0
-

2
,0

6
0
.0

0

-
N

e
w

p
re

m
is

e
s

w
it
h
o
u
t
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

2
,0

6
0
.0

0
-

2
,0

6
0
.0

0
2
,0

6
0
.0

0
-

2
,0

6
0
.0

0

-
A

n
n
u
a
l
fe

e
-

o
th

e
r

th
a
n

a
b
o
v
e

7
3
6
.0

0
-

7
3
6
.0

0
7
3
6
.0

0
-

7
3
6
.0

0

-
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
-

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
-

1
,0

0
0
.0

0

-
T

ra
n
s
fe

r
7
1
0
.0

0
-

7
1
0
.0

0
7
1
0
.0

0
-

7
1
0
.0

0

-
R

e
in

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

7
1
0
.0

0
-

7
1
0
.0

0
7
1
0
.0

0
-

7
1
0
.0

0

(v
)

B
e
tt

in
g

O
th

e
r

-
P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

2
,1

4
2
.0

0
-

2
,1

4
2
.0

0
2
,1

4
2
.0

0
-

2
,1

4
2
.0

0

-
N

e
w

p
re

m
is

e
s

fo
llo

w
in

g
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

1
,2

0
0
.0

0
-

1
,2

0
0
.0

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
-

1
,2

0
0
.0

0

-
N

e
w

p
re

m
is

e
s

w
it
h
o
u
t
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

3
,0

0
0
.0

0
-

3
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
-

3
,0

0
0
.0

0

-
A

n
n
u
a
l
fe

e
-

o
th

e
r

th
a
n

a
b
o
v
e

6
0
0
.0

0
-

6
0
0
.0

0
6
0
0
.0

0
-

6
0
0
.0

0

-
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n

1
,0

7
5
.0

0
-

1
,0

7
5
.0

0
1
,0

7
5
.0

0
-

1
,0

7
5
.0

0

-
T

ra
n
s
fe

r
8
6
0
.0

0
-

8
6
0
.0

0
8
6
0
.0

0
-

8
6
0
.0

0

-
R

e
in

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

8
6
0
.0

0
-

8
6
0
.0

0
8
6
0
.0

0
-

8
6
0
.0

0

(v
i)

M
is

c
e
ll
a
n

e
o

u
s

P
re

m
is

e
s

L
ic

e
n

c
e

F
e
e
s
:

-
C

h
a
n
g
e

o
f

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s

(s
ta

tu
to

ry
c
h
a
rg

e
)

5
0
.0

0
-

5
0
.0

0
5
0
.0

0
-

5
0
.0

0

-
C

o
p
y

o
f

L
ic

e
n
c
e

2
7
.5

0
-

2
7
.5

0
2
7
.5

0
-

2
7
.5

0

Page 63



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(v
ii
)

U
n

li
c
e
n

s
e
d

F
E

C
p

e
rm

it
s

-
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

fe
e

3
3
0
.0

0
-

3
3
0
.0

0
3
3
0
.0

0
-

3
3
0
.0

0

-
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

fe
e

-
e
x
is

ti
n
g

o
p
e
ra

to
r

1
1
0
.0

0
-

1
1
0
.0

0
1
1
0
.0

0
-

1
1
0
.0

0

-
R

e
n
e
w

a
l
fe

e
3
3
0
.0

0
-

3
3
0
.0

0
3
3
0
.0

0
-

3
3
0
.0

0

-
C

h
a
n
g
e

o
f

n
a
m

e
2
7
.5

0
-

2
7
.5

0
2
7
.5

0
-

2
7
.5

0

-
C

o
p
y

o
f

p
e
rm

it
1
5
.0

0
-

1
5
.0

0
1
6
.5

0
-

1
6
.5

0

-
T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
u
s
e

n
o
ti
c
e
s

tb
a

tb
a

-
O

c
c
a
s
io

n
a
l
u
s
e

n
o
ti
c
e
s

tb
a

tb
a

(v
ii
i)

A
u

to
m

a
ti

c
e
n

ti
tl

e
m

e
n

t
-

A
lc

o
h

o
l
L

ic
e
n

s
e
d

P
re

m
is

e
s

-
N

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

tw
o

m
a
c
h
in

e
s

5
0
.0

0
-

5
0
.0

0
5
0
.0

0
-

5
0
.0

0

(i
x
)

P
e
rm

it
fo

r
m

o
re

th
a
n

tw
o

m
a
c
h

in
e
s

-
A

lc
o

h
o

l
L

ic
e
n

s
e
d

P
re

m
is

e
s

-
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

fe
e

-
e
x
is

ti
n
g

o
p
e
ra

to
r

1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0

-
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

fe
e

o
th

e
r

th
a
n

a
s

a
b
o
v
e

1
5
0
.0

0
-

1
5
0
.0

0
1
5
0
.0

0
-

1
5
0
.0

0

-
P

e
rm

it
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

fe
e

1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0

-
P

e
rm

it
tr

a
n
s
fe

r
fe

e
2
5
.0

0
-

2
5
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
-

2
5
.0

0

-
A

n
n
u
a
l
fe

e
5
0
.0

0
-

5
0
.0

0
5
0
.0

0
-

5
0
.0

0

-
C

h
a
n
g
e

o
f

n
a
m

e
2
5
.0

0
-

2
5
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
-

2
5
.0

0

-
C

o
p
y

o
f

p
e
rm

it
1
5
.0

0
-

1
5
.0

0
1
5
.0

0
-

1
5
.0

0

(x
)

P
ri

z
e

G
a
m

in
g

-
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

fe
e

3
0
0
.0

0
-

3
0
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0
-

3
0
0
.0

0

-
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

fe
e

-
e
x
is

ti
n
g

o
p
e
ra

to
r

1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0

-
R

e
n
e
w

a
l
fe

e
3
0
0
.0

0
-

3
0
0
.0

0
3
0
0
.0

0
-

3
0
0
.0

0

-
C

h
a
n
g
e

o
f

n
a
m

e
2
5
.0

0
-

2
5
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
-

2
5
.0

0

-
C

o
p
y

o
f

p
e
rm

it
1
5
.0

0
-

1
5
.0

0
1
5
.0

0
-

1
5
.0

0

Page 64



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(x
i)

C
lu

b
G

a
m

in
g

a
n

d
C

lu
b

M
a
c
h

in
e

P
e
rm

it
s

-
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

fe
e

-
e
x
is

ti
n
g

o
p
e
ra

to
r

1
1
0
.0

0
-

1
1
0
.0

0
1
1
0
.0

0
-

1
1
0
.0

0

-
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

fe
e

o
th

e
r

th
a
n

a
s

a
b
o
v
e

2
2
0
.0

0
-

2
2
0
.0

0
2
2
0
.0

0
-

2
2
0
.0

0

-
P

e
rm

it
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

fe
e

1
1
0
.0

0
-

1
1
0
.0

0
1
1
0
.0

0
-

1
1
0
.0

0

-
P

e
rm

it
fe

e
-

fa
s
t
tr

a
c
k

1
1
0
.0

0
-

1
1
0
.0

0
1
1
0
.0

0
-

1
1
0
.0

0

-
R

e
n
e
w

a
l
fe

e
-

o
th

e
r

2
2
0
.0

0
-

2
2
0
.0

0
2
2
0
.0

0
-

2
2
0
.0

0

-
A

n
n
u
a
l
fe

e
5
5
.0

0
-

5
5
.0

0
5
5
.0

0
-

5
5
.0

0

-
C

o
p
y

o
f

p
e
rm

it
1
5
.0

0
-

1
5
.0

0
1
6
.5

0
-

1
6
.5

0

(1
8
)

M
o

to
r

S
a
lv

a
g

e
O

p
e
ra

to
rs

(a
)

R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

9
5
.0

0
-

9
5
.0

0
8
8
.5

0
-

8
8
.5

0

(b
)

C
o
p
y

o
f

R
e
g
is

te
r

E
n
tr

y
6
.0

0
-

6
.0

0
5
.5

0
-

5
.5

0

(1
9
)

C
o

n
tr

o
l
o

f
S

k
in

P
ie

rc
in

g
e
tc

R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

F
e
e

-
p
re

m
is

e
s

(i
n
c

o
n
e

p
e
rs

o
n
)

8
2
.0

0
-

8
2
.0

0
8
0
.0

0
-

8
0
.0

0

-
e
x
tr

a
p
e
rs

o
n

4
1
.0

0
-

4
1
.0

0
4
0
.0

0
-

4
0
.0

0

(2
0
)

F
o

o
d

P
re

m
is

e
s

R
e
g

is
te

r

C
o
p
y

o
f

w
h
o
le

R
e
g
is

te
r

6
4
0
.0

0
-

6
4
0
.0

0
6
2
4
.0

0
-

6
2
4
.0

0

C
o
p
y

o
f

a
s
e
c
ti
o
n

o
f

R
e
g
is

te
r

1
3
5
.0

0
-

1
3
5
.0

0
1
3
0
.0

0
-

1
3
0
.0

0

C
o
p
y

o
f

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l
p
re

m
is

e
s

1
6
.0

0
-

1
6
.0

0
1
5
.6

0
-

1
5
.6

0

Page 65



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

W
L

IC
E

N
S

IN
G

F
E

E
S

-
L

IC
E

N
S

IN
G

A
C

T
2
0
0
3

S
ta

tu
to

ry
c
h
a
rg

e
s
:

(1
)

P
re

m
is

e
s

L
ic

e
n

c
e

a
n

d
C

lu
b

P
re

m
is

e
s

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s

G
ra

n
t
o
r

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

B
a
n
d

A
-

N
o

ra
te

a
b
le

v
a
lu

e
u
p

to
£
4
,3

0
0

1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
-

1
0
0
.0

0

B
a
n
d

B
-

R
a
te

a
b
le

v
a
lu

e
£
4
,3

0
1

to
£
3
3
,0

0
0

1
9
0
.0

0
-

1
9
0
.0

0
1
9
0
.0

0
-

1
9
0
.0

0

B
a
n
d

C
-

R
a
te

a
b
le

v
a
lu

e
£
3
3
,3

0
1

to
£
8
7
,0

0
0

3
1
5
.0

0
-

3
1
5
.0

0
3
1
5
.0

0
-

3
1
5
.0

0

B
a
n
d

D
-

R
a
te

a
b
le

v
a
lu

e
£
8
7
,0

0
1

to
£
1
2
5
,0

0
0

4
5
0
.0

0
-

4
5
0
.0

0
4
5
0
.0

0
-

4
5
0
.0

0

B
a
n
d

C
-

R
a
te

a
b
le

v
a
lu

e
£
1
2
5
,0

0
1

a
n
d

a
b
o
v
e

6
3
5
.0

0
-

6
3
5
.0

0
6
3
5
.0

0
-

6
3
5
.0

0

A
n
n
u
a
l
fe

e

B
a
n
d

A
-

N
o

ra
te

a
b
le

v
a
lu

e
u
p

to
£
4
,3

0
0

7
0
.0

0
-

7
0
.0

0
7
0
.0

0
-

7
0
.0

0

B
a
n
d

B
-

R
a
te

a
b
le

v
a
lu

e
£
4
,3

0
1

to
£
3
3
,0

0
0

1
8
0
.0

0
-

1
8
0
.0

0
1
8
0
.0

0
-

1
8
0
.0

0

B
a
n
d

C
-

R
a
te

a
b
le

v
a
lu

e
£
3
3
,3

0
1

to
£
8
7
,0

0
0

2
9
5
.0

0
-

2
9
5
.0

0
2
9
5
.0

0
-

2
9
5
.0

0

B
a
n
d

D
-

R
a
te

a
b
le

v
a
lu

e
£
8
7
,0

0
1

to
£
1
2
5
,0

0
0

3
2
0
.0

0
-

3
2
0
.0

0
3
2
0
.0

0
-

3
2
0
.0

0

B
a
n
d

C
-

R
a
te

a
b
le

v
a
lu

e
£
1
2
5
,0

0
1

a
n
d

a
b
o
v
e

3
5
0
.0

0
-

3
5
0
.0

0
3
5
0
.0

0
-

3
5
0
.0

0

*
A

n
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
fe

e
is

p
a
ya

b
le

fo
r

p
re

m
is

e
s

e
x
c
lu

s
iv

e
ly

o
r

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

c
a
rr

yi
n
g

o
n

th
e

s
u
p
p
ly

o
f

a
lc

o
h
o
l
fo

r

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n

o
n

th
e

p
re

m
is

e
s

fo
r

e
v
e
n
ts

o
f

5
,0

0
0

o
r

m
o
re

p
e
rs

o
n
s
.

(2
)

O
th

e
r

c
h

a
rg

e
s

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
e
v
e
n
t
n
o
ti
c
e

2
1
.0

0
-

2
1
.0

0
2
1
.0

0
-

2
1
.0

0

T
h
e
ft

,
lo

s
s

e
tc

o
f

p
re

m
is

e
s

lic
e
n
c
e

o
r

s
u
m

m
a
ry

1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0
1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

fo
r

p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

3
1
5
.0

0
-

3
1
5
.0

0
3
1
5
.0

0
-

3
1
5
.0

0

N
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

c
h
a
n
g
e

o
f

n
a
m

e
a
n
d

a
d
d
re

s
s

1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0
1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

to
s
p
e
c
if
y

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l
a
s

p
re

m
is

e
s

s
u
p
e
rv

is
o
r

2
3
.0

0
-

2
3
.0

0
2
3
.0

0
-

2
3
.0

0

T
ra

n
s
fe

r
o
f

p
re

m
is

e
s

lic
e
n
c
e

2
3
.0

0
-

2
3
.0

0
2
3
.0

0
-

2
3
.0

0

In
te

ri
m

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

n
o
ti
c
e

2
3
.0

0
-

2
3
.0

0
2
3
.0

0
-

2
3
.0

0

T
h
e
ft

,
lo

s
s

e
tc

o
f

c
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

o
r

s
u
m

m
a
ry

1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0
1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0

N
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

c
h
a
n
g
e

o
f

n
a
m

e
o
r

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n

o
f

c
lu

b
ru

le
s

1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0
1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0

C
h
a
n
g
e

o
f

re
le

v
a
n
t
re

g
is

te
re

d
a
d
d
re

s
s

o
f

c
lu

b
1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0
1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0

T
h
e
ft

,
lo

s
s

e
tc

o
f

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
e
v
e
n
t
n
o
ti
c
e

1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0
1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0

G
ra

n
t
o
r

re
n
e
w

a
l
o
f

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l
lic

e
n
c
e

3
4
.0

0
-

3
4
.0

0
3
4
.0

0
-

3
4
.0

0

T
h
e
ft

,
lo

s
s

e
tc

o
f

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l
lic

e
n
c
e

1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0
1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0

D
u
ty

to
n
o
ti
fy

c
h
a
n
g
e

o
f

n
a
m

e
o
r

a
d
d
re

s
s

1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0
1
0
.5

0
-

1
0
.5

0

R
ig

h
t
o
f

fr
e
e
h
o
ld

e
r

to
b
e

n
o
ti
fi
e
d

2
1
.0

0
-

2
1
.0

0
2
1
.0

0
-

2
1
.0

0

Page 66



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

X
H

O
U

S
E

S
IN

M
U

L
T

IP
L

E
O

C
C

U
P

A
T

IO
N

L
ic

e
n
c
e

fo
r

H
o
u
s
e
s

in
m

u
lt
ip

le
o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

fi
v
e

o
r

m
o
re

re
s
id

e
n
ts

o
c
c
u
p
yi

n
g

a
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
m

o
re

th
a
n

tw
o

s
to

re
ys

h
ig

h
(u

n
d
e
r

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n
s

o
f

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
A

c
t
2
0
0
4
)

(1
)

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g

5
ye

a
r

lic
e
n
c
e

-
p
e
r

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
6
8
0
.0

0
-

6
8
0
.0

0
6
7
5
.0

0
-

6
7
5
.0

0

P
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
a

s
h
o
rt

e
r

te
rm

lic
e
n
c
e

6
8
0
.0

0
-

6
8
0
.0

0
6
7
5
.0

0
-

6
7
5
.0

0

P
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
a
n

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

fo
r

a
T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
E

x
e
m

p
ti
o
n

N
o
ti
c
e

1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0

F
e
e

fo
r

o
ff

ic
e
rs

to
d
ra

w
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
p
la

n
s

fo
r

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

o
f

lic
e
n
c
e

1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0

R
e
v
o
c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

lic
e
n
c
e

1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0

(2
)

S
e
rv

in
g

o
f

n
o

ti
c
e
s

a
n

d
m

a
k
in

g
o

f
o

rd
e
rs

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t
n
o
ti
c
e

2
2
5
.0

0
-

2
2
5
.0

0
2
2
0
.0

0
-

2
2
0
.0

0

H
a
z
a
rd

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

n
o
ti
c
e

2
2
5
.0

0
-

2
2
5
.0

0
2
2
0
.0

0
-

2
2
0
.0

0

P
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
o
rd

e
r

/
E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y

p
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
o
rd

e
r

2
2
5
.0

0
-

2
2
5
.0

0
2
2
0
.0

0
-

2
2
0
.0

0

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y

re
m

e
d
ia

l
a
c
ti
o
n

2
2
5
.0

0
-

2
2
5
.0

0
2
2
0
.0

0
-

2
2
0
.0

0

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n

o
rd

e
r

2
5
5
.0

0
-

2
5
5
.0

0
2
5
0
.0

0
-

2
5
0
.0

0

R
e
v
ie

w
in

g
s
u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d

n
o
ti
c
e

o
r

o
rd

e
r

1
2
5
.0

0
-

1
2
5
.0

0
1
2
0
.0

0
-

1
2
0
.0

0

(3
)

F
e
e

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s

F
u
ll

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

w
it
h

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t
n
o
ti
c
e

w
it
h
in

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
b
y

th
e

n
o
ti
c
e

2
2
5
.0

0
-

2
2
5
.0

0
2
2
0
.0

0
-

2
2
0
.0

0

F
u
ll

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

w
it
h

p
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
o
rd

e
r

w
it
h
in

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
b
y

th
e

o
rd

e
r

2
2
5
.0

0
-

2
2
5
.0

0
2
2
0
.0

0
-

2
2
0
.0

0

R
e
s
o
lu

ti
io

n
o
f

h
a
z
a
rd

s
w

it
h
in

3
m

o
n
th

s
o
f

re
c
e
ip

t
o
f

H
a
z
a
rd

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

n
o
ti
c
e

2
2
5
.0

0
-

2
2
5
.0

0
2
2
0
.0

0
-

2
2
0
.0

0

Page 67



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

A
N

D
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
-

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

F
E

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

F
R

O
M

1
A

P
R

IL
2
0
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

2

F
e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l
F

e
e

V
A

T
@

2
0
%

T
o
ta

l

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

£
p

(4
)

Im
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
V

is
it

s

P
re

im
m

ig
ra

ti
o
n

v
is

it
to

d
e
te

rm
in

e
th

e
s
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
o
f

a
p
re

m
is

e
s

fo
r

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

in
c
lu

d
in

g
a

fu
ll

H
H

S
R

S
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

a
n
d

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
le

tt
e
r

c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g

th
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f

th
a
t
v
is

it
.

P
a
ym

e
n
t
m

u
s
t
b
e

m
a
d
e

in
fu

ll
b
e
fo

re
th

e
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

is
c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t
a
n
d

is
n
o
n

re
tu

rn
a
b
le

.
1
6
6
.6

7
3
3
.3

3
2
0
0
.0

0
1
6
6
.6

7
3
3
.3

3
2
0
0
.0

0

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

fo
llo

w
in

g
a

m
is

s
e
d

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t
o
r

c
a
n
c
e
lla

ti
o
n
.
P

a
ym

e
n
t
m

u
s
t
b
e

m
a
d
e

in
fu

ll
b
e
fo

re
th

e

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

is
c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t
a
n
d

is
n
o
n

re
tu

rn
a
b
le

.
6
2
.5

0
1
2
.5

0
7
5
.0

0
6
2
.5

0
1
2
.5

0
7
5
.0

0

Page 68



S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0
1
2
/1

3
IN

F
L

A
T

IO
N

R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

N
O

N
-R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
O

T
H

E
R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0
1
3
/1

4

P
A

Y
1
1
,0

3
8
,2

3
0

1
6
0
,5

0
0

(2
9
6
,3

1
0
)

0
(6

3
8
,3

5
0
)

1
0
,2

6
4
,0

7
0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
4
,1

7
5
,0

5
0

8
7
,6

7
0

5
6
,7

7
0

0
3
6
8
,5

5
0

4
,6

8
8
,0

4
0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3
,1

0
8
,6

6
0

4
2
,3

3
0

(2
5
,3

0
0
)

0
(3

3
8
,6

6
0
)

2
,7

8
7
,0

3
0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
1
,5

2
0
,8

0
0

4
8
,4

2
0

(9
,5

1
0
)

0
(4

1
,2

9
0
)

1
,5

1
8
,4

2
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

3
,4

0
2
,0

2
0

5
4
,2

8
0

0
0

(8
7
5
,0

2
0
)

2
,5

8
1
,2

8
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
1
,9

7
7
,4

2
0

0
0

0
0

1
,9

7
7
,4

2
0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

2
5
,2

2
2
,1

8
0

3
9
3
,2

0
0

(2
7
4
,3

5
0
)

0
(1

,5
2
4
,7

7
0
)

2
3
,8

1
6
,2

6
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(1

1
,6

7
0
,0

9
0
)

(2
2
5
,2

6
0
)

(6
9
,0

0
0
)

0
1
,2

5
6
,7

0
0

(1
0
,7

0
7
,6

5
0
)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(1
1
,6

7
0
,0

9
0
)

(2
2
5
,2

6
0
)

(6
9
,0

0
0
)

0
1
,2

5
6
,7

0
0

(1
0
,7

0
7
,6

5
0
)

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3
,5

5
2
,0

9
0

1
6
7
,9

4
0

(3
4
3
,3

5
0
)

0
(2

6
8
,0

7
0
)

1
3
,1

0
8
,6

1
0

5
4
1
,8

7
0

6
,2

3
0

(1
2
,7

8
0
)

0
(1

4
,5

3
0
)

5
2
0
,7

9
0

3
4
5
,7

7
0

1
,2

1
0

(1
3
,1

7
0
)

0
4
3
,4

7
0

3
7
7
,2

8
0

8
4
0
,5

3
0

1
0
,9

9
0

(1
0
4
,8

8
0
)

0
(2

7
,4

9
0
)

7
1
9
,1

5
0

2
,0

2
8
,9

1
0

2
2
,8

3
0

2
,2

2
0

0
(1

2
2
,0

9
0
)

1
,9

3
1
,8

7
0

2
,2

6
8
,9

2
0

4
4
,4

1
0

4
8
,6

3
0

0
(7

3
,1

6
0
)

2
,2

8
8
,8

0
0

9
0
9
,8

4
0

8
,5

9
0

0
0

(1
1
5
,8

8
0
)

8
0
2
,5

5
0

2
8
3
,0

5
0

3
,9

0
0

(5
6
,9

0
0
)

0
(1

,0
7
0
)

2
2
8
,9

8
0

2
4
,7

4
0

8
0
0

0
0

(2
,6

3
0
)

2
2
,9

1
0

0
(1

6
0
)

0
0

1
6
0

0

1
,4

5
3
,4

9
0

(1
8
,5

5
0
)

(4
9
,4

6
0
)

0
9
9
,8

7
0

1
,4

8
5
,3

5
0

2
7
0
,7

4
0

4
,7

4
0

(4
8
,7

2
0
)

0
(1

6
,4

3
0
)

2
1
0
,3

3
0

3
1
7
,6

1
0

3
,1

8
0

(1
6
,3

3
0
)

0
(6

0
,4

1
0
)

2
4
4
,0

5
0

8
0
,3

0
0

2
,4

1
0

0
0

0
8
2
,7

1
0

0
8
,2

1
0

(5
0
,0

0
0
)

0
4
1
,7

9
0

0

0
(4

6
0
)

0
0

4
6
0

0

8
1
D

2
D

O
M

E
S

T
IC

R
E

F
U

S
E

C
O

L
L
E

C
T

IO
N

2
,1

5
4
,7

4
0

3
9
,3

8
0

(2
5
,0

0
0
)

0
(2

4
6
,1

7
0
)

1
,9

2
2
,9

5
0

8
1
D

4
S

T
R

E
E

T
C

L
E

A
N

IN
G

1
,3

9
5
,5

8
0

2
0
,1

9
0

0
0

4
2
,2

3
0

1
,4

5
8
,0

0
0

8
1
D

5
P

U
B

L
IC

C
O

N
V

E
N

IE
N

C
E

S
4
7
2
,6

7
0

8
,5

4
0

0
0

(6
2
,6

0
0
)

4
1
8
,6

1
0

8
1
D

6
C

L
E

A
N

S
IN

G
R

E
C

H
A

R
G

E
A

B
L
E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
(1

0
0
,2

3
0
)

(1
0
,8

0
0
)

0
0

(1
3
,8

2
0
)

(1
2
4
,8

5
0
)

8
1
D

7
E

X
T

O
N

R
O

A
D

O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D

S
A

N
D

F
L
E

E
T

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

(3
0
,0

6
0
)

(1
,7

6
0
)

(5
,5

8
0
)

0
3
9
7
,5

6
0

3
6
0
,1

6
0

8
1
D

8
R

E
C

Y
C

L
IN

G
2
9
3
,6

2
0

1
4
,0

6
0

(1
1
,3

8
0
)

0
(1

3
7
,3

3
0
)

1
5
8
,9

7
0

1
3
,5

5
2
,0

9
0

1
6
7
,9

4
0

(3
4
3
,3

5
0
)

0
(2

6
8
,0

7
0
)

1
3
,1

0
8
,6

1
0

Appendix 3

8
1
C

4
P

R
IV

A
T

E
S

E
C

T
O

R
H

O
U

S
IN

G

8
1
C

2
A

D
V

IS
O

R
Y

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

8
1
C

3
H

O
U

S
IN

G
E

N
A

B
L
IN

G

8
1
A

7
M

U
S

E
U

M
S

S
E

R
V

IC
E

8
1
A

8
L
E

IS
U

R
E

&
S

P
O

R
T

S
F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

8
1
B

2
B

E
R

E
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

8
1
B

3
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

IE
S

8
1
B

9
A

D
M

IN
S

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S
E

R
V

IC
E

8
1
C

6
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

A
N

D
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

8
1
C

7
S

E
N

IO
R

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

N
e
t

C
o

s
t

8
1
C

5
S

U
N

D
R

Y
L
A

N
D

S
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

8
1
A

3
L
IC

E
N

S
IN

G
,
F

O
O

D
,
H

E
A

L
T

H
&

S
A

F
E

T
Y

8
1
A

4
P

U
B

L
IC

S
A

F
E

T
Y

8
1
A

6
G

R
O

U
N

D
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

8
1
A

1
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
P

R
O

T
E

C
T

IO
N

Page 69



8
1

A
1

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
4

0
5

,0
8

0
6

,1
7

0
(1

2
,7

8
0

)
0

(3
1

,9
0

0
)

3
6

6
,5

7
0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
2

0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
(1

9
,0

0
0

)
1

,0
0

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3

7
,7

1
0

3
3

0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
4

0
,0

4
0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
1

9
,9

8
0

6
1

0
0

0
(1

,8
2

0
)

1
8

,7
7

0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
8

8
,4

5
0

1
,7

6
0

0
0

1
6

,9
0

0
2

0
7

,1
1

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
1

8
,4

3
0

0
0

0
0

1
8

,4
3

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

6
8

9
,6

5
0

8
,8

7
0

(1
2

,7
8

0
)

0
(3

3
,8

2
0

)
6

5
1

,9
2

0

IN
C

O
M

E
(1

4
7

,7
8

0
)

(2
,6

4
0

)
0

0
1

9
,2

9
0

(1
3

1
,1

3
0

)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(1
4

7
,7

8
0

)
(2

,6
4

0
)

0
0

1
9

,2
9

0
(1

3
1

,1
3

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
4

1
,8

7
0

6
,2

3
0

(1
2

,7
8

0
)

0
(1

4
,5

3
0

)
5

2
0

,7
9

0

2
0

4
,1

8
0

2
,5

0
0

(1
2

,7
8

0
)

0
5

4
,0

6
0

2
4

7
,9

6
0

1
4

2
,1

7
0

1
,3

8
0

0
0

(5
8

,6
9

0
)

8
4

,8
6

0

5
,6

8
0

4
0

0
0

(1
4

0
)

5
,5

8
0

1
8

9
,8

4
0

2
,3

1
0

0
0

(9
,7

6
0

)
1

8
2

,3
9

0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
5

4
1

,8
7

0
6

,2
3

0
(1

2
,7

8
0

)
0

(1
4

,5
3

0
)

5
2

0
,7

9
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

F
0

2
4

C
O

N
T

A
M

IN
A

T
E

D
L

A
N

D
S

U
R

V
E

Y

F
0

2
5

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
/A

G
E

N
D

A
2

1

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

F
0

0
1

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

F
0

0
2

P
E

S
T

,
D

O
G

&
E

N
F

O
R

C
E

M
E

N
T

S
V

C
S

Page 70



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

8
1

A
3

L
IC

E
N

C
IN

G
,F

O
O

D
,H

E
A

L
T

H
&

S
A

F
E

T
Y

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
5

0
9

,2
2

0
7

,7
6

0
(1

3
,1

7
0

)
0

1
4

,8
5

0
5

1
8

,6
6

0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
0

0
0

0
0

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
6

2
,1

0
0

9
5

0
0

0
0

6
3

,0
5

0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
3

,4
7

0
6

0
0

0
(7

1
0

)
2

,8
2

0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
8

5
,2

7
0

2
,8

8
0

0
0

9
,1

7
0

2
9

7
,3

2
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
1

,3
3

0
0

0
0

0
1

,3
3

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

8
6

1
,3

9
0

1
1

,6
5

0
(1

3
,1

7
0

)
0

2
3

,3
1

0
8

8
3

,1
8

0

(5
1

5
,6

2
0

)
(1

0
,4

4
0

)
0

0
2

0
,1

6
0

(5
0

5
,9

0
0

)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(5
1

5
,6

2
0

)
(1

0
,4

4
0

)
0

0
2

0
,1

6
0

(5
0

5
,9

0
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
4

5
,7

7
0

1
,2

1
0

(1
3

,1
7

0
)

0
4

3
,4

7
0

3
7

7
,2

8
0

3
8

0
(2

5
0

)
0

0
1

2
0

2
5

0

9
3

,4
1

0
1

,2
9

0
0

0
4

0
,2

2
0

1
3

4
,9

2
0

3
0

5
,4

1
0

3
,8

0
0

0
0

(1
4

,6
8

0
)

2
9

4
,5

3
0

(1
5

,9
0

0
)

(1
,5

4
0

)
0

0
5

,0
3

0
(1

2
,4

1
0

)

(3
7

,5
3

0
)

(2
,2

9
0

)
0

0
(1

9
0

)
(4

0
,0

1
0

)

2
0

0
,4

3
0

3
,2

1
0

(1
3

,1
7

0
)

0
(7

,1
9

0
)

1
8

3
,2

8
0

(2
0

0
,4

3
0

)
(3

,0
1

0
)

0
0

2
0

,1
6

0
(1

8
3

,2
8

0
)

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
3

4
5

,7
7

0
1

,2
1

0
(1

3
,1

7
0

)
0

4
3

,4
7

0
3

7
7

,2
8

0

T
2

0
5

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
S

U
P

P
O

R
T

T
E

A
M

U
2

0
2

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
S

U
P

P
O

R
T

T
E

A
M

R
E

C
H

A
R

G
E

IN
C

O
M

E

F
0

2
0

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
S

E
C

T
IO

N

F
0

2
1

V
E

H
IC

L
E

S
L

IC
E

N
S

IN
G

F
0

2
2

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
L

IC
E

N
S

IN
G

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

F
0

1
8

H
E

A
L

T
H

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

F
0

1
9

H
E

A
L

T
H

A
N

D
S

A
F

E
T

Y
A

T
W

O
R

K

Page 71



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

8
1

A
4

P
U

B
L

IC
S

A
F

E
T

Y

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
6

4
0

,1
9

0
1

0
,0

0
0

(9
2

,2
1

0
)

0
(1

8
,1

2
0

)
5

3
9

,8
6

0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
3

5
,8

5
0

5
0

0
0

0
(3

,9
8

0
)

3
2

,3
7

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
2

0
9

,4
7

0
3

,4
5

0
0

0
1

3
,2

9
0

2
2

6
,2

1
0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
2

3
,8

2
0

7
3

0
(7

,1
7

0
)

0
(7

1
0

)
1

6
,6

7
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
0

3
,9

7
0

1
,3

0
0

0
0

(1
4

,4
7

0
)

9
0

,8
0

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
1

1
3

,8
4

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
3

,8
4

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

1
,1

2
7

,1
4

0
1

5
,9

8
0

(9
9

,3
8

0
)

0
(2

3
,9

9
0

)
1

,0
1

9
,7

5
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(2

8
6

,6
1

0
)

(4
,9

9
0

)
(5

,5
0

0
)

0
(3

,5
0

0
)

(3
0

0
,6

0
0

)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(2
8

6
,6

1
0

)
(4

,9
9

0
)

(5
,5

0
0

)
0

(3
,5

0
0

)
(3

0
0

,6
0

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
4

0
,5

3
0

1
0

,9
9

0
(1

0
4

,8
8

0
)

0
(2

7
,4

9
0

)
7

1
9

,1
5

0

F
0

0
3

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

P
A

T
R

O
L

2
5

1
,7

9
0

3
,9

9
0

(9
5

,1
2

0
)

0
(9

9
0

)
1

5
9

,6
7

0

F
0

0
5

C
C

T
V

C
O

N
T

R
O

L
R

O
O

M
7

3
0

,5
5

0
1

1
,3

0
0

(9
,7

6
0

)
0

(1
3

,9
4

0
)

7
1

8
,1

5
0

F
0

0
6

H
O

M
E

C
A

L
L

A
L

A
R

M
S

E
R

V
IC

E
(1

4
1

,8
1

0
)

(4
,3

0
0

)
0

0
(1

2
,5

6
0

)
(1

5
8

,6
7

0
)

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
8

4
0

,5
3

0
1

0
,9

9
0

(1
0

4
,8

8
0

)
0

(2
7

,4
9

0
)

7
1

9
,1

5
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

Page 72



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

8
1

A
6

P
A

R
K

S
&

O
P

E
N

S
P

A
C

E
S

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
1

,0
5

2
,6

3
0

4
,8

6
0

(1
,7

8
0

)
0

(8
,7

8
0

)
1

,0
4

6
,9

3
0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
4

9
6

,9
9

0
3

,1
2

0
4

,0
0

0
0

1
4

,1
1

0
5

1
8

,2
2

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3

2
4

,8
8

0
7

4
0

0
0

(6
2

,2
7

0
)

2
6

3
,3

5
0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
1

8
0

,3
6

0
6

,2
2

0
0

0
3

7
0

1
8

6
,9

5
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
6

9
,4

7
0

1
0

,4
8

0
0

0
(2

0
,4

1
0

)
2

5
9

,5
4

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
2

6
2

,5
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

6
2

,5
0

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

2
,5

8
6

,8
3

0
2

5
,4

2
0

2
,2

2
0

0
(7

6
,9

8
0

)
2

,5
3

7
,4

9
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(5

5
7

,9
2

0
)

(2
,5

9
0

)
0

0
(4

5
,1

1
0

)
(6

0
5

,6
2

0
)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(5
5

7
,9

2
0

)
(2

,5
9

0
)

0
0

(4
5

,1
1

0
)

(6
0

5
,6

2
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,0

2
8

,9
1

0
2

2
,8

3
0

2
,2

2
0

0
(1

2
2

,0
9

0
)

1
,9

3
1

,8
7

0

F
0

3
2

P
A

R
K

S
A

N
D

P
L

A
Y

IN
G

F
IE

L
D

S
9

8
7

,0
9

0
1

3
,1

5
0

0
0

(3
0

4
,4

3
0

)
6

9
5

,8
1

0

F
0

3
3

A
R

B
O

R
IC

U
L

T
U

R
A

L
1

6
7

,0
1

0
8

7
0

0
0

(2
0

,1
8

0
)

1
4

7
,7

0
0

F
0

3
4

A
L

L
O

T
M

E
N

T
S

5
5

,7
5

0
8

2
0

0
0

(1
3

,3
1

0
)

4
3

,2
6

0

F
0

3
5

P
A

R
K

S
A

N
D

O
P

E
N

S
P

A
C

E
S

M
'M

E
N

T
1

6
8

,5
4

0
2

,3
6

0
(1

,7
8

0
)

0
5

8
,9

3
0

2
2

8
,0

5
0

F
0

3
6

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
2

0
6

,0
4

0
2

,4
8

0
4

,0
0

0
0

1
8

,4
2

0
2

3
0

,9
4

0

F
0

3
7

P
.O

.S
.T

.
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
'M

E
N

T
2

4
,0

7
0

3
6

0
0

0
(2

4
,4

3
0

)
0

F
0

3
8

C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
S

ID
E

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
1

2
6

,1
2

0
1

,3
4

0
0

0
(2

9
,0

3
0

)
9

8
,4

3
0

F
0

3
9

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

P
L

A
Y

A
R

E
A

S
3

0
6

,9
7

0
1

,9
9

0
0

0
(9

,2
9

0
)

2
9

9
,6

7
0

F
0

4
0

U
N

A
D

O
P

T
E

D
L

A
N

D
2

,6
5

0
0

0
0

0
2

,6
5

0

F
0

4
1

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
8

3
0

(6
0

0
)

0
0

(8
,2

0
0

)
(7

,9
7

0
)

F
0

4
2

E
X

W
IC

K
L

A
N

D
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
6

,0
9

0
6

0
0

0
0

6
,1

5
0

F
0

8
4

P
A

R
K

S
N

O
N

-O
P

S
P

R
O

P
S

(2
2

,2
5

0
)

0
0

0
0

(2
2

,2
5

0
)

F
1

4
2

B
E

L
L

E
IS

L
E

D
E

P
O

T
C

O
S

T
S

0
0

0
0

4
1

,7
6

0
4

1
,7

6
0

F
1

4
5

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

A
L

O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D

S
0

0
0

0
1

6
7

,6
7

0
1

6
7

,6
7

0

2
,0

2
8

,9
1

0
2

2
,8

3
0

2
,2

2
0

0
(1

2
2

,0
9

0
)

1
,9

3
1

,8
7

0
N

e
t

C
o

s
t

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

Page 73



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

8
1

A
7

M
U

S
E

U
M

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
1

,3
9

8
,4

3
0

2
2

,8
5

0
0

0
(6

1
,2

3
0

)
1

,3
6

0
,0

5
0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
5

6
9

,1
4

0
1

6
,8

9
0

5
2

,7
7

0
0

(3
1

,3
9

0
)

6
0

7
,4

1
0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
5

0
9

,8
7

0
1

,2
3

0
(4

,1
4

0
)

0
(6

6
,6

3
0

)
4

4
0

,3
3

0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
1

9
,2

1
0

4
9

0
0

0
(5

,8
5

0
)

1
3

,8
5

0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
8

3
,4

8
0

4
,0

4
0

0
0

(2
3

,1
5

0
)

2
6

4
,3

7
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
2

3
3

,8
6

0
0

0
0

0
2

3
3

,8
6

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

3
,0

1
3

,9
9

0
4

5
,5

0
0

4
8

,6
3

0
0

(1
8

8
,2

5
0

)
2

,9
1

9
,8

7
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(7

4
5

,0
7

0
)

(1
,0

9
0

)
0

0
1

1
5

,0
9

0
(6

3
1

,0
7

0
)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(7
4

5
,0

7
0

)
(1

,0
9

0
)

0
0

1
1

5
,0

9
0

(6
3

1
,0

7
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,2

6
8

,9
2

0
4

4
,4

1
0

4
8

,6
3

0
0

(7
3

,1
6

0
)

2
,2

8
8

,8
0

0

F
0

4
4

R
A

M
M

2
,0

1
0

,3
5

0
3

2
,9

7
0

9
0

,0
0

0
0

(3
7

,6
9

0
)

2
,0

9
5

,6
3

0

F
0

4
5

R
O

U
G

E
M

O
N

T
H

O
U

S
E

6
5

,0
9

0
9

4
0

(4
1

,3
7

0
)

0
(9

,6
9

0
)

1
4

,9
7

0

F
0

4
6

S
T

N
IC

H
O

L
A

S
P

R
IO

R
Y

5
0

,3
5

0
3

1
0

0
0

(1
2

,4
3

0
)

3
8

,2
3

0

F
0

4
8

C
O

N
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
L

A
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
7

3
,4

7
0

9
8

0
0

0
(8

4
0

)
7

3
,6

1
0

F
0

4
9

R
E

N
A

IS
S

A
N

C
E

-
C

O
R

E
A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

0
7

,7
6

0
0

0
(7

,7
6

0
)

0

F
0

8
0

M
U

S
E

U
M

S
T

O
R

E
,
E

X
T

O
N

R
O

A
D

6
9

,6
6

0
1

,4
5

0
0

0
(4

,7
5

0
)

6
6

,3
6

0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
2

,2
6

8
,9

2
0

4
4

,4
1

0
4

8
,6

3
0

0
(7

3
,1

6
0

)
2

,2
8

8
,8

0
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

Page 74



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

8
1

A
8

L
E

IS
U

R
E

&
S

P
O

R
T

S
F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
3

8
,6

9
0

5
9

0
0

0
1

,0
7

0
4

0
,3

5
0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
1

8
4

,2
0

0
2

,9
0

0
0

0
2

3
,3

7
0

2
1

0
,4

7
0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1

6
9

,6
6

0
4

,1
2

0
0

0
(1

5
,0

7
0

)
1

5
8

,7
1

0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
4

0
0

1
0

0
0

(1
0

)
4

0
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

6
9

,2
1

0
9

7
0

0
0

(1
8

,2
2

0
)

5
1

,9
6

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
6

9
4

,4
0

0
0

0
0

(1
,2

5
0

)
6

9
3

,1
5

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

1
,1

5
6

,5
6

0
8

,5
9

0
0

0
(1

0
,1

1
0

)
1

,1
5

5
,0

4
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(2

4
6

,7
2

0
)

0
0

0
(1

0
5

,7
7

0
)

(3
5

2
,4

9
0

)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(2
4

6
,7

2
0

)
0

0
0

(1
0

5
,7

7
0

)
(3

5
2

,4
9

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
0

9
,8

4
0

8
,5

9
0

0
0

(1
1

5
,8

8
0

)
8

0
2

,5
5

0

F
0

5
1

N
O

R
T

H
B

R
O

O
K

P
O

O
L

1
0

1
,1

1
0

1
,7

4
0

0
0

6
2

0
1

0
3

,4
7

0

F
0

5
2

C
L

IF
T

O
N

H
IL

L
G

O
L

F
R

A
N

G
E

1
,9

1
0

1
0

0
0

(2
,9

5
0

)
(1

,0
3

0
)

F
0

5
3

C
L

IF
T

O
N

H
IL

L
S

P
O

R
T

S
C

E
N

T
R

E
5

0
,6

1
0

2
9

0
0

0
(1

3
,8

6
0

)
3

7
,0

4
0

F
0

5
4

W
O

N
F

O
R

D
S

P
O

R
T

S
C

E
N

T
R

E
2

4
,6

4
0

3
3

0
0

0
(1

6
,5

2
0

)
8

,4
5

0

F
0

5
5

E
X

E
T

E
R

A
R

E
N

A
1

6
1

,1
6

0
2

,0
0

0
0

0
(8

,8
0

0
)

1
5

4
,3

6
0

F
0

5
6

P
Y

R
A

M
ID

S
S

W
IM

&
L

E
IS

U
R

E
C

E
N

T
R

E
2

0
8

,6
5

0
1

,6
1

0
0

0
(1

7
,5

0
0

)
1

9
2

,7
6

0

F
0

5
7

N
O

R
T

H
B

R
O

O
K

G
O

L
F

C
O

U
R

S
E

3
5

,5
7

0
5

6
0

0
0

3
,0

7
0

3
9

,2
0

0

F
0

5
8

L
E

IS
U

R
E

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
6

7
,0

4
0

9
9

0
0

0
3

,5
7

0
7

1
,6

0
0

F
0

6
2

IS
C

A
C

E
N

T
R

E
4

3
,3

7
0

2
5

0
0

0
4

,5
3

0
4

8
,1

5
0

F
0

6
5

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
L

E
IS

U
R

E
C

E
N

T
R

E
2

0
5

,3
1

0
6

6
0

0
0

(5
7

,4
2

0
)

1
4

8
,5

5
0

F
0

6
7

S
P

O
R

T
S

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
1

3
,5

4
0

1
5

0
0

0
(1

3
,6

9
0

)
0

F
0

7
6

S
C

R
A

P
S

T
O

R
E

(3
,0

7
0

)
0

0
0

3
,0

7
0

0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
9

0
9

,8
4

0
8

,5
9

0
0

0
(1

1
5

,8
8

0
)

8
0

2
,5

5
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

Page 75



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

8
1

B
2

B
E

R
E

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
2

6
5

,6
4

0
4

,0
2

0
(1

8
,4

0
0

)
0

(2
,3

1
0

)
2

4
8

,9
5

0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
8

5
,7

8
0

8
7

0
0

0
(9

,0
5

0
)

7
7

,6
0

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
5

9
,3

8
0

2
1

0
0

0
(1

7
,7

1
0

)
4

1
,8

8
0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
4

8
,1

2
0

1
,3

8
0

0
0

9
0

0
5

0
,4

0
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

7
2

,2
1

0
9

5
0

0
0

(6
,0

7
0

)
6

7
,0

9
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
1

1
,5

4
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

,5
4

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

5
4

2
,6

7
0

7
,4

3
0

(1
8

,4
0

0
)

0
(3

4
,2

4
0

)
4

9
7

,4
6

0

IN
C

O
M

E
(2

5
9

,6
2

0
)

(3
,5

3
0

)
(3

8
,5

0
0

)
0

3
3

,1
7

0
(2

6
8

,4
8

0
)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(2
5

9
,6

2
0

)
(3

,5
3

0
)

(3
8

,5
0

0
)

0
3

3
,1

7
0

(2
6

8
,4

8
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
8

3
,0

5
0

3
,9

0
0

(5
6

,9
0

0
)

0
(1

,0
7

0
)

2
2

8
,9

8
0

F
0

8
6

C
E

M
E

T
E

R
IE

S
2

9
8

,1
6

0
3

,9
0

0
(5

6
,9

0
0

)
0

(7
4

0
)

2
4

4
,4

2
0

F
0

8
7

E
X

E
T

E
R

C
R

E
M

A
T

O
R

IU
M

(1
5

,1
1

0
)

0
0

0
(3

3
0

)
(1

5
,4

4
0

)

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
2

8
3

,0
5

0
3

,9
0

0
(5

6
,9

0
0

)
0

(1
,0

7
0

)
2

2
8

,9
8

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

Page 76



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

8
1

B
3

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
IE

S

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
4

0
,4

1
0

6
4

0
0

0
(8

,1
9

0
)

3
2

,8
6

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
6

3
0

1
0

0
0

0
6

4
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
2

,4
7

0
3

5
0

0
0

7
,4

2
0

3
0

,2
4

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
6

,8
5

0
0

0
1

,2
5

0
8

,1
0

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

7
0

,3
6

0
1

,0
0

0
0

0
4

8
0

7
1

,8
4

0

IN
C

O
M

E
(4

5
,6

2
0

)
(2

0
0

)
0

0
(3

,1
1

0
)

(4
8

,9
3

0
)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(4
5

,6
2

0
)

(2
0

0
)

0
0

(3
,1

1
0

)
(4

8
,9

3
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
4

,7
4

0
8

0
0

0
0

(2
,6

3
0

)
2

2
,9

1
0

F
0

6
8

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
IE

S
2

4
,7

4
0

8
0

0
0

0
(2

,6
3

0
)

2
2

,9
1

0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
2

4
,7

4
0

8
0

0
0

0
(2

,6
3

0
)

2
2

,9
1

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

Page 77



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
1

B
9

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
S

E
R

V
IC

E

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
1

4
7

,8
5

0
2

,2
5

0
0

0
(1

5
0

,1
0

0
)

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
8

,2
0

0
0

0
0

(8
,2

0
0

)
0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
1

7
0

0
0

0
(1

7
0

)
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

5
4

,5
2

0
7

6
0

0
0

(5
5

,2
8

0
)

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

2
1

0
,7

4
0

3
,0

1
0

0
0

(2
1

3
,7

5
0

)
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(2

1
0

,7
4

0
)

(3
,1

7
0

)
0

0
2

1
3

,9
1

0
0

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(2
1

0
,7

4
0

)
(3

,1
7

0
)

0
0

2
1

3
,9

1
0

0

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(1

6
0

)
0

0
1

6
0

0

T
2

0
3

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
2

1
0

,4
2

0
3

,0
0

0
0

0
(2

1
3

,4
2

0
)

0

U
2

0
1

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
A

D
M

IN
.
R

E
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

(2
1

0
,4

2
0

)
(3

,1
6

0
)

0
0

2
1

3
,5

8
0

0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
0

(1
6

0
)

0
0

1
6

0
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

Page 78



8
1

C
2

A
D

V
IS

O
R

Y
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
8

8
9

,0
7

0
1

3
,5

4
0

(4
9

,4
6

0
)

0
3

3
,4

8
0

8
8

6
,6

3
0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
2

,1
4

5
,3

1
0

4
8

,1
9

0
0

0
4

4
8

,6
8

0
2

,6
4

2
,1

8
0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
5

3
4

,0
5

0
2

,2
1

0
0

0
(7

7
,2

9
0

)
4

5
8

,9
7

0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
7

,6
8

0
1

7
0

0
0

(9
7

0
)

6
,8

8
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

3
5

1
,1

7
0

4
,9

7
0

0
0

(3
7

,8
2

0
)

3
1

8
,3

2
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
9

,3
4

0
0

0
0

0
9

,3
4

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

3
,9

3
6

,6
2

0
6

9
,0

8
0

(4
9

,4
6

0
)

0
3

6
6

,0
8

0
4

,3
2

2
,3

2
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(2

,4
8

3
,1

3
0

)
(8

7
,6

3
0

)
(2

6
6

,2
1

0
)

(2
,8

3
6

,9
7

0
)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(2
,4

8
3

,1
3

0
)

(8
7

,6
3

0
)

0
0

(2
6

6
,2

1
0

)
(2

,8
3

6
,9

7
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,4

5
3

,4
9

0
(1

8
,5

5
0

)
(4

9
,4

6
0

)
0

9
9

,8
7

0
1

,4
8

5
,3

5
0

Q
0

0
2

P
S

L
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

IE
S

3
5

,5
2

0
(1

4
,8

3
0

)
0

0
1

0
5

,6
6

0
1

2
6

,3
5

0

Q
0

0
3

S
H

A
U

L
C

O
U

R
T

2
9

,3
9

0
(5

,4
8

0
)

0
0

2
4

,5
6

0
4

8
,4

7
0

Q
0

0
4

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
(6

9
,4

1
0

)
(4

,4
8

0
)

0
0

4
,7

8
0

(6
9

,1
1

0
)

Q
0

0
5

C
H

O
IC

E
B

A
S

E
D

L
E

T
T

IN
G

S
1

2
9

,2
5

0
1

,8
4

0
(1

4
,2

5
0

)
0

(2
2

,0
8

0
)

9
4

,7
6

0

Q
0

0
6

H
O

U
S

IN
G

A
D

V
IC

E
7

3
1

,7
8

0
1

0
,8

9
0

(3
5

,2
1

0
)

0
(2

4
,6

7
0

)
6

8
2

,7
9

0

Q
0

0
7

B
E

D
A

N
D

B
R

E
A

K
F

A
S

T
1

2
8

,9
9

0
(4

0
)

0
0

(4
7

,2
5

0
)

8
1

,7
0

0

Q
0

0
8

E
N

H
A

N
C

E
D

H
O

U
S

IN
G

O
P

T
IO

N
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

Q
0

0
9

D
E

V
O

N
H

O
M

E
C

H
O

IC
E

0
(1

,0
9

0
)

0
0

1
,0

9
0

0

Q
0

1
0

R
E

S
E

T
T

L
E

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

3
5

0
,0

0
0

8
0

0
0

(8
0

)
3

5
0

,0
0

0

Q
0

1
1

E
X

T
R

A
L

E
T

1
2

,5
4

0
1

2
,2

9
0

0
0

2
7

,3
2

0
5

2
,1

5
0

Q
0

1
2

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
A

C
C

O
M

M
O

D
A

T
IO

N
1

0
9

,0
1

0
(1

6
,4

2
0

)
0

0
8

0
,9

9
0

1
7

3
,5

8
0

Q
0

3
1

S
H

A
R

E
D

H
O

U
S

E
P

S
L

S
(3

,5
8

0
)

(1
,3

1
0

)
0

0
(4

1
,5

0
0

)
(4

6
,3

9
0

)

Q
0

3
3

3
0

B
L

A
C

K
A

L
L

R
O

A
D

&
3

3
P

IN
H

O
E

R
O

A
D

0
0

0
0

(8
,9

5
0

)
(8

,9
5

0
)

1
,4

5
3

,4
9

0
(1

8
,5

5
0

)
(4

9
,4

6
0

)
0

9
9

,8
7

0
1

,4
8

5
,3

5
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

N
e

t
C

o
s

t

Page 79



8
1

C
3

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
N

A
B

L
IN

G

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
3

1
9

,6
7

0
4

,8
4

0
(2

5
,2

2
0

)
0

(1
5

,7
5

0
)

2
8

3
,5

4
0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3

8
,5

8
0

1
0

(2
1

,1
6

0
)

0
3

,6
2

0
2

1
,0

5
0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
5

,8
9

0
1

2
0

(2
,3

4
0

)
0

(2
5

0
)

3
,4

2
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

9
4

,8
9

0
1

,2
7

0
0

0
(1

7
,5

5
0

)
7

8
,6

1
0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

4
5

9
,0

3
0

6
,2

4
0

(4
8

,7
2

0
)

0
(2

9
,9

3
0

)
3

8
6

,6
2

0

IN
C

O
M

E
(1

8
8

,2
9

0
)

(1
,5

0
0

)
0

0
1

3
,5

0
0

(1
7

6
,2

9
0

)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(1
8

8
,2

9
0

)
(1

,5
0

0
)

0
0

1
3

,5
0

0
(1

7
6

,2
9

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
7

0
,7

4
0

4
,7

4
0

(4
8

,7
2

0
)

0
(1

6
,4

3
0

)
2

1
0

,3
3

0

Q
0

2
1

A
F

F
O

R
D

A
B

L
E

H
O

U
S

IN
G

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
2

7
0

,7
4

0
4

,7
4

0
(4

8
,7

2
0

)
0

(1
6

,4
3

0
)

2
1

0
,3

3
0

2
7

0
,7

4
0

4
,7

4
0

(4
8

,7
2

0
)

0
(1

6
,4

3
0

)
2

1
0

,3
3

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

N
e

t
C

o
s

t

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

Page 80



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
1

C
4

P
R

IV
A

T
E

S
E

C
T

O
R

H
O

U
S

IN
G

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
2

8
3

,2
2

0
4

,2
8

0
(1

6
,3

3
0

)
0

(5
0

,2
1

0
)

2
2

0
,9

6
0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
2

8
,8

5
0

1
1

0
0

0
(1

5
,0

0
0

)
1

3
,9

6
0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
7

,2
8

0
1

3
0

0
0

(3
,4

7
0

)
3

,9
4

0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

9
6

,5
7

0
1

,1
2

0
0

0
2

0
,2

7
0

1
1

7
,9

6
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
1

,3
3

0
0

0
0

0
1

,3
3

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

4
1

7
,2

5
0

5
,6

4
0

(1
6

,3
3

0
)

0
(4

8
,4

1
0

)
3

5
8

,1
5

0

IN
C

O
M

E
(9

9
,6

4
0

)
(2

,4
6

0
)

0
(1

2
,0

0
0

)
(1

1
4

,1
0

0
)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(9
9

,6
4

0
)

(2
,4

6
0

)
0

0
(1

2
,0

0
0

)
(1

1
4

,1
0

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
1

7
,6

1
0

3
,1

8
0

(1
6

,3
3

0
)

0
(6

0
,4

1
0

)
2

4
4

,0
5

0

Q
0

2
3

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

P
R

IV
A

T
E

H
O

U
S

IN
G

1
7

1
,7

5
0

9
8

0
(8

,1
6

0
)

0
(3

0
,1

8
0

)
1

3
4

,3
9

0

Q
0

2
4

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

G
R

A
N

T
S

1
4

5
,8

6
0

2
,2

0
0

(8
,1

7
0

)
0

(3
0

,2
3

0
)

1
0

9
,6

6
0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t
3

1
7

,6
1

0
3

,1
8

0
(1

6
,3

3
0

)
0

(6
0

,4
1

0
)

2
4

4
,0

5
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

Page 81



8
1

C
5

S
U

N
D

R
Y

L
A

N
D

S
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
8

0
,3

0
0

2
,4

1
0

0
0

0
8

2
,7

1
0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

8
0

,3
0

0
2

,4
1

0
0

0
0

8
2

,7
1

0

8
0

,3
0

0
2

,4
1

0
0

0
0

8
2

,7
1

0

Q
0

3
0

G
R

O
U

N
D

S
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
8

0
,3

0
0

2
,4

1
0

0
0

0
8

2
,7

1
0

8
0

,3
0

0
2

,4
1

0
0

0
0

8
2

,7
1

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

N
e

t
C

o
s

t

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

Page 82



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
1

C
6

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

&
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
1

,2
0

2
,7

0
0

1
8

,8
7

0
(5

0
,0

0
0

)
0

(2
2

7
,7

7
0

)
9

4
3

,8
0

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1

1
4

,6
4

0
8

7
0

0
0

(2
2

,8
8

0
)

9
2

,6
3

0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
5

6
,2

2
0

1
,8

6
0

0
0

(1
4

,6
4

0
)

4
3

,4
4

0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
9

1
,3

9
0

4
,1

2
0

0
0

(7
7

,2
6

0
)

2
1

8
,2

5
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
7

,5
2

0
0

0
0

0
7

,5
2

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

1
,6

7
2

,4
7

0
2

5
,7

2
0

(5
0

,0
0

0
)

0
(3

4
2

,5
5

0
)

1
,3

0
5

,6
4

0

IN
C

O
M

E
(1

,6
7

2
,4

7
0

)
(1

7
,5

1
0

)
0

0
3

8
4

,3
4

0
(1

,3
0

5
,6

4
0

)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(1
,6

7
2

,4
7

0
)

(1
7

,5
1

0
)

0
0

3
8

4
,3

4
0

(1
,3

0
5

,6
4

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
8

,2
1

0
(5

0
,0

0
0

)
0

4
1

,7
9

0
0

T
2

7
0

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
5

8
6

,1
8

0
8

,7
0

0
(5

0
,0

0
0

)
0

(1
2

5
,2

1
0

)
4

1
9

,6
7

0

T
2

7
1

C
D

S
-

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
2

6
7

,5
6

0
4

,5
0

0
0

0
1

0
2

,1
9

0
3

7
4

,2
5

0

T
2

7
2

C
D

S
-

N
O

N
H

O
U

S
IN

G
W

O
R

K
S

1
6

6
,5

4
0

1
,9

8
0

0
0

(1
6

8
,5

2
0

)
0

T
2

7
5

A
S

B
E

S
T

O
S

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

4
9

,6
9

0
7

6
0

0
0

(5
0

,4
5

0
)

0

T
2

7
6

G
R

E
E

N
A

C
C

O
R

D
(1

5
,5

4
0

)
1

,7
8

0
0

0
1

3
,7

6
0

0

T
2

7
7

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
A

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

0
4

0
0

0
0

(4
0

0
)

0

T
2

7
8

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
0

3
0

0
0

(3
0

)
0

T
2

9
0

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
/B

L
D

G
IN

T
.
R

E
C

H
A

R
G

E
S

(1
,0

5
4

,4
3

0
)

(9
,9

4
0

)
0

0
2

7
0

,4
5

0
(7

9
3

,9
2

0
)

0
8

,2
1

0
(5

0
,0

0
0

)
0

4
1

,7
9

0
0

N
e

t
C

o
s

t

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

Page 83



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
1

C
7

S
E

N
IO

R
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
1

9
4

,2
0

0
2

,9
4

0
0

0
(2

4
,6

7
0

)
1

7
2

,4
7

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3

,0
7

0
0

0
0

(3
,0

7
0

)
0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
2

8
0

1
0

0
0

(9
0

)
2

0
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

8
3

,2
6

0
8

0
0

0
0

5
,4

0
0

8
9

,4
6

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

2
8

0
,8

1
0

3
,7

5
0

0
0

(2
2

,4
3

0
)

2
6

2
,1

3
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(2

8
0

,8
1

0
)

(4
,2

1
0

)
0

0
2

2
,8

9
0

(2
6

2
,1

3
0

)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(2
8

0
,8

1
0

)
(4

,2
1

0
)

0
0

2
2

,8
9

0
(2

6
2

,1
3

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(4

6
0

)
0

0
4

6
0

0

T
2

0
1

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
C

&
E

1
6

2
,4

6
0

2
,0

0
0

0
0

(1
6

4
,4

6
0

)
0

T
2

0
4

S
E

C
R

E
T

A
R

IA
L

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1

1
8

,3
4

0
1

,7
5

0
0

0
(1

2
0

,0
9

0
)

0

T
4

0
2

A
S

S
IS

T
A

N
T

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
P

U
B

L
IC

R
E

A
L

M
0

0
0

0
1

2
9

,7
8

0
1

2
9

,7
8

0

T
4

0
3

A
S

S
IS

T
A

N
T

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
0

0
0

0
1

3
2

,3
5

0
1

3
2

,3
5

0

U
2

0
3

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
'S

U
N

IT
R

E
C

H
A

R
G

E
(2

8
0

,8
0

0
)

(4
,2

1
0

)
0

0
2

8
5

,0
1

0
0

U
4

0
2

A
D

P
U

B
L

IC
R

E
A

L
M

R
E

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
0

0
0

0
(1

2
9

,7
8

0
)

(1
2

9
,7

8
0

)

U
4

0
3

A
D

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

R
E

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
0

0
0

0
(1

3
2

,3
5

0
)

(1
3

2
,3

5
0

)

0
(4

6
0

)
0

0
4

6
0

0
N

e
t

C
o

s
t

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

Page 84



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

6
C

L
E

A
N

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
3

,6
9

1
,6

4
0

5
7

,5
3

0
(1

6
,9

6
0

)
0

(9
6

,9
1

0
)

3
,6

3
5

,3
0

0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
5

1
7

,0
7

0
1

2
,1

5
0

0
0

(4
6

,0
0

0
)

4
8

3
,2

2
0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1

,0
0

7
,5

7
0

2
8

,0
9

0
0

0
(6

9
,4

5
0

)
9

6
6

,2
1

0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
1

,1
4

7
,9

2
0

3
6

,6
3

0
0

0
(1

3
,8

7
0

)
1

,1
7

0
,6

8
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
,1

3
5

,6
9

0
1

8
,5

1
0

0
0

(6
6

3
,9

5
0

)
4

9
0

,2
5

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
6

1
6

,4
8

0
0

0
0

0
6

1
6

,4
8

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

8
,1

1
6

,3
7

0
1

5
2

,9
1

0
(1

6
,9

6
0

)
0

(8
9

0
,1

8
0

)
7

,3
6

2
,1

4
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(3

,9
3

0
,0

5
0

)
(8

3
,3

0
0

)
(2

5
,0

0
0

)
0

8
7

0
,0

5
0

(3
,1

6
8

,3
0

0
)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(3
,9

3
0

,0
5

0
)

(8
3

,3
0

0
)

(2
5

,0
0

0
)

0
8

7
0

,0
5

0
(3

,1
6

8
,3

0
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,1

8
6

,3
2

0
6

9
,6

1
0

(4
1

,9
6

0
)

0
(2

0
,1

3
0

)
4

,1
9

3
,8

4
0

8
1

D
2

D
O

M
E

S
T

IC
R

E
F

U
S

E
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

2
,1

5
4

,7
4

0
3

9
,3

8
0

(2
5

,0
0

0
)

0
(2

4
6

,1
7

0
)

1
,9

2
2

,9
5

0

8
1

D
4

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
L

E
A

N
IN

G
1

,3
9

5
,5

8
0

2
0

,1
9

0
0

0
4

2
,2

3
0

1
,4

5
8

,0
0

0

8
1

D
5

P
U

B
L

IC
C

O
N

V
E

N
IE

N
C

E
S

4
7

2
,6

7
0

8
,5

4
0

0
0

(6
2

,6
0

0
)

4
1

8
,6

1
0

8
1

D
6

R
E

C
H

A
R

G
E

A
B

L
E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
(1

0
0

,2
3

0
)

(1
0

,8
0

0
)

0
0

(1
3

,8
2

0
)

(1
2

4
,8

5
0

)

8
1

D
7

E
X

T
O

N
R

O
A

D
O

V
E

R
H

E
A

D
S

A
N

D
F

L
E

E
T

(3
0

,0
6

0
)

(1
,7

6
0

)
(5

,5
8

0
)

0
3

9
7

,5
6

0
3

6
0

,1
6

0

8
1

D
7

R
E

C
Y

C
L

IN
G

2
9

3
,6

2
0

1
4

,0
6

0
(1

1
,3

8
0

)
0

(1
3

7
,3

3
0

)
1

5
8

,9
7

0

4
,1

8
6

,3
2

0
6

9
,6

1
0

(4
1

,9
6

0
)

0
(2

0
,1

3
0

)
4

,1
9

3
,8

4
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

N
e

t
C

o
s

t

Page 85



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
1

D
2

D
O

M
E

S
T

IC
R

E
F

U
S

E
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
9

9
1

,7
8

0
1

5
,5

4
0

0
0

7
3

,3
8

0
1

,0
8

0
,7

0
0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
0

0
0

0
1

8
,5

0
0

1
8

,5
0

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1

6
9

,1
3

0
2

,0
9

0
0

0
(5

5
,9

4
0

)
1

1
5

,2
8

0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
4

6
4

,0
9

0
1

7
,6

6
0

0
0

(2
7

,9
2

0
)

4
5

3
,8

3
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

3
1

5
,2

4
0

4
,6

6
0

0
0

(2
4

8
,0

1
0

)
7

1
,8

9
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
2

3
7

,4
5

0
0

0
0

0
2

3
7

,4
5

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

2
,1

7
7

,6
9

0
3

9
,9

5
0

0
0

(2
3

9
,9

9
0

)
1

,9
7

7
,6

5
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(2

2
,9

5
0

)
(5

7
0

)
(2

5
,0

0
0

)
0

(6
,1

8
0

)
(5

4
,7

0
0

)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(2
2

,9
5

0
)

(5
7

0
)

(2
5

,0
0

0
)

0
(6

,1
8

0
)

(5
4

,7
0

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,1

5
4

,7
4

0
3

9
,3

8
0

(2
5

,0
0

0
)

0
(2

4
6

,1
7

0
)

1
,9

2
2

,9
5

0

C
0

5
0

D
O

M
E

S
T

IC
R

E
F

U
S

E
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

2
,1

1
0

,1
1

0
3

2
,2

2
0

(2
5

,0
0

0
)

0
(2

5
5

,2
4

0
)

1
,8

6
2

,0
9

0

C
O

5
1

D
O

M
E

S
T

IC
C

L
IN

IC
A

L
W

A
S

T
E

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
IO

N
4

4
,6

3
0

7
,1

6
0

0
0

9
,0

7
0

6
0

,8
6

0

2
,1

5
4

,7
4

0
3

9
,3

8
0

(2
5

,0
0

0
)

0
(2

4
6

,1
7

0
)

1
,9

2
2

,9
5

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

N
e

t
C

o
s

t

Page 86



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
1

D
4

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
L

E
A

N
IN

G

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
1

,0
3

4
,8

4
0

1
5

,9
8

0
0

0
3

6
,9

0
0

1
,0

8
7

,7
2

0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
7

,6
9

0
0

0
0

0
7

,6
9

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
5

8
,6

0
0

4
7

0
0

0
7

0
0

5
9

,7
7

0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
2

2
4

,8
6

0
7

,5
2

0
0

0
1

2
,9

4
0

2
4

5
,3

2
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
1

8
,6

7
0

3
,2

3
0

0
0

(1
6

7
,1

8
0

)
5

4
,7

2
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
1

3
1

,5
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

3
1

,5
0

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

1
,6

7
6

,1
6

0
2

7
,2

0
0

0
0

(1
1

6
,6

4
0

)
1

,5
8

6
,7

2
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(2

8
0

,5
8

0
)

(7
,0

1
0

)
0

0
1

5
8

,8
7

0
(1

2
8

,7
2

0
)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(2
8

0
,5

8
0

)
(7

,0
1

0
)

0
0

1
5

8
,8

7
0

(1
2

8
,7

2
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,3

9
5

,5
8

0
2

0
,1

9
0

0
0

4
2

,2
3

0
1

,4
5

8
,0

0
0

C
0

4
9

D
O

G
B

IN
S

0
3

4
0

0
0

4
6

,7
8

0
4

7
,1

2
0

C
0

5
7

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L
S

W
E

E
P

IN
G

0
3

4
0

0
0

2
1

1
,0

6
0

2
1

1
,4

0
0

C
0

5
8

C
IT

Y
C

E
N

T
R

E
S

W
E

E
P

IN
G

0
4

3
0

0
0

3
0

6
,0

0
0

3
0

6
,4

3
0

C
O

5
9

O
T

H
E

R
S

T
R

E
E

T
S

W
E

E
P

IN
G

0
1

6
,8

7
0

0
0

7
0

0
,7

6
0

7
1

7
,6

3
0

C
0

7
0

R
E

A
C

T
IV

E
T

E
A

M
0

3
5

0
0

0
5

4
,2

0
0

5
4

,5
5

0

C
0

7
1

L
IT

T
E

R
B

IN
S

0
1

8
0

0
0

8
1

,5
8

0
8

1
,7

6
0

C
0

7
4

G
R

A
F

F
IT

I
S

E
R

V
IC

E
0

1
2

0
0

0
3

8
,9

9
0

3
9

,1
1

0

F
0

1
2

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
L

E
A

N
IN

G
1

,3
9

5
,5

8
0

1
,5

6
0

0
0

(1
,3

9
7

,1
4

0
)

0

1
,3

9
5

,5
8

0
2

0
,1

9
0

0
0

4
2

,2
3

0
1

,4
5

8
,0

0
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

N
e

t
C

o
s

t

Page 87



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
1

D
5

P
U

B
L

IC
C

O
N

V
E

N
IE

N
C

E
S

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
1

3
8

,2
1

0
2

,1
6

0
0

0
(1

,1
6

0
)

1
3

9
,2

1
0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
2

3
3

,8
7

0
5

,6
1

0
0

0
(3

9
,5

0
0

)
1

9
9

,9
8

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1

6
,4

2
0

0
0

0
(1

,6
7

0
)

1
4

,7
5

0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
6

,4
6

0
2

8
0

0
0

1
,6

2
0

8
,3

6
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

4
9

,5
5

0
7

3
0

0
0

(3
1

,4
6

0
)

1
8

,8
2

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
3

7
,9

9
0

0
0

0
0

3
7

,9
9

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

4
8

2
,5

0
0

8
,7

8
0

0
0

(7
2

,1
7

0
)

4
1

9
,1

1
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(9

,8
3

0
)

(2
4

0
)

0
0

9
,5

7
0

(5
0

0
)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(9
,8

3
0

)
(2

4
0

)
0

0
9

,5
7

0
(5

0
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
7

2
,6

7
0

8
,5

4
0

0
0

(6
2

,6
0

0
)

4
1

8
,6

1
0

C
0

4
6

P
U

B
L

IC
C

O
N

V
E

N
IE

N
C

E
S

4
7

2
,6

7
0

8
,5

4
0

0
0

(6
2

,6
0

0
)

4
1

8
,6

1
0

4
7

2
,6

7
0

8
,5

4
0

0
0

(6
2

,6
0

0
)

4
1

8
,6

1
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

N
e

t
C

o
s

t

Page 88



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
1

D
6

C
H

A
R

G
E

A
B

L
E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
4

4
9

,5
5

0
7

,0
7

0
0

0
3

2
,4

8
0

4
8

9
,1

0
0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
5

9
,1

0
0

0
0

0
9

,8
0

0
6

8
,9

0
0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
4

3
1

,2
9

0
6

8
0

0
0

2
0

,1
8

0
4

5
2

,1
5

0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
1

8
1

,9
6

0
6

,8
4

0
0

0
(6

,0
2

0
)

1
8

2
,7

8
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
6

9
,7

4
0

2
,5

1
0

0
0

(4
0

,0
5

0
)

1
3

2
,2

0
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
5

6
,7

4
0

0
0

0
0

5
6

,7
4

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

1
,3

4
8

,3
8

0
1

7
,1

0
0

0
0

1
6

,3
9

0
1

,3
8

1
,8

7
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(1

,4
4

8
,6

1
0

)
(2

7
,9

0
0

)
0

0
(3

0
,2

1
0

)
(1

,5
0

6
,7

2
0

)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(1
,4

4
8

,6
1

0
)

(2
7

,9
0

0
)

0
0

(3
0

,2
1

0
)

(1
,5

0
6

,7
2

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
0

0
,2

3
0

)
(1

0
,8

0
0

)
0

0
(1

3
,8

2
0

)
(1

2
4

,8
5

0
)

C
0

5
2

S
P

E
C

IA
L

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
IO

N
S

8
,0

5
0

(1
9

0
)

0
0

4
,5

8
0

1
2

,4
4

0

C
0

5
3

C
A

R
P

A
R

K
S

W
E

E
P

IN
G

1
,5

4
0

4
0

0
0

(1
,5

8
0

)
0

C
0

5
4

T
R

A
D

E
R

E
F

U
S

E
C

L
L

E
C

T
IO

N
(2

8
,6

8
0

)
(1

0
,1

9
0

)
0

0
(6

,3
0

0
)

(4
5

,1
7

0
)

C
0

5
5

T
R

A
D

E
C

L
IN

IC
A

L
W

A
S

T
E

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
IO

N
1

,6
2

0
(2

7
0

)
0

0
(1

,3
4

0
)

1
0

C
0

5
6

T
R

A
D

E
R

E
C

Y
C

L
IN

G
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

(1
3

,1
6

0
)

2
6

0
0

0
8

2
0

(1
2

,0
8

0
)

C
0

7
2

G
A

R
D

E
N

W
A

S
T

E
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

(6
9

,6
0

0
)

(6
1

0
)

0
0

(9
,8

4
0

)
(8

0
,0

5
0

)

C
0

7
3

H
O

U
S

IN
G

C
L

E
A

N
S

IN
G

R
O

U
N

D
0

1
6

0
0

0
(1

6
0

)
0

(1
0

0
,2

3
0

)
(1

0
,8

0
0

)
0

0
(1

3
,8

2
0

)
(1

2
4

,8
5

0
)

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

N
e

t
C

o
s

t

Page 89



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
1

D
7

E
X

T
O

N
R

O
A

D
O

V
E

R
H

E
A

D
S

A
N

D
F

L
E

E
T

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
4

0
6

,4
9

0
6

,2
4

0
(5

,5
8

0
)

0
(1

6
8

,6
9

0
)

2
3

8
,4

6
0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
8

3
,8

8
0

1
,6

2
0

0
0

(6
,7

4
0

)
7

8
,7

6
0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
8

4
,8

9
0

9
2

0
0

0
2

,0
5

0
8

7
,8

6
0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
2

2
,5

7
0

8
6

0
0

0
(8

,1
9

0
)

1
5

,2
4

0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
1

3
,4

4
0

3
,0

2
0

0
0

(9
3

,8
2

0
)

1
2

2
,6

4
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
1

5
0

0
0

0
0

1
5

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

8
1

1
,4

2
0

1
2

,6
6

0
(5

,5
8

0
)

0
(2

7
5

,3
9

0
)

5
4

3
,1

1
0

IN
C

O
M

E
(8

4
1

,4
8

0
)

(1
4

,4
2

0
)

0
0

6
7

2
,9

5
0

(1
8

2
,9

5
0

)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(8
4

1
,4

8
0

)
(1

4
,4

2
0

)
0

0
6

7
2

,9
5

0
(1

8
2

,9
5

0
)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(3
0

,0
6

0
)

(1
,7

6
0

)
(5

,5
8

0
)

0
3

9
7

,5
6

0
3

6
0

,1
6

0

C
0

1
5

F
L

E
E

T
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
0

0
(5

,5
8

0
)

0
5

9
,9

1
0

5
4

,3
3

0

C
0

4
5

C
L

E
A

N
S

IN
G

O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D

S
0

0
0

0
2

9
5

,3
2

0
2

9
5

,3
2

0

C
0

8
2

O
A

K
W

O
O

D
H

O
U

S
E

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
C

O
S

T
S

0
0

0
0

4
3

,1
2

0
4

3
,1

2
0

C
1

8
5

E
X

T
O

N
R

O
A

D
N

O
N

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

A
L

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
IE

S
(3

0
,0

6
0

)
(1

,7
6

0
)

0
0

(7
9

0
)

(3
2

,6
1

0
)

(3
0

,0
6

0
)

(1
,7

6
0

)
(5

,5
8

0
)

0
3

9
7

,5
6

0
3

6
0

,1
6

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

N
e

t
C

o
s

t

Page 90



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
1

D
8

R
E

C
Y

C
L

IN
G

S
u

b
je

c
ti

v
e

A
n

a
ly

s
is

B
A

S
E

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
2

/1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
3

/1
4

P
A

Y
6

7
0

,7
7

0
1

0
,5

4
0

(1
1

,3
8

0
)

0
(6

9
,8

2
0

)
6

0
0

,1
1

0

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
1

3
2

,5
3

0
4

,9
2

0
0

0
(2

8
,0

6
0

)
1

0
9

,3
9

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
&

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
2

4
7

,2
4

0
2

3
,9

3
0

0
0

(3
4

,7
7

0
)

2
3

6
,4

0
0

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
2

4
7

,9
8

0
3

,4
7

0
0

0
1

3
,7

0
0

2
6

5
,1

5
0

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
6

9
,0

5
0

4
,3

6
0

0
0

(8
3

,4
3

0
)

8
9

,9
8

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
1

5
2

,6
5

0
0

0
0

0
1

5
2

,6
5

0

T
o

ta
l
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

1
,6

2
0

,2
2

0
4

7
,2

2
0

(1
1

,3
8

0
)

0
(2

0
2

,3
8

0
)

1
,4

5
3

,6
8

0

IN
C

O
M

E
(1

,3
2

6
,6

0
0

)
(3

3
,1

6
0

)
0

0
6

5
,0

5
0

(1
,2

9
4

,7
1

0
)

T
o

ta
l
In

c
o

m
e

(1
,3

2
6

,6
0

0
)

(3
3

,1
6

0
)

0
0

6
5

,0
5

0
(1

,2
9

4
,7

1
0

)

N
e

t
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
9

3
,6

2
0

1
4

,0
6

0
(1

1
,3

8
0

)
0

(1
3

7
,3

3
0

)
1

5
8

,9
7

0

C
0

1
4

R
E

C
Y

C
L

IN
G

P
O

L
IC

Y
2

8
0

,0
1

0
3

,4
2

0
0

0
(1

2
1

,7
5

0
)

1
6

1
,6

8
0

C
0

2
4

R
E

C
Y

C
L

IN
G

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

T
R

A
D

IN
G

(9
7

2
,2

0
0

)
(1

6
,8

5
0

)
0

0
5

1
,8

1
0

(9
3

7
,2

4
0

)

C
0

2
5

M
R

F
O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
8

2
0

,6
4

0
2

2
,1

0
0

(1
1

,3
8

0
)

0
(1

2
1

,1
6

0
)

7
1

0
,2

0
0

C
0

2
6

R
E

C
Y

C
L

IN
G

P
A

R
K

A
N

D
R

O
U

N
D

1
6

5
,1

7
0

5
0

0
0

0
(4

7
,7

0
0

)
1

1
7

,9
7

0

C
0

8
4

M
R

F
P

R
E

M
IS

E
S

C
O

S
T

0
4

,8
9

0
0

0
1

0
1

,4
7

0
1

0
6

,3
6

0

2
9

3
,6

2
0

1
4

,0
6

0
(1

1
,3

8
0

)
0

(1
3

7
,3

3
0

)
1

5
8

,9
7

0
N

e
t

C
o

s
t

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
B

y

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – COMMUNITY 

15 JANUARY 2013 

 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT ESTIMATES 2013-14 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1 This report sets out the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) estimates for 2013-
2014 and the revenue estimates for the Council’s own build schemes for 2013-
2014.  Please also refer to Appendix 1. 
 

1.2 This report outlines the strategic framework within which the estimates have been 
prepared, changes in accounting practices which affect all budgets and detailed 
reasons for any significant changes in the Management Unit estimates. 
 

2. BUDGET FRAMEWORK FOR THE HRA 

 

2.1 The estimates include assumptions for pay, general inflation and income as 
follows: 
 

 • Pay Award    1.0%  

• Pay – Increments   0.5% 

• Electricity              8.0% 

• Gas              20.0% 

• Oil              12.0% 

• Water     5.1% 

• Insurance    3.0% 

• Rates     2.0% 

• Fuel     6.0% 

• General Inflation   0.0% - see para 2.2 below 

• Income                                       2.5% 
 

2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As a means of finding efficiency savings many non-pay budgets will again not be 
fully increased for inflation. There will be some exceptions to this in particular 
where there are ongoing contractual arrangements in place and where the Council 
has to meet the full price increase e.g. insurance and fuel. Recently released 
figures show that the rate of Consumer Prices Index (CPI) inflation in the UK 
increased to 2.7% during October, up from a rate of 2.2% the month before.  
 

2.3 With regard to interest rates, the Bank of England has put the base rate of interest 
on hold at only 0.5% since March 2009. Many analysts are predicting that interest 
rates could remain at this historic low throughout 2013-14, including our own 
Treasury Management Advisors. The low levels of interest rates affect the City 
Council in a number of ways. On the negative side the Council has to assume 
lower investment returns on cash deposits in comparison with previous years. The 
likelihood is that investment returns will continue to be low.  Conversely the low 
interest rates also mean that the cost of borrowing is much less than it has been in 
the past. 
 

2.4 
 

HRA SELF-FINANCING 

The Government abolished the Housing Revenue Account subsidy system and 
introduced self-financing in April 2012.  Self-financing is intended to put all local 
authorities in the position where they can support their own stock from their own 
income, based upon the affordability of a 30 year business plan. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 93



The new self-financing system provides a clearer relationship between the rent a 
landlord collects and the services they provide. 

2.5 REGULATORY FRAMEWORK 

The HRA is framed by the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  This Act 
created the ring-fence and the structure within which the HRA operates and 
covers the detailed operation of the HRA, including the credits and debits which 
make up the account. 
 

2.6 SOCIAL RENT POLICY 

Rent convergence with the housing association sector is expected to be achieved 
by 2015-16, in accordance with the Government’s social rent policy.  Rents in 
respect of council dwellings have therefore been calculated by applying an annual 
inflationary increase of 3.1% plus a convergence factor to reflect the number of 
years to rental convergence.  It is anticipated that the average annual rent 
increase for 2013-14 will be 6%, which is £4.05 per week over 52 weeks. 
 

2.7 HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

The HRA Capital Programme for 2013-14 is £8.530m with an estimated £0.56m of 
works carried forward from 2012-13, bringing the total to £9.090m for next 
financial year. 
 
A list of the proposed new schemes for this Committee is attached at Appendix 2.  
 

2.8 The amount that the HRA is budgeted to provide in support of the capital 
programme in 2013-14 is £7.224m.  This consists of £5.037m in Revenue 
Contributions to Capital (RCCO) and £2.187m set aside in the Major Repairs 
Reserve.   
 
A further £1.866m will need to be met from capital reserves in order to finance the 
full £9.090m HRA Capital Programme, as the authority is unable to take on 
additional borrowing. 

2.9 
 
 

HRA DEBT 

Although the HRA is now self-financing, the Government have put a limit on the 
amount of borrowing the authority can have for the purposes of the HRA, called 
the ‘debt cap’, due to the current fiscal position - even if the borrowing is 
affordable by the HRA. 
 
The debt cap is £57,882,413, which comprises the settlement payment of 
£56,884,000 plus £998,413 borrowing undertaken before the end of the subsidy 
system for new build schemes built under contract with the Homes and 
Communities Agency. 
 
In January 2012 Executive approved a 50 year maturity loan plan for HRA debt.  
The authority’s HRA debt will therefore remain at the ‘debt cap’ until the loan 
matures in 50 years time, with no headroom for additional borrowing. 
 

2.10 
 

FEES AND CHARGES 

The changes in respect of 2013-14 Fees and Charges for Housing are included at 
Appendix 3. 
 
 

3. KEY HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET CHANGES PROPOSED FOR 

2013-14 

 

3.1 
 

 

 
The proposed budgets reflect a combination of budget increases and savings.  
The key changes, by management unit, are as follows: 
 

85A1 MANAGEMENT 

Page 94



  
The estimates for pay have reduced to reflect the outcomes of the Senior 
Management Review, the voluntary redundancies of four members of staff and a 
reduction in the number of staff in the superannuation scheme.   
 
The estimates for pay also reflect the appointment of a temporary Asbestos 
Officer in order to inspect common areas, in accordance with statutory 
requirements.  Long term arrangements for the inspection of asbestos in common 
areas will be identified as part of the outcomes of the Systems Review of Property 
Asset Maintenance. 
 
Budgetary provision has also been made for a stock condition survey to be 
undertaken for 25% of all council dwellings, in order to better inform future asset 
management plans. 
 
The estimates for support service recharges have significantly reduced in 2013-14 
due to a combination of factors; reduced administration costs following formation 
of the Corporate Support Unit, a lower recharge in respect of management 
following the Senior Management Review and a reduction in the recharge from 
the Contracts Unit. 
 
Conversely, the Contracts Unit recharge to the HRA Capital Programme has 
increased, as more of their time will be required to help facilitate delivery of the 
increases to the kitchen and bathroom replacement programmes.  

 

85A3 SUNDRY LANDS MAINTENANCE 

  
There has been a minor increase of £3k in the budgeted cost of this management 
unit compared to 2012-13, of which £1k relates to an inflationary increase. 
 
The cost of the Garden Assistance Scheme has slightly increased, as the scheme 
has taken on the regular maintenance of more gardens.  Garden assistance is 
provided to help the vulnerable, elderly and disabled maintain their gardens. 
 

85A4 REPAIRS FUND CONTRIBUTION 

  
A £4.729m Repair and Maintenance Programme has been budgeted, which 
provides for the annual repairs and maintenance required to support the number 
of properties currently held.   
 
This represents a £700k increase compared to 2012-13, of which £540k relates to 
the transfer of certain works from the capital programme as they are deemed to 
be revenue in nature, such as asbestos surveys, asbestos removal and 
maintenance of UPVC windows. The remaining £160k relates to an increased 
budget for repairs to empty properties, increased service contract costs and 
additional budgets for other minor works. 
 
A significant increase to the budgeted Revenue Contribution to Capital (RCCO) 
has also been made to help finance the proposed £9.090m HRA Capital 
Programme, following Executive approval in September 2012 to increase the 
kitchen and bathroom replacement programmes. 
 
However, the increased RCCO has been compensated by the removal of the 
£3.666m Major Repairs Allowance (MRA).  The MRA was previously debited to 
this management unit, as it was the amount that central government determined 
each local authority should set aside to meet the ongoing capital costs of 
maintaining their housing stock. 
 
Under self-financing there will no longer be an annual MRA, instead each local 

Page 95



authority will be required to make a provision for depreciation to reflect the cost of 
housing assets used in the financial year, such as dwellings and garages.  This is 
explained in more detail in management unit 85A6, below. 

 

85A6 CAPITAL CHARGES 

  
The budget reflects the requirement to charge depreciation in respect of HRA 
assets, which comprise; dwellings, garages, vehicles, plant and equipment. 
 
Under self-financing Councils are required to set aside some of their income each 
year into the Major Repairs Reserve, in order to ensure appropriate provision is 
made for financing future capital works.   
 
The minimum amount to be set aside must now equal the Council’s annual 
depreciation charge, as this should reflect the capital maintenance expenditure 
that, on average, needs to be spent each year to maintain assets in a steady 
state.  
 

85A8 RENTS 

  
The budget for rental income from council dwellings has increased by £1.4m 
which reflects the increases necessary to achieve the Government’s social rent 
reforms, as explained in paragraph 2.7.   
 
However, the provision for rent lost in respect of empty properties has been 
increased by £220k as it is anticipated that there may be a higher turnover of 
tenants as a result of the welfare reform changes. 

 

85B2 INTEREST 

  
The budget for interest payable on the £56.884m loan with the Public Works Loan 
Board has increased by £64k, in order to meet the fixed annual interest payments 
on the 50 year maturity loan. 
 
This increase has been partially offset by an increase in investment interest 
income, which is earned on HRA balances; a prudent approach has been taken in 
respect of interest paid to the HRA. (see paragraph 2.3 above) 

 

85B4 MOVEMENT IN HRA WORKING BALANCE 

  
A surplus of £1.7m is budgeted to be achieved in 2013-14, which will be 
transferred to the HRA Working Balance.  By the end of 2013-14 it is projected 
that the HRA Working Balance will stand at £7.5m. 
 

4. BUDGET FRAMEWORK FOR THE COUNCIL’S NEW BUILD SCHEMES 

 

4.1 The Council’s 21 new properties at Rowan House and Knights Place form part of 
the overall Housing Revenue Account, but separate income and expenditure 
budgets are maintained in order to ensure that they are self-financing. 
 

4.2 The 2013-14 revenue estimates in respect of the new build schemes are set out 
within Management Unit 85B5, please refer to Appendix 1. 
 

4.3 The key changes are as follows: 
 

85B5 COUNCIL OWN BUILDS 

  

After deducting management and maintenance costs for the twenty one new 

Page 96



properties from the projected rental income, it is anticipated that Rowan House 
and Knights Place will make a budgeted surplus of £6K and £46k respectively. 
 
However, interest costs of £8k are projected to be payable in respect of the 
borrowing that was required to finance the capital cost of building the new 
properties, based upon a short term borrowing rate of 0.80%, and depreciation of 
£10k has been charged in respect of dwellings. 
 
The budgeted net surplus during 2013-14 is therefore £34k.  This surplus will be 
transferred to the Council Own Build Working Balance in order to provide for 
future major repairs, debt repayment or to support future financial years with a 
budget deficit. 
 

5. RECOMMENDED that Scrutiny Committee – Community supports the estimates 
for 2013-14 and recommends approval at the Special Meeting of the Council on 
26 February 2013. 

 
  

 

ANDY STARK                  SARAH WARD 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR      ASSISTANT DIRECTOR 
TREASURY SERVICES                  HOUSING AND CONTRACTS 
 
S:CE/DSS/PA/LP/110SCC10 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report  
 
None 
 

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 (
H

R
A

)

  
5

H
R

A
R

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

S
U

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

 A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS

B
A

S
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 

2
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-

R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

 

2
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

P
A

Y
1
,5

2
6
,0

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
   

2
3
,2

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(1
1
7
,9

5
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,4

3
1
,3

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
7
,4

3
0
,6

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
   

2
1
3
,4

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,2

8
0
,6

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

1
0
,9

2
4
,6

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
 &

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
5
,6

4
2
,7

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
   

2
,0

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(5
,1

0
7
,1

5
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

5
3
7
,6

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
5
2
,3

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,0

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(1
0
,7

2
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
2
,6

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
,2

1
0
,7

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
   

1
5
,4

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(2
1
0
,7

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,0

1
5
,5

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

C
A

P
IT

A
L
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

4
,1

0
2
,2

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
4
,2

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,1

6
6
,4

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

T
o

ta
l 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

1
9
,9

6
4
,7

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
5
,2

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(2
,1

0
1
,6

3
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

1
8
,1

1
8
,3

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

IN
C

O
M

E
(1

9
,9

6
4
,7

6
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
 

2
1
,0

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,8

2
5
,2

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

(1
8
,1

1
8
,3

9
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
   

T
o

ta
l 
In

c
o

m
e

(1
9
,9

6
4
,7

6
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
 

2
1
,0

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,8

2
5
,2

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

(1
8
,1

1
8
,3

9
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
   

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
7
6
,3

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(2
7
6
,3

4
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,9

9
2
,0

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
   

4
4
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(2
7
8
,4

3
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,7

5
8
,1

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

2
6
2
,1

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,0

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,0

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
6
5
,3

3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
,9

2
4
,0

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
   

1
8
4
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(3
4
1
,6

1
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
,7

6
6
,7

1
0

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,1

8
6
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

2
,1

8
6
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

(1
7
,3

8
7
,5

5
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
 

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(1
,2

3
6
,4

9
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

(1
8
,6

2
4
,0

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
   

1
,8

8
9
,0

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
5
,7

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,9

3
4
,7

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

2
,3

2
0
,2

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
   

4
6
,4

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(6
5
4
,5

2
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,7

1
2
,1

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
7
6
,3

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(2
7
6
,3

4
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 B
y

8
5
A

1
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

8
5
A

3
 S

U
N

D
R

Y
 L

A
N

D
S

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

8
5
B

2
 I
N

T
E

R
E

S
T

8
5
B

4
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 I
N

 W
O

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E

N
e
t 

C
o

s
t

8
5
A

4
 R

E
P

A
IR

S
 F

U
N

D
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N

8
5
A

6
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

8
5
A

8
 R

E
N

T
S

Page 99



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 (
H

R
A

)

  
8
5
A

1
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

S
U

B
J

E
C

T
IV

E
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

B
A

S
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 

2
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-

R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

 

2
0
1
3
/2

0
1
4

P
A

Y
1
,5

2
6
,0

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
3
,2

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(1

1
7
,9

5
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
,4

3
1
,3

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
3
9
7
,5

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
5
,9

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(1

6
,3

4
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
9
7
,1

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
 &

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
4
9
7
,5

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
,0

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
8
,0

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
3
7
,6

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
5
2
,3

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,0

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(1

0
,7

2
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
2
,6

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
,1

9
9
,9

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5
,3

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(2

1
0
,2

9
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
,0

0
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

T
o

ta
l 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

3
,6

7
3
,4

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
7
,6

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(3

1
7
,2

5
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
,4

1
3
,8

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

IN
C

O
M

E
(6

8
1
,3

8
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(1

3
,1

8
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
8
,8

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(6
5
5
,7

4
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

T
o

ta
l 
In

c
o

m
e

(6
8
1
,3

8
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(1

3
,1

8
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
8
,8

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(6
5
5
,7

4
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,9

9
2
,0

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
4
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(2

7
8
,4

3
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
,7

5
8
,1

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

9
8
7
,4

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
1
,1

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(2

1
9
,9

4
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
7
8
,6

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
1
,0

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(2

5
,4

4
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
5
,8

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
0
,6

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(1

2
,1

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
8
,8

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
4
2
,1

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
0
,2

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

2
3
,0

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
7
5
,5

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
0
4
,8

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
,2

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(3

4
,8

6
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
7
6
,1

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
6
0
,5

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
,5

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(4

,5
9
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
6
1
,5

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
2
5
,3

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(4

,5
7
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
2
1
,5

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,9

9
2
,0

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
4
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(2

7
8
,4

3
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
,7

5
8
,1

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

H
0
4
7
 T

E
N

A
N

T
 P

A
R

T
IC

IP
A

T
IO

N
 &

 L
IA

IS
O

N

N
e
t 

C
o

s
t

H
0
4
4
 R

E
P

A
IR

S
 &

 T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

H
0
4
5
 T

E
N

A
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

H
0
4
6
 I
N

C
O

M
E

 R
E

C
O

V
E

R
Y

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

H
0
0
4
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

H
0
3
1
 S

H
E

L
T

E
R

E
D

 A
C

C
O

M
M

O
D

A
T

IO
N

H
0
3
2
 R

T
B

 S
A

L
E

S
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

Page 100



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 (
H

R
A

)

  
8
5
A

3
 S

U
N

D
R

Y
 L

A
N

D
S

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

S
U

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

 A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS

B
A

S
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 

2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-

R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

 

2
0

1
3

/2
0

1
4

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
3

7
0

,5
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

,9
4

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

,5
5

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3

8
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
6

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

4
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
s

e
3

7
0

,7
7

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

,9
4

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

,5
3

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3

8
0

,2
4

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

IN
C

O
M

E
(1

0
8

,6
0

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(1
,8

5
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(4

,4
6

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

1
4

,9
1

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
o

ta
l 

In
c

o
m

e
(1

0
8

,6
0

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(1
,8

5
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(4

,4
6

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

1
4

,9
1

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
6

2
,1

7
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,0

9
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
,0

7
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
6

5
,3

3
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
8

0
,0

1
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
,3

1
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(4
,5

7
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
7

7
,7

5
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
6

3
,7

6
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

,5
3

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

7
0

,2
9

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

(8
1

,6
0

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

,2
2

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(8
2

,7
1

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

2
6

2
,1

7
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,0

9
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
,0

7
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
6

5
,3

3
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t

R
e
p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 B
y

H
0

6
0

 E
S

T
A

T
E

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

H
0

6
1

 G
A

R
D

E
N

 A
S

S
IS

T
A

N
C

E

H
0

6
2

 S
U

N
D

R
Y

 L
A

N
D

S
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R

Page 101



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 (
H

R
A

)

  
8
5
A

4
 R

E
P

A
IR

S
 F

U
N

D
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N

S
U

B
J

E
C

T
IV

E
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

B
A

S
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 

2
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-

R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

 

2
0
1
3
/2

0
1
4

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
6
,6

6
2
,5

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
9
4
,4

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
,2

9
0
,4

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
0
,1

4
7
,5

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
 &

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3
,6

6
6
,0

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(3

,6
6
6
,0

5
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

7
,5

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
,8

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

T
o

ta
l 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

1
0
,3

3
6
,1

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
9
4
,6

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(3

7
3
,7

4
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
0
,1

5
7
,0

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

IN
C

O
M

E
(4

1
2
,1

3
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(1

0
,3

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
2
,1

3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(3
9
0
,3

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
o

ta
l 
In

c
o

m
e

(4
1
2
,1

3
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(1

0
,3

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
2
,1

3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(3
9
0
,3

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
,9

2
4
,0

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
8
4
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(3

4
1
,6

1
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
9
,7

6
6
,7

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
1
9
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
1
9
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

3
,5

4
7
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
0
8
,0

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
,7

2
1
,3

3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
,3

7
7
,1

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
7
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
0
2
,5

3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
,8

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(7

,8
1
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
0
2
,5

3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

7
2
4
,0

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
7
,9

3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
,4

3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
4
5
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

6
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(1

8
,0

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

1
8
3
,6

0
0

5
,5

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(5

,5
1
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
8
3
,6

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
9
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
9
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

3
,6

6
6
,0

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(3

,6
6
6
,0

5
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

9
,9

2
4
,0

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
8
4
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(3

4
1
,6

1
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
9
,7

6
6
,7

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
e
t 

C
o

s
t

H
0
5
0
 A

S
B

E
S

T
O

S
 R

E
M

O
V

A
L

H
0
5
9
 O

T
H

E
R

 W
O

R
K

S

H
0
5
6
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

H
0
5
7
 L

O
W

 M
A

IN
T

 &
 P

A
IN

T
IN

G
 F

L
A

T
S

H
0
5
8
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L
 D

E
C

O
R

A
T

IO
N

 P
R

O
G

H
0
6
4
 M

A
J
O

R
 R

E
P

A
IR

S
 A

L
L
O

W
A

N
C

E

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

H
0
5
1
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

H
0
5
2
 E

M
P

T
Y

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
IE

S

H
0
5
3
 E

L
E

C
 T

E
S

T
IN

G
/R

E
A

C
T

IV
E

Page 102



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 (
H

R
A

)

  
8
5
A

6
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

S
U

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

 A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS

B
A

S
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 

2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-

R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

 

2
0

1
3

/2
0

1
4

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
 &

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1

,4
7

9
,1

5
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(1
,4

7
9

,1
5

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 C
H

A
R

G
E

S
2

,1
8

6
,9

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

,1
8

6
,9

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
s

e
3

,6
6

6
,0

5
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(1
,4

7
9

,1
5

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
,1

8
6

,9
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

IN
C

O
M

E
(3

,6
6

6
,0

5
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,6

6
6

,0
5

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
o

ta
l 

In
c

o
m

e
(3

,6
6

6
,0

5
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,6

6
6

,0
5

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,1

8
6

,9
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,1

8
6

,9
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,1

8
6

,9
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,1

8
6

,9
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,1

8
6

,9
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,1

8
6

,9
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

R
e
p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 B
y

H
0

6
7

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 C

O
S

T
S

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t

Page 103



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 (
H

R
A

)

  
8
5
A

8
 R

E
N

T
S

S
U

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

 A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS

B
A

S
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 

2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-

R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

 

2
0

1
3

/2
0

1
4

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

3
,0

2
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(2

,2
6

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
8

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
s

e
3

,0
2

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
,2

6
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

IN
C

O
M

E
(1

7
,3

9
0

,5
7

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,2

3
4

,2
3

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(1
8

,6
2

4
,8

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
o

ta
l 

In
c

o
m

e
(1

7
,3

9
0

,5
7

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,2

3
4

,2
3

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(1
8

,6
2

4
,8

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
7

,3
8

7
,5

5
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

,2
3

6
,4

9
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

8
,6

2
4

,0
0

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

(1
6

,9
3

7
,0

4
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

,2
1

2
,1

6
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

8
,1

4
9

,2
0

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

(4
5

0
,5

1
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
4

,3
3

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(4
7

4
,8

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

(1
7

,3
8

7
,5

5
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

,2
3

6
,4

9
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

8
,6

2
4

,0
0

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

R
e
p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 B
y

H
0

8
0

 D
W

E
L

L
IN

G
S

H
0

8
1

 G
A

R
A

G
E

S
 A

N
D

 O
T

H
E

R
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t

Page 104



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 (
H

R
A

)

  
8
5
B

2
 I
N

T
E

R
E

S
T

S
U

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

 A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS

B
A

S
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 

2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-

R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

 

2
0

1
3

/2
0

1
4

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 C
H

A
R

G
E

S
1

,9
1

5
,3

2
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
4

,2
4

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

,9
7

9
,5

6
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
s

e
1

,9
1

5
,3

2
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
4

,2
4

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

,9
7

9
,5

6
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

IN
C

O
M

E
(2

6
,3

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

8
,5

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(4
4

,8
0

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

T
o

ta
l 

In
c

o
m

e
(2

6
,3

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

8
,5

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(4
4

,8
0

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

8
9

,0
2

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

5
,7

4
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,9

3
4

,7
6

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(3
,8

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(3
,8

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

(2
2

,5
0

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
8

,5
0

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(4

1
,0

0
0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

H
0

8
9

 I
N

T
E

R
E

S
T

 O
N

 D
E

B
T

1
,9

1
5

,3
2

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

4
,2

4
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,9

7
9

,5
6

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,8

8
9

,0
2

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

5
,7

4
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,9

3
4

,7
6

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t

R
e
p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 B
y

H
0

8
6

 I
N

T
E

R
E

S
T

 O
N

 M
O

R
T

G
A

G
E

S

H
0

8
7

 I
N

T
E

R
E

S
T

 O
N

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

Page 105



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 (
H

R
A

)

  
8

5
B

4
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 I

N
 W

O
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
U

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

 A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS

B
A

S
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 

2
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-

R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

 

2
0
1
3
/2

0
1
4

IN
C

O
M

E
2
,3

2
0
,2

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
6
,4

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(6

5
4
,5

2
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,7

1
2
,1

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

T
o

ta
l 
In

c
o

m
e

2
,3

2
0
,2

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
6
,4

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(6

5
4
,5

2
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,7

1
2
,1

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,3

2
0
,2

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
6
,4

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(6

5
4
,5

2
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,7

1
2
,1

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

2
,3

2
0
,2

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
6
,4

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(6

5
4
,5

2
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,7

1
2
,1

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

2
,3

2
0
,2

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
6
,4

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(6

5
4
,5

2
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,7

1
2
,1

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

R
e
p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 B
y

H
0
9
2
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 I
N

 W
O

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E

N
e
t 

C
o

s
t

Page 106



C
O

U
N

C
IL

 O
W

N
 B

U
IL

D

  
8
5
B

5
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 O

W
N

 B
U

IL
D

S
U

B
J

E
C

T
IV

E
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

B
A

S
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 

2
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-

R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

N
E

W
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

 

2
0
1
3
/2

0
1
4

P
A

Y
1
1
,4

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(1
,6

7
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
,9

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
2
4
,6

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(4
,3

5
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,3

3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
 &

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
2
,1

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,5

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
3
,6

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
A

P
IT

A
L
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

2
5
,2

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(7
,0

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
8
,2

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
o

ta
l 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

7
3
,5

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(1
0
,4

6
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
3
,2

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

IN
C

O
M

E
(7

3
,5

4
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
,9

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(6

3
,2

5
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

T
o

ta
l 
In

c
o

m
e

(7
3
,5

4
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
,9

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(6

3
,2

5
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 

4
7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(4
7
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 

1
7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(1
7
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 

(6
,4

5
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(6
,2

6
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

(3
6
,4

0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(5

0
)

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(9
,1

7
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(4
5
,6

2
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(7
,4

7
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
,5

3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,2

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
0
,2

8
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
7
,5

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
6
,1

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
4
,0

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 

4
7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(4
7
0
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 

H
0
0
8
 I
N

T
E

R
E

S
T

H
0
0
9
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

H
0
1
0
 C

O
B

 M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 I
N

 W
O

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

L

N
e
t 

C
o

s
t

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

H
0
0
5
 C

O
B

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

H
0
0
6
 R

O
W

A
N

 H
O

U
S

E

H
0
0
7
 K

N
IG

H
T

S
 P

L
A

C
E

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

2
0

1
2

-1
3

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
4

-1
5

2
0

1
5

-1
6

T
o

ta
l

B
/F

W
D

T
o

ta
l

£
£

£
£

£
£

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 I
N

 T
H

E
 C

IT
Y

1
A

d
a

p
ta

ti
o

n
s

6
0

0
,0

0
0

6
0

0
,0

0
0

6
0

0
,0

0
0

6
0

0
,0

0
0

1
,8

0
0

,0
0

0

2
B

a
th

ro
o

m
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

1
,0

3
0

,0
0

0
1

,0
3

0
,0

0
0

1
,0

6
0

,0
0

0
6

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,6
9

0
,0

0
0

3
B

o
ile

r 
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
2

6
0

,0
0

0
2

6
0

,0
0

0
2

6
0

,0
0

0
2

6
0

,0
0

0
7

8
0

,0
0

0

4
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
H

e
a

ti
n

g
2

4
0

,0
0

0
2

4
0

,0
0

0
2

4
0

,0
0

0
2

4
0

,0
0

0
7

2
0

,0
0

0

5
C

o
m

m
u

n
a

l 
A

re
a

s
5

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
5

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

3
5

0
,0

0
0

6
D

o
o

r 
E

n
tr

y
 S

y
s
te

m
  

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
1

0
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
1

0
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
3

0
,0

0
0

7
E

le
c
tr

ic
a

l 
R

e
w

ir
e

s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

d
4

6
0

,0
0

0
4

6
0

,0
0

0
4

4
7

,8
0

0
4

4
7

,8
0

0
1

,3
5

5
,6

0
0

8
E

n
e

rg
y
 C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
8

0
,0

0
0

3
0

,0
0

0
1

1
0

,0
0

0
3

0
,0

0
0

3
0

,0
0

0
1

7
0

,0
0

0

9
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

4
1

,0
0

0
4

1
,0

0
0

2
5

,0
0

0
2

5
,0

0
0

9
1

,0
0

0

1
0

F
e

e
s

3
8

9
,0

3
0

3
8

9
,0

3
0

3
8

9
,0

3
0

3
0

0
,7

2
0

1
,0

7
8

,7
8

0

1
1

F
ir
e

 A
la

rm
s
 a

t 
S

h
e

lt
e

re
d

 S
it
e

s
8

0
,0

0
0

-
8

0
,0

0
0

-
-

8
0

,0
0

0

1
2

F
lo

o
d

 P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 W

o
rk

s
1

0
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
-

-
1

0
,0

0
0

1
3

F
ir
e

 P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 W

o
rk

2
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

6
0

0
,0

0
0

1
4

K
it
c
h

e
n

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

2
,4

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,4
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,4

7
0

,0
0

0
9

0
0

,0
0

0
5

,7
7

0
,0

0
0

1
5

L
A

IN
G

S
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

ts
3

7
0

,0
0

0
3

7
0

,0
0

0
6

0
0

,0
0

0
6

0
0

,0
0

0
1

,5
7

0
,0

0
0

1
6

O
th

e
r 

w
o

rk
s

5
0

,0
0

0
5

0
,0

0
0

5
0

,0
0

0
5

0
,0

0
0

1
5

0
,0

0
0

1
7

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 R
e

ro
o

fi
n

g
3

0
0

,0
0

0
3

0
0

,0
0

0
2

5
2

,0
0

0
2

5
2

,0
0

0
8

0
4

,0
0

0

1
8

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 E

n
tr

a
n

c
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t s

2
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

2
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

0
,0

0
0

1
9

R
e

n
d

e
ri
n

g
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

D
w

e
lli

n
g

s
2

6
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

2
6

0
,0

0
0

2
6

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

 
2

6
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

7
8

0
,0

0
0

2
0

R
e

n
n

e
s
 H

o
u

s
e

 S
c
o

o
te

r 
S

to
re

1
5

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
5

,0
0

0

2
1

R
e

n
n

e
s
 H

o
u

s
e

 S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
W

o
rk

s
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
 

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
8

5
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
 

1
,8

5
0

,0
0

0

2
2

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

C
o

n
c
re

te
 C

a
n

o
p

ie
s

2
5

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

5
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
2

5
,0

0
0

2
3

R
e

p
o

in
ti
n

g
3

0
,0

0
0

2
0

,0
0

0
5

0
,0

0
0

2
0

,0
0

0
2

0
,0

0
0

9
0

,0
0

0

2
4

S
m

o
k
e

 D
e

te
c
to

r 
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

2
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

2
5

S
o

c
ia

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
s

5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

1
,5

0
0

,0
0

0

2
6

S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
R

e
p

a
ir
s

2
0

,0
0

0
-

2
0

,0
0

0
-

-
2

0
,0

0
0

2
7

C
o

u
n

c
il 

O
w

n
 B

u
ild

 -
 L

a
n

d
 P

u
rc

h
a

s
e

3
0

0
,0

0
0

-
3

0
0

,0
0

0
-

-
3

0
0

,0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

H
R

A
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

5
6

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
 

8
,5

3
0

,0
3

0
  

  
 

9
,0

9
0

,0
3

0
  

  
  

8
,3

6
3

,8
3

0
  

  
5

,3
9

5
,5

2
0

  
  

  
  

2
2

,8
4

9
,3

8
0

S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 T
H

E
M

E
S

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 -
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 A
N

D
 F

U
T

U
R

E
 Y

E
A

R
S

S
C

H
E

M
E

S
 L

IS
T

E
D

 W
IT

H
IN

 K
E

Y

Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



HOUSING APPENDIX 3

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code

A LETTING ROOMS

          Sheltered Homes - Community Rooms

           per hour or part thereof - 

               - non profit-making bodies 7.28          -                 7.28          8

               - profit-making bodies 20.80        -                 20.80        8

           Sheltered Homes guest rooms per night 12.50        -                 12.50        8

B MORTGAGE FEE REFERENCES 34.50        6.90               41.40        3

C LEASEHOLD FLATS

Legal Fees for leasehold flat transfers 130.00 26.00             156.00 3

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY 
15 JANUARY 2013 

 

EXECUTIVE  
22 JANUARY 2013 

 
HOUSING RENTS 2013-14 

 
 
 

1. 
 
1.1 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
To recommend a rent and service charge increase from 1 April 2013 for 
Council dwellings and garages.  
 

2. 
 
2.1 
 
 
 

Government Guideline Rent Increase 
 
The Government abolished the Housing Revenue Account subsidy system 
and introduced self-financing in April 2012, which has resulted in housing 
authorities now retaining all their rents, so that they can support their own 
stock from their own income.  The rental policy of the authority post self-
financing is therefore a major factor in the viability of long term business 
plans. 
 

2.2 Whilst the Council is free to set its own rents, the Government has maintained 
the Housing Benefit ‘limit’ rent which limits the amount of rent a landlord can 
recover through the housing benefit subsidy system.  Increases above the 
‘limit rent’ would have an adverse impact on the amount of housing benefit 
received. 
  

2.3 The Government is keen for local authorities to continue working towards the 
social rent policy, whereby convergence with housing associations will be 
achieved by 2015-16.  Rents will then follow the same formula as for housing 
associations; currently an increase of RPI + 0.50% per annum.  Rents set in 
line with the Government’s social rent policy remain below the ‘limit rent’ and 
ensures that maximum housing benefit subsidy is receivable by the Council. 
 

2.4 In order to achieve the Government’s social rent reform it will be necessary to 
implement an increase of 3.1% plus a convergence factor to reflect the 
number of years to rental convergence.  For 2013-14 this equates to an 
average increase of 6%, which equates to £4.05 per week over 52 weeks. 
 

2.5 Rents are collected over 48 weeks, and this will result in an average rise of 
£4.39 per collection week for 2013-14. 
 

2.6 The Government recognised concerns that the social rent reform would result 
in large increases for some tenants and therefore introduced a ‘limit’ to rent 
rises for individual tenants, so that annual increases are limited to RPI plus 
0.5% plus £2 per week in any year.  The proposed rent increase for 2013-14 
keeps rent rises for Exeter City council tenants below the ‘limit’. 
 
 

2.7 
 
 
 
 

The rent per property is calculated using a national formula that reflects 
property size, location, condition and local earnings. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 113



3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 

Service Charge Increase 
 
These charges cover services and facilities provided by the authority to 
tenants and which are not covered by their rent.  Service charges reflect 
additional services which may not be provided to every tenant, or which may 
be connected with communal facilities.  Different tenants receive different 
types of service reflecting their housing circumstances. 
 
The current Government guidelines are that service charges should only be 
increased by RPI plus 0.50%. For 2013-14 this equates to an increase of 
3.1%.   Increases above this may be made on rare occasions when an 
authority has increases in costs outside its control, such as increases in fuel 
costs.   
 
Service charges will therefore increase by 3.1%, with the following 
exceptions: 
 

• 2.5% increase in respect of cleaning communal areas in line with 
anticipated rises in cleaning contract costs 

• 0% increase in respect of communal electricity at Weirfield House 

• 0% increase in respect of water at Magdalen Gardens 

• 14% increase in respect of heating at Toronto House due to rise in 
consumption and gas costs (heating system programmed to be 
replaced during 2013-14) 

 
4. 
 
4.1 
 

Garage Rent Increase 
 
Rentals of non-dwellings, such as garages, are outside the scope of the 
Government’s social rent reform and therefore it is not necessary to add a 
convergence factor to the annual inflationary rent rise.  An increase of RPI + 
0.50% will be made in-line with rises to most service charges. 
 

5 RECOMMENDED 
 

5.1 
 
5.1.1 
 
 
 
5.1.2 
 
 
5.1.3 

That Scrutiny Committee supports and Executive approves that: 
 
Rents of Council dwellings are increased from 1 April 2013, by an average of 
6% which includes a general inflationary increase of 3.1% together with the 
phased introduction of the Government’s rent restructuring proposals. 
 
Service Charges are increased by 3.1% with the exception of charges 
specified in paragraph 3.3 above. 
 
Garage rents are increased by 3.1% 
 

ANDY STARK 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR FINANCE  

SARAH WARD 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR 

HOUSING & CONTRACTS 
 

  

 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 

 Background papers used in compiling this report: 
 
None 

 

Page 114



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – COMMUNITY 

15 JANUARY 2013   

 

EXECUTIVE 
22 JANUARY 2013 

 

 TACKLING HOMELESSNESS 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  
 
1.1 To update Members on the flexibilities created by changes to Homelessness Legislation made 

as part of the Localism Act.  
 
1.2 To seek Member approval on the proposed use of these new flexibilities.  
  

2. BACKGROUND 

 
2.1 There has been an historic link between Part 7 (Homelessness) and Part 6 (The allocation of 

affordable housing) of the Housing Act 1996. This link was enshrined in legislation through 
reasonable preference categories. This requires local authority allocations policies to give 
priority for social housing allocations to, among other prescribed groups, people who are 
homeless and to people owed the main homelessness duty under S193. 

 
2.2 The Department of Communities and Local Government advises that the changes to 

homelessness legislation included in the Localism Act 2011 enable local authorities to take a 
strategic view of all suitable accommodation available in their area in relation to homelessness 
duties and social housing allocations, with the potential to make better use of available 
accommodation resources to meet housing need. 

 
2.3 The intended outcome is to enable local authorities to make better use of the private rented 

sector to provide suitable accommodation as a settled home that can bring the homelessness 
duty to an end. This is likely to reduce the need for temporary accommodation and free up 
more social lets for other people in housing need on the housing register.  

 
3. SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS  

 
3.1 The Localism Act will permit local authorities to meet their homelessness duty by providing 

good quality private rented homes. This option can provide an appropriate solution for people 
experiencing a homelessness crisis, whilst freeing up social homes for people in real need on 
the waiting list. The new provisions represent powers available to local authorities should they 
choose to adopt them – local authorities will not be under a duty to adopt the new provisions. 

 
3.2 Sections 148 and 149 of the Localism Act 2011 were introduced through a commencement 

order on November 9th 2012. The new provisions will not be applicable retrospectively. This 
means that applicants to whom a full homeless duty is accepted (i.e., households who are 
eligible for public funds, are genuinely homeless, have a priority need, have not made 
themselves homeless and have a local connection to Exeter) prior to the sections coming into 
force will not be subject to the new power to discharge duty into the private rented sector.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 115



 

3.3 These private rented offers must meet the following criteria,  
 

• The tenancy offered must be for at least 12 months 

• The accommodation must be suitable in the view of the Local Authority.  
 

In order to maximise consistency across Devon the Devon Housing Options Partnership of the 
10 Devon Local Authorities have agreed a property standard which needs to be met in order to 
discharge the homeless duty. This standard will apply for all homeless applicants in Devon. A 
copy of the draft standard is included at Appendix 1 to this report. The standard is due to be 
signed off by February 2013.  

 

3.4 In addition to this, Local authorities will be under a ‘re-application’ duty if accommodation 
provided under the new S193(7F) is lost unintentionally within 2 years. This means we will 
automatically be required to provide accommodation to any household whose duty had been 
discharged into the private sector if they become homeless from the address through no fault 
of their own.  
 

3.5 Applicants have the right to request a review of the suitability of Private Rented Sector Offers 
and to appeal to the County Court on a point of law if they remain dissatisfied with the 
outcome of the review. 

 
4 FINANCE 
 
4.1 It is not considered that there will be any additional cost to the council of implementing these 

changes in the short term (next 12 months), as all applicants receiving this offer would be 
residing in temporary accommodation in any case.  However, if this is successful the numbers 
of applicants moving into private rented properties will increase and this will require managing. 
It would therefore be practical to propose that we seek to make these private rented offers 
through the council’s EXtraLet scheme and therefore retain the management fee which can be 
used to fund addition officer resources if required.   

  
5. PROPOSAL 
 
5.1 Whilst officers hold that this is a beneficial opportunity and we should be seeking to exercise 

this flexibility, its success does depend on supply of suitable properties. Last financial year the 
council accepted 75 households to whom we owed the full homeless duty. This figure was a 
reduction from 111 in the previous financial year. The main reason for this reduction was the 
use of private rented properties to help prevent homelessness. Therefore our current supply of 
private rented options is being exhausted in just preventing homelessness; therefore limiting 
the opportunity to use it to discharge the duty we then may go onto owe those whose 
homelessness could not be prevented. Therefore, it is not expected that the offer of private 
rented accommodation will be made to all homeless applicants, as we will not have the supply 
of suitable properties. However it is proposed that we use it whenever a suitable property 
becomes available and as long as the property offered is suitable we make the offer regardless 
of the households’ cause of homelessness or household composition. When a property 
becomes available we will seek to offer it the most recently accepted homeless applicant to 
minimise disruption to those who have been waiting longest, are settled in temporary 
accommodation and are closest to receiving an offer of permanent affordable housing. 
However members may wish to comment on this and make an alternative proposal.  

 
5.2 As stated above it is proposed that the majority of these offers are made through the EXtraLet 

scheme as it then provides an income to the council which enables us to resource the 
management of the tenancies and provide greater security to private tenants. 

  

Page 116



 

5.3 However there maybe cases where the council if approached by a private landlord who wishes 
to find a tenant but manage the property themselves. We propose that this is acceptable as 
long as the property condition meets that outlined by in Appendix 1 and the landlord is 
considered to be a fit and proper person after consultation with the council’s Environmental 
Health Team.   

 
6 RECOMMENDED that 
 
 Scrutiny Committee:- 
 
 a) notes this report; and  

b) in respect of 5.1, advises whether this is appropriate or whether these offers should be 
made differently; and 

 
requests Executive to:- 

 
 1) approve the use of the new flexibilities as proposed above; 
 2) consider and support the Committee’s views in respect of 5.1; and 

3) agree that officers monitor the use of the flexibilities and report back to Members in 12 
months time.  

 
 
SARAH WARD 
Assistant Director Housing and Contracts  

 

S:PA/LP/Cttee/113SCC5 
3.1.13 

 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)  
Background papers used in compiling this report:  
 
None 

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Appendix One -  

 PROPOSAL TO MAKE USE OF NEW FLEXIBILITIES MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT TO TACKLE HOMELESSNESS  

Devon minimum property standards – December 2012 – detailed requirements 

This standard has been developed by members of the DHOP and DPSHG; prior to the publication of The Homelessness (Suitability 

of Accommodation) (England) Order 2012 (SI 2601).  

The Devon standard differs slightly from the Suitability Order, but the standard set is higher.  

Devon minimum standard Explanatory notes 

1. Property to be free from Category 1 hazards ( as 

defined by Housing Health and Safety Rating System) 

and in reasonable tenantable condition 

Reasonable tenantable condition means: 

• Must be in a reasonable state of repair 

• Is clean and in good decorative order 

• Floor coverings are in a reasonable condition and clean. The floor 

surface in the kitchen must be readily cleansable. 

•  There are reasonably modern kitchen facilities (less than 20 

years old), with adequate space, food storage and preparation 

surfaces and a suitable layout.  

• There is a reasonably modern (less than 30 years old) and 

appropriately located, bathroom and WC 

• All furniture supplied by the landlord complies with Furniture and 

Furnishings (Fire Safety) Regulations 1988 

• Electrical equipment supplied has an up to date PAT 

• Garden and outside areas are in good order, with suitable 

waste/recycling storage provided 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
9



2 

 

2. Energy performance certificate (EPC) provided Band E or higher rating ie 39 or above. 

3. Smoke detector present and suitably sited on every 
floor of the property 

 

Must be 10 year sealed battery unit, or preferably hard wired. 

 

4. Suitably located audible carbon monoxide detectors are 
present, with British or European Kitemark or Loss 
Prevention Certificate board (LPCB) approval mark. 
 

Needed where solid fuel or gas appliances present, but not for balanced 
fuel outlets. 
Annual testing of detectors required. 
The manufacturer’s instructions should be followed in relation to the 
location of the detectors.  

5. A gas certificate is required  All gas appliances tested at least annually 

6. An electrical certificate is required  Dated within last 5 years, with at least 12 months remaining 

7. Bedroom sizes are adequate for the stated occupation 
 

Minimum recommended bedroom sizes are: 

• Single person – 6.5 sq metres for bedroom where communal 

living room available or 8 sq m where single bedsit with no 

communal living room 

• Two person – 10.22 sq metres = 110 sq ft 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

- - - 

Bedroom standard– same standard as Housing  Benefit /Devon Home Choice: 

• Children can share a bedroom up until 10 years of age regardless of sex  

• Same sex children or adolescents can share a bedroom up to 21 years 
of age  

• People require their own room when they are 21 years of age  
 

8. Separate electric and gas meters are provided to the  
property, where these services are supplied. 
A separate water meter is desirable, but if not present, 
the water charge payable by the tenant is clear.  

 

 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
0



 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – COMMUNITY 
15 JANUARY 2013 

 
HOUSING RELATED COMPLAINTS 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 To advise Members of changes to how Exeter City Council (ECC) will treat housing 

related complaints following the introduction of the Localism Act 2011. Within the new 
legislation it sets out the way landlord services must deal with complaints.  

 
2. BACKGROUND 

 
2.1 On 6 March 2012 Scrutiny Community and on 20 March 2012 Executive Members 

approved the Resident Involvement Strategy 2012-2015 and its action plan. Within 
the action plan officers were tasked with reviewing how introduction of a “democratic 
filter” for housing related complaints as set out in the Localism Act 2011 and how it 
should operate for ECC as a landlord. 

 
2.2 Officers were asked to report back once further details were available and inform 

them how this would impact on and how housing service complaints would be 
managed. 

 
2.3 The Housing Service manages over 6,000 properties. In 2011/12 ECC received 38 

housing related formal complaints of which 8 progressed to Stage 2 of the process. 
Of these 8 complaints 2 escalated to the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) for 
independent review and none were found to be justified. Considering the number of 
customer interactions carried out by the Housing Service (over 17,000 repairs raised 
and 700 reports of anti social behaviour per year received as examples) the number 
of complaints received is very low. 

 
3. HOUSING RELATED COMPLAINTS 

 
3.1 Currently once a tenant has exhausted the ECC corporate complaints procedure they 

have they right to ask the LGO to independently investigate and review their 
complaint. The LGO has the powers to reverse a decision and to impose fines where 
it considers maladministration has taken place.  

 
3.2 From April 2013 the Localism Act 2011 requires the introduction of a ‘democratic 

filter’ to allow a further opportunity for housing complaints to be reviewed prior to the 
complainant escalating a complaint to the Ombudsman. As a stock retaining landlord 
currently a complaint would progress to LGO, from April 2013 they will be 
investigated by the Housing Ombudsman who currently performs this function for all 
other Social Landlords. 

 
3.3 Tenants who have exhausted the complaints procedure have the choice to either 

approach a ‘designated person’ for help or they can also contact the Housing 
Ombudsman directly after eight weeks has elapsed from the complaints procedure 
being exhausted. 

 

Agenda Item 13

Page 121



3.4 A designated person is defined as a tenant panel, which is recognised by the 
landlord for the purpose of referring complaints against the social landlord, a local 
councillor (this can be any Member of the authority, but is most likely to be the 
complaints ward representative) or an Member of the House of Commons (the 
legislation does not state that this must be the complainants representative).  The 
role of the ‘designated person’ is to re-examine the case in an effort to reach a 
solution. They may agree with the Authorities assessment or provide reasoning on 
why the decision should be re-considered. The authority does not have to accept the 
recommendation made by the ‘designated person’. 
 

3.5 If the complaint remains unresolved the ‘designated person’ can refer the complaint 
to the Housing Ombudsman. It is the complainants’ decision on who they make the 
referral to. The Housing Solicitor has examined the legislation and concluded that all 
three ‘designated persons’ are of equal standing and therefore mandatory elements 
of the scheme. 

 
3.6 This change does not affect our current complaints procedure but it does introduce 

an additional stage that tenants and leaseholders have the option to use. The 
complaint is not required to use the ‘democratic filter’. They can approach the 
ombudsman directly eight weeks from the date on which they exhausted the 
authorities complaints procedures.  

 
3.7 This process only relates to complaints made against ECC in its function as a social 

landlord. This includes temporary accommodation.  
 
4. ACTIONS   
 
4.1 Although the number of complaints currently reach this stage is small it is vital that 

ECC is equipped and prepared to correctly deal with complaints that escalate to this 
stage. It is recommended that a number of actions take place in order to ensure this 
is the case, these are: 

 

• Approach and invite the Housing Ombudsman to provide a members/MP/PIP with a 
briefing on their new responsibilities in this area,  

 

• Approach the Housing Ombudsman to provide staff briefings on the democratic filter.  
 

• Commission training for PIP in complaints handling 
 

• Produce new literature in the form of a leaflet to advise complainants who have 
exhausted the procedure on what they can do next under the new rules. 

 
5. RECOMMEND that Scrutiny Committee – Community note this report. 

   
SARAH WARD 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR HOUSING & CONTRACTS 

 
S:PA/LP/ Committee/113SCC1 
3.1.13 
 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report  
 
None 
 

Page 122



 

Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Parkwood Leisure Management Contract
	113SCC8 Appendices - Scrutiny 15 January 2013

	9 Community - General Fund - Estimates/New Capital Bids/Fees and Charges
	Capital Programme for  Community final
	Fees and charges - Community 2013-14 final
	Estimates figures - Community 2013-14 final

	10 Community - Housing Revenue Account - Estimates/New Capital Bids/Fees and Charges
	113SCC9 HRA Revenue Estimates 2013 Appendix 1
	113SCC9 HRA Capital Programme 2013-14 App 2
	113SCC9 Housing Fees and Charges 2013-14 Appendix 3

	11 Housing Rents 2013/14
	12 Tackling Homelessness.
	113SCC5 Appendix 1 - Property Standards

	13 Housing Related Complaints

